my

CHINA ORIENTAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
FERAEBERARA A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(EEFEEMAIINBRAE)

(Stock Code: 581)

(BAR 5% 581)

A K 'M“
Tl

Y
VI

\ q . N




Financial Highlights

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information

Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Company Balance Sheet

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-year Financial Information

Contents H %

FIBHRE 2
NEIER 5
TERE 7
EEREREEABNERER 21
EEERME 28
BEERWE 43
B AZ B AR 70
AHEERER 72
RNEBRERER 74
BHFER 76
aptREe lER 77
A EREEBR 78
aftlRenEx 80
BTSRRI 81
REMBER 236

Annual Report 2011 —F——4F4EH

1



2

Financial Highlights Bi #&#H=

FINANCIAL SUMMARY S EE
2009 2010 2011
—ZTTNF —T-TF =%
(RMB million) (RMB million)  (RMB million)
(AREBERL) (AREBET) (ARBEER)
Revenue A 20,589 30,136 38,597
Gross Profit E7 2,006 2,055 2,602
EBITDA' HRPISH - FIRFBAR -
WERBHAER 2,263 2,714 3,204
Profit before income tax Ry =y 1,314 1,613 1,932
Profit for the year FERF 972 1,185 1,418
Profit attributable to owners of RARE=FEES
the Company A 7 884 1,063 1,242
Basic earnings per Share (RMB) GRERRE(ARET) 0.30 0.36 0.42
Net Assets FEEE 7,461 8,520 9,511
Total Assets BEE 15,189 20,742 22,930
Net Assets value per Share SRFEEB(RRIEE
(excluding non-controlling interests) Bl MERER) 2.45 2.75 3.03
1 The Company defines EBITDA as profit for the year before 1 RN B EBITDA B RE 2 72 HIBR B 7505
finance costs-net, amortisation of intangible assets, amortisation AN - EIEESE HELTRLi
of leasehold land and land use rights, income tax expense, CERES B  TE - IEK
depreciation, non-recurring items and share-based payments. FRANIEE MBRE S KA 2 FEE
Non-recurring items for the year ended 31 December 2011 MeMBE_T——F+T_H="1—
included RMB 108.4 million as write-down of inventories to net IFFEN - FEFEANERBRAR
realisable value, RMB 161.3 million as impairment provision for H1084ELERTFEBEREZE
property, plant and equipment and RMB 49.1 million as loss on HEE - ARBA1613ERITIERME
receivables for operating lease. TR B5 % o 18 R (B8 18k LA I A B 0,491
BEALEHENRIIAMEX
Revenue Profit Attributable to
WA Equity Holders of the Company
AP TERFEEELER
RMB million RMB million
ARBEEET AREEET
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o “
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SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT PER TONNE

Selling Price per Tonne

Gross Profit per Tonne
H-section steel products
Strips and strip products
Billets
Cold rolled sheets and

galvanised sheets
Rebar

Combined
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SALES VOLUME BY PRODUCTS BREGREEE S ZHEE
2009 2010 2011
ZETNF —E-TF —E——F
('000 tonnes)  ('000 tonnes) (000 tonnes)
(Fmg) (Fma) (Fmg)
H-section steel products H 7Y 8] 2= 2,460 2,595 3,347
Strips and strip products A0 K A S KR A 2,861 3,580 3,627
Billets EibZ 1,341 2,001 1,633

Cold rolled sheets and R LR M AR

galvanised sheets 286 452 477
Rebar B2 4 S — — 471
Combined o) 6,948 8,628 9,555

Sales Volume by Products

RERERES 2HE

4.9%

38.0%

[ ] H-section steel products H % 8 Z & [ sBillets #4F
[ strips and strip products %5 % % $ 48 2= & [ ] Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /4 8L 1R J % £ 1]
[ ] Rebar #2400
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Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wang Tianyi
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Hang Tat

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

LIST OF BANKERS (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDERS)
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of Communications

China Citic Bank

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Minsheng Bank

DBS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank

Natixis

Rabobank

Raiffeisen Bank International AG

Shenzhen Development Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Chairman’s Statement =E#{%

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF YEAR 2011

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

During the Year 2011, conditions in the steel industry remained
volatile and led to an obvious difference in the performance in
the first half and second half of the year under review. Strong
economic growth in China helped steel prices move up and this
trend continued through most of first half of Year 2011 with a brief
softening happening in March 2011. Entering into the second half of
the Year, steel demand was significantly affected by the slowdown in
the PRC economy and the Euro zone crisis which in turn adversely
affected sales prices.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the iron ore and coking
coal markets continued to be volatile. Iron ore prices remained at
a high level all year having peaked in the third quarter. However
iron ore prices trend turned down and dropped in November 2011
on account of weakening demand globally. The management of
China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) will closely monitor the market situation,
strictly control the Group’s inventory level and adjust the purchasing
strategy as and when needed.

The Group reported a satisfactory
growth in its sales and results for 2011
as compared with that of 2010.

AEER-—Z——FHHEERFEL
—Z-ZTFERRIEANER -

R-ZE——F2F  WETERREEE
KB EX¥ERTHFERRELRR -
BYNPELEERSHMERIZEL
T BAE=AOKEMLO®R  E8%
E-Z——FLH¥FHRABMES ¥
ATHE - SEF AR DN P ELE
BEMBTRERTE  HEBBHEL
©BXBEETE -

RBE-_T——F+-_A=1t—HLF
BR- #HBEAREXKTSHRFEK
B EBROEREFENSM  FHZ
RE=ZFER BELEREINRS
B BER+— AR 2R T KN
TR E  HEMMIREBRET®K - B
RASEZEERBERAR(ARAR ) RE
MEBAR(AEENEREGEZIEER
miEEL  BREEAKRENGTFEE

A EREN B RERE -
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

The Group continues to make investments which can improve
production efficiencies, eliminate inefficient production capacity and
improve energy efficiency. The Group has also implemented different
policies to control costs and improve employee motivation.

The Group continued to be a market leader in the PRC for H-section
steels. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group sold
3.35 million tonnes of H-section steels.

The Group sold of 3,347,000 tonnes H-section steel products in
the year ended 31 December 2011. The Group also focused on
developing high-end products through improved research and

development efforts, focused on H-section steel.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F 2 B A FR 2 7]

RERIT ()

AEENFEREURSEERE - A
KEMEREERBRAELERYE © [
Ry T 46 4B B e 2% TR A T DA PR Il PR R K B
ZREMEERIE -

REBEBRETREANHEETIS - B#E
—F—FTA=T-RLEWEF
REEHEH I35 EMIHEHER

AEBRBEE-_ZE—F+-_A=+—
B IFF E A $8 5 3,347,000 8 H 7 81 &=
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Chairman’s Statement =E#{%

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

The property development project, namely Donghu Bay, located
in Tangshan City, Hebei Province, the PRC fulfilled the pre-sale
condition in April 2011. The construction on the main parts of phase
one was completed during the year and pre-sales of some of the
units built also commenced.

The Group continues to finetune the strategies related to receiving
bank acceptance notes from customers for increasing gross profit
and minimizing cash outflow. The settlement of the notes receivables
were guaranteed by banks with maturity dates within six months and
the credit risks in respect of the notes receivables are considered
to be low. The Group also uses foreign trade payable finance as
a means to reduce the finance costs and gain from the potential
Renminbi appreciation against USD.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded
revenues of RMB 38,597 million, representing an increase of
28.2% as compared with that of the corresponding period in prior
year. Given the increase in revenues and its effective cost control
measures, the Group sustained growth in its operating profit in Year
2011 when compared with prior year. During the year under review,
the operating profit and profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company has increased by 15.5% and 16.8%, respectively, as
compared with last year.

Since the Group introduced the world’s largest steel corporation
ArcelorMittal as its strategic shareholder in Year 2008, collaboration
between the Group and ArcelorMittal has grown considerably.
ArcelorMittal appointed experienced executives to the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) to participate in decision
making for the Group’s business development. Technic and
management staff from ArcelorMittal were sent to our production
sites on a regular basis to inspect their operations and provide
professional advice. Close collaboration is maintained for improving
product quality.

< ¥
= =

E53

T
%
g
%

AEETILEEILTE [RHE]|BE
R-ZE——FHAMNERERNT - £
—HNTIRBERERCE-_T——FF
RTERK K BRI AR BB AL FASATRE -

AEEFEFARBNME P WEUEL E
SRR A INHEENFRERE X
b BUEEIHBEANEARN - BEiE
BRIRTER  BREBRNEERRK
BABE  AEBOMNAIINEEMAIRE
FRERFEEAMBRARRBRARE R
ETUEETEFE -

BHE-_ZT——+-_A=1+—HILW
+_MH REBHBRARBARE
385.9718 7T * MEFRIEAEIN28.2%  1E
LIﬁU\i'jJD&ﬁJZZlKT HEEMBERT K
SER T —FOREENBEFR
HISR GBS & - NOBEHA - K5
MEMARRREDRFEEREZND
RIEEFEEIEIN15.5% K 16.8% °

AEBEB _ZTTN\F5AZKKAHM
HEXRBELKEAARBRRE &
THEZBETERE - RBELKER
BRRRERTRAEMAREEESRR
TE=ER)) 2ERAEERBERAR

S 3 E B E BT B B IR B B A
MAEEMSRREENRMERERE
R GEERMERATEEERRRN -
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Chairman’s Statement =EH %

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2011, the sales volume of H-section steel
products, strips and strip products, billets, cold rolled sheets and
galvanized sheets and rebar reached 3,347,000 tonnes, 3,627,000
tonnes, 1,633,000 tonnes, 477,000 tonnes and 471,000 tonnes
respectively.

During the year of 2011, in response to the rising costs of raw
material, the Group took proactive measures to control and reduce
costs, and also enhanced operational efficiency. This enabled the
Group to maintain a gross profit margin of 6.7 %.

The audited profit before tax and profit attributable to owners of the
Company for 2011 were RMB1,932 million and RMB1,242 million
respectively, representing increase of 19.8% and 16.8% respectively
when compared with those of the previous year.

Located in Qianxi, Tangshan City, Hebei Province, the PRC, Hebei
Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”) is the
Group’s main production base. Jinxi Limited continued to make
investments for improving the production efficiencies and products’
qualities. During the year of 2011, the sales volume of H-section steel
products of Jinxi Limited was 1,440,000 tonnes.

During the year of 2011, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Zhengda
Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda Iron and Steel”) worked
on upgrading its production facilities with the target to reduce energy
consumption and emissions. The project started in second half of
2011 and will increase the operating efficiencies of Zhengda Iron and
Steel in 2012.

During the year of 2011, Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet
Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”) proactively controlled its costs,
broadened its product variety, strengthened the communication with
customers, and obtained more timely information of its competitors.
The annual sales volume of Jinxi Jinlan was 477,000 tonnes.

The construction on the main parts of phase one of the property

development project, named Donghu Bay, was completed in the
year of 2011.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B 3% B A BR A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement =E#{%

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

During the year of 2011, the Group actively explored new businesses
to broaden its sources of revenue, including the development of
a scrap recycling business and this new business has obtained
preliminary government approval. Moreover, Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Dafang Heavy Industry Science and Technology
Company Limited also developed several new projects during the
year focusing on supplying equipment to the steel industry.

BUSINESS OPERATION

Sales Volume

In 2011, the Group’s total sales volume was 9,555,000 tonnes
(2010: 8,628,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately

10.8%.

The Group’s sales volume breakdown during the year was as
follows:

KB

R-FB——FFERN NEBEERHH
T ESIRBIARE WS IR - B1HE%
fR BRI O SR 75 - 3% ¥ 567 B B IUT
PEFBERBETK - S5 AR
MEEBATETHMRERARERA
FEARBREFERMZATERREE
RN IE TR RE

e {E)

HE

]

B —FEAREEBAHEE 59,555,000
WE( —F—T4F : 8,628,000M8) + +F+4]
10.8% °

AEBRERFEHEENT ¢

2011 2010
-2 “ZT-TF
Changes in
Sales volume Sales volume Sales volume
HEE HEE HEER(L
(’000 tonnes) (000 tonnes)
(Fm) (FmE)
H-section steel products HA 2 3,347 35.0% 2,595 30.1% 29.0%
Strips and strip products LS EER 3,627 38.0% 3,580 41.5% 1.31%
Billets Eih 1,633 17.1% 2,001 23.2% (18.4%)
Cold rolled sheets and RELR MR SEAR
galvanised sheets 477 5.0% 452 5.2% 5.5%
Rebar 2 471 4.9% - - -
Total Bt 9,555 100% 8,628 100% 10.8%

During the year of 2011, the Group’s production capacity is 11
million tonnes per annum.

RZF——FFEN ARENERSE
1,100 &M °
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Chairman’s Statement =EH %

BUSINESS OPERATION (continued)
Revenue
Revenue of the Group in 2011 was RMB 38,597 million (2010: RMB

30,136 million), representing an increase of approximately 28.2%.

The Group’s sales breakdown and average selling price by product
(excluding value-added tax) during the year were as follows:

2011
e
Average
selling
Revenue price
74

HEE HEER

(BN
—E - FAEELEEBEAARE
385.97 1B L(ZE—Z4F : AR¥E301.36

fB7T) » EA28.2% o

AEBRNEBFEHER L FHE®RH
EEE(RSBETWT

2010 Changes
—T-TE -4
Average Average
selling selling
Revenue price Revenue price

HEE  HEEE HER  HEEE

(RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (RMB million) (RMB/tonne)
(AR¥EER) (AR%R/H) (AR¥EBET) (\RET/H)

H-section steel products HESHE M@ 13,733 4,103 9,100 3,507 50.9% 17.0%
Strips and strip products R EEE R 14,210 3,917 12,385 3,459 14.7% 13.2%
Billets BN 6,176 3,783 6,604 3,301 (6.5%) 14.6%
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR R 8B R

galvanised sheets 2,305 4,838 2,047 4,521 12.6% 7.0%
Rebar 2 1,960 4,161 - - - -
Others Het 213 - - - - -
Total/combined At/ 174 38,597 4,039 30,136 3,493 28.2% 15.6%

The increase in revenue was primarily due to an increase in the
sales volume of the Group’s products and an increase in its average
selling price by 15.6% to RMB 4,039 per tonne in 2011 from RMB
3,493 per tonne in 2010. Increase in the sales volume and average
selling price of the Group’s products was mainly attributable to
rising demand driven by the continued improvement in economic
conditions in the PRC in 2011 as compared to 2010.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B 3% B A BR A 7]
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SMEA R 3,493 70 EFH15.6% =&MW A
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Chairman’s Statement =E#{%

BUSINESS OPERATION (continued)
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit
The audited consolidated gross profit of the Group in 2011 was RMB

2,602 million (2010: RMB 2,055 million), representing an increase of
26.6%. Gross profit margin was approximately 6.7% (2010: 6.8%).

Average cost per tonne, gross profit per tonne and gross profit
margin of the Group during the year were as follows:

EF A1)

HEK A K EF

T FAEENKEREAENE
AREE26.02BTT(=ZF— ?i P AR E
20.5517C) © EF26.6% c EFERL A
6.7% (ZZF—ZF : 6.8%) °

AEERNEBEEFHETIIRE - B0
EFIREFENT :

2011 2010
—B--F —T-TF
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Average profit profit Average profit profit
unitcost  per tonne margin unit cost per tonne margin
BAEE  BMEA ERZE  KAEE  BEEF EHE
(RMB/tonne) (RMB/tonne) (RMB/tonne) (RMB/tonne)
(AR¥T,/H) (AR¥T/®) (\RET/8) (AR, 1)
H-section steel products HAHEmM 3,718 385 9.4% 3,242 265 7.5%
Strips and strip products AR AEREER 3,684 233 5.9% 3,204 255 7.4%
Billets 7 3,669 114 3.0% 3,119 182 5.4%
Cold rolled sheets and RERRIEFR
galvanised sheets 4,659 179 3.7% 4,326 195 4.3%
Rebar AT 3,952 209 5.0% - - -
Total At 3,767 212 6.7% 3,254 239 6.8%

The gross profit per tonne of the Group’s products in 2011 was RMB
272, representing an increase of approximately 13.8% compared to
the gross profit per tonne in 2010. Gross profit margin decreased to
6.7% in 2011 from 6.8% in 2010. Decrease in gross profit margin
was primarily due to the increment in raw material price increases in
proportionate more than the increment in selling prices on account
of weaker market demand in the second half of 2011.

T —FALEERBBENAAR
o727 W E—EFEMEBWEES LFH

#13.8% °c EFEXH T —ZTFH6.8%
THE T ——FH6.7% > EFER K

RAR-Z——FT+FEEBXFRK
ST E  SRRMEHER LHABEX
REEN LFHEE -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

In order to sustain a stable financial status, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity and financial resources.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of approximately RMB 4.6 billion (2010: RMB 4.8 billion).

As at 31 December 2011, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.7
(2010: 2.0) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 58.5% (2010: 58.9%).

As at 31 December 2011, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB 965 million (2010: RMB 2,223 million).

After considering its cash and cash equivalents as well as the
banking facilities currently available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group has sufficient capital to fund its future operations and for
general business expansion and development.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2011, most of the borrowings of the Group bore
fixed interest rates and the Group’s exposure to changes in market
interest rates was limited. The Group did not use any derivatives
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Moreover, most of the borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2011 were non-current with maturity over three years.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B 3% B A BR A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement =E#{%

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure (continued)

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes current and non-current borrowings, finance
lease obligations and borrowings from related parties. The Group
regards its non-current borrowings, non-current portion of its finance
lease obligations and borrowings from related parties and its equity
attributable to owners of the parent as its total capital. As at 31
December 2011, the debt-to-capital ratio of the Group was 55.8%
(2010: 51.2%).

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2011
amounted to RMB 546 million (2010: RMB 308 million). The interest
coverage (divide earnings before interest and taxes by total interest
expenses) was 3.7 times (2010: 5.7 times).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB 505 million (2010: RMB 1.98 billion). It is estimated the capital
commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal resources,
senior notes and unutilised banking facilities.

Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s contingent liabilities

amounted to RMB 30 million (2010: RMB 30 million), which was the
provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favour of a third party.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2011, the net book value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately RMB
41 million (2010: approximately RMB 175 million), land use rights
amounted to nil (2010: approximately RMB 23 million), inventories
amounted to approximately RMB 61 million (2010: approximately
RMB 89 million), notes receivable amounted to approximately RMB
161 million (2010: approximately RMB 55 million) and restricted
bank balances amounted to approximately RMB 891 million (2010:
approximately RMB 160 million) had been pledged as security
for issuing notes payable of the Group and the Group’s banking
facilities.

Exchange Risks

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s Senior Notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuates in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2011.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Post Balance Sheet Events

As announced by the Company on 7 March 2012, Jinxi Limited
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Qianxi County Hui Yin
Trading Company Limited (“Hui Yin”) pursuant to which, Jinxi Limited
has conditionally agreed to acquire 20% equity interest in the Hebei
Jinxi Section Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi Section Steel”) from Hui
Yin. Upon completion of the acquisition, Jinxi Limited will increase its
equity interests in Jinxi Section Steel from 80% to 100% and Jinxi
Section Steel will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Jinxi Limited.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

The Group was awarded the “Top 100 Outstanding Entrepreneur
of Hebei Province” in 2011 and “AA Trustworthy Enterprise” by
China Enterprise Confederation in April 2011. Mr. Han Jingyuan,
the Chairman of the Company, had been named “Outstanding
Entrepreneur of Hebei Province” and “2010 The Best Trustworthy
Entrepreneur of China” by China Cooperative Trade Enterprises
Association.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, the distributable profit of the PRC respective subsidiaries of the
Company should not be higher than its net profit, after appropriation
to the statutory reserve as determined by the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintained close contact with its investors during the
year of 2011. The Company not only made timely disclosures of the
Company’s information through the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for increasing the
transparency of the Company, but also held regular meetings with
investors, updating them on the Group’s business development and
industrial trend. In addition, members of the senior management
of ArcelorMittal who were appointed as Directors of the Company
actively participated in investor relations activities and, together with
other members of the Group’s management, attended investors’
seminars, as well as one-to-one analyst meeting.

In 2011, the Group actively participated in large-scale investment
promotion seminars organized by major investment banks,
enhancing investors’ understanding and confidence in the
Company.

All such activities helped to promote investors’ understanding of the
Group while allowing us to understand more about the opinions and
expectations of investors. In future, the Group will further its effort to
maintain close contact and effective interactive communication with
investors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 13,000 and temporary staff of approximately 2,000.
The staff cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension
scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan
and the fair value of the share options, etc.. Effective from July 2008,
the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed 1.5% of the workers’ wages to the Social Insurance
Bureau. According to the Group’s remuneration policy, employees’
package is based on productivity and/or sales performance, and is
consistent with the Group’s quality control and cost control targets.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Steel demand is expected to be fueled by the commencement of
the Twelfth Five-year Plan of the PRC government, the development
of Northwest China and the revitalization of Northeast China’s
traditional industrial base. In addition, the escalated development
of alternative sources of energy, cutting-edge industrial machinery/
equipment, low cost housing projects, Euro3 standard compliant
automobiles as well as a renewed focus on environmental protection
and energy saving measures by the State will increase steel
consumption.

The economic environment in 2012 will remain complicated and
volatile. Driven by a comparative shortage of resources supply, the
prices of various raw materials including iron ore, coke and coal are
expected to remain high. The management of the Group will closely
control the inventory level and adjust purchasing strategy for raw
materials when needed.

In addition, various projects on harnessing power generated and
emission reductions internally from the equipments (Blast Furnace,
Sinter Plant etc) in the production bases of the Group will be
gradually started or completed on or after 2012. The completion
of these facilities will significantly reduce energy consumption
and mitigate the upward pressure on raw materials and energy
costs. Apart from effective energy cost control, these facilities
can substantially reduce pollutant emission during the production
process, leading to an improved community environment in
proximity of the plants.

The State has imposed strict regulations on the expansion of steel
production capacities and implemented measures to speed up
the elimination of backward production capacities, with a goal of
accelerating consolidation in the steel industry.

The Group will continue to explore opportunities to expand its
business portfolio and broaden its source of revenue generation
through enlarging its scope of business.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Since its listing in 2004, the Group has continued to expand its
business, diversify its product categories and business portfolio.
During the last seven years (since being listed), the Group’s overall
crude steel production capacity has reached 11.0 million tonnes
per annum from 3.1 million tonnes per annum at the time of the
listing. Its product portfolio has grown from billets to a variety of steel
product series — each in a comprehensive range of products and
is available in different specifications. These product series include
H-section steel products, strips and strip products, billets and cold
rolled sheets and galvanized sheets. Moreover, the H-section steel
of the Group commands a leading position in China. The Group has
been gradually diversifying its business. In addition to expanding
its supply chain through upstream and downstream integration,
the Group has also expanded horizontally by tapping into other
business sectors. The Group will strive to take full advantage of the
current solid financial condition and efficient management to intensify
the continuous development of the Group and to maximize the
shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

The Group’s encouraging results in 2011 were attributable to
support from its staff and shareholders. The Board would like to
take this opportunity to extend its deepest gratitude to its staff
and shareholders. The Group will continue to pursue steady and
sustainable growth in year 2012, with the support of its staff, and
share fruitful return with its shareholders.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jingyuan, aged 55, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and also serves as chairman of the board of
Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”),
Foshan Jinxi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi
Jinlan”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Zhengda Iron and Steel
Company Limited (“Jinxi Zhengda”) and Oriental Fullhero Leasing
Company Limited (“Oriental Fullhero”). Mr. Han graduated from the
People’s University in 1994 with a degree in management. Mr. Han
began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when he was employed as a
deputy mine manager and mine manager of Han’erzhuang Iron Mine.
Mr. Han has in-depth industry knowledge and 27 years of extensive
operational and managerial experience in the iron and steel industry.
Mr. Han was awarded the honorary title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top
Ten Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Hebei Province”, “Excellent
Privately-owned Enterprises Entrepreneur in Hebei Province”, and
“Economic Top Ten Men of Honesty and Credibility in China”, etc..
Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the Chairman of Hebei Hong
Kong Chamber of Commerce and the Vice Chairman of Tangshan
Charity Federation. Mr. Han was also the 9" and 11" representative
of the People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC. Mr. Han is the
director and the controlling shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Group.

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 48, is an Executive Director, Executive Deputy
General Manager of the Company, and also serves as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company and the executive director of Jinxi
Limited. Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a graduate programme
of the Communist Party School in Hebei Province with a diploma in
management. Prior to working in the steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked
for 10 years as deputy director of Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer
Factory which was based in Qianxi County, Hebei Province. Mr. Zhu
joined Jinxi Iron Factory in 1992 and later served as deputy director.
Mr. Zhu has had 18 years of working experience in the iron and steel
industry.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Xiaoling, aged 51, is an Executive Director, Deputy
General Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and
also serves as an executive director of Jinxi Limited. He obtained a
diploma in management from the Hebei Province Communist Party
School in 2001. Before joining the Group, Mr. Shen was the head
of China Construction Bank Luanxian Sub-branch. Mr. Shen also
had 5 years experience acting as the Head of China Construction
Bank Qianxi Sub-branch and more than 6 years of experience as
the deputy head of Bank of China Qianxi Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has
been the deputy general manager of Jinxi Limited since January
2002.

Mr. Zhu Hao, aged 45, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Zhu graduated at Tianjin Nankai University and obtained his
Master degree in accounting from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior economist in China. Mr. Zhu was a
non-executive director of Jinxi Limited from December 2002 to early
2004.

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee, aged 39, is an Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Mukherjee was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 2 January
2009. Mr. Mukherjee graduated from McGill University in Montreal,
Quebec, Canada in 1998 with a Master’s degree in Business
Administration.

In 1998, Mr. Mukherjee joined Ispat Sidbec, Montreal, Canada as
a financial analyst. In 2001, Mr. Mukherjee joined Mittal Canada
as Marketing Manager and subsequently moved on to be the
director, sales & marketing, long products & plate for ArcelorMittal
International in Chicago, USA. Currently, Mr. Mukherjee is the
general manager of ArcelorMittal China with responsibility for
overseeing the relationship with the Company on behalf of
ArcelorMittal. Mr. Mukherjee was once a Director on Hunan Valin Iron
and Steel Company Limited (“Hunan Valin”), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Han Li, aged 24, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Han Li joined the Group in 2009 as the assistant to the Financial
Controller of the Company. He is currently the executive assistant
to Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the director and legal
representative of Jinxi Limited. He is also the directors and legal
representatives of certain subsidiaries of Jinxi Limited. He assists the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer of the Company
managing the daily operations of the Group. Mr. Han Li was
appointed as the representative of the People’s Congress of Qianxi
County, Tangshan City, the PRC in June 2011. Mr. Han Li is the son
of Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the Part XV of the
SFO) (holding 45.70% of the shareholding of the Company) of the
Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ondra Otradovec, aged 43, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Otradovec graduated from Stony Brook State
University of New York with Bachelor degree of Finance. Previously,
he worked at HSBC, responsible for financing, IPO, privatization
in Central and Eastern European markets. During that period, he
provided advisory service for the acquisition of Nova Hut in Czech
Republic and other steel companies. Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec is
responsible for mergers and acquistions activities at ArcelorMittal.
He is now the vice president of Global Merger & Acquisition at
ArcelorMittal.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar, aged 64, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Bhatnagar holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Metallurgical Engineering and is an alumnus of AMP
of Harvard Business School. He is currently the executive vice
president and member of management committee of ArcelorMittal
and the chief executive officer of ArcelorMittal in India and China.
Prior to his current assignment, he was the chief executive officer
of ArcelorMittal Eastern Europe (Poland, Czech Republic and
Romania). Previously, he served as the chief executive officer of
Mittal Steel Poland and the chief operating officer of Mittal Steel
Temirtau, Kazakhstan and the managing director of Mittal Steel
Lazaro Cardenas, Mexico. Mr. Bhatnagar has over 35 years of
experience in line and staff functions in aluminum and electronics
industries in India. Mr. Bhatnagar was also appointed as a director of
Hunan Valin since January 2011.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Lei, aged 56, is a Non-executive Director of the Company
and director of Jinxi Jinlan. Mr. Liu was the Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Company from June 2004
to February 2012. Mr. Liu has over 24 years of experience in
management and industrial fields. Mr. Liu graduated in the area of
Industrial Electrical Automation of Electrical Engineering Faculty of
At T BB (Hebei Industrial Academy) in July 1978. Mr. Liu was
awarded the title of AL EBREBRIMABTFHEERIMAL
(Professional Technological Talent with Outstanding Contribution in
Hebei Province) by Government of Hebei Province in April 1987. Mr.
Liu was also granted the qualification of research fellow by A/ 1t& B
RIS METFEE (Senior Appraisal Committee of Zi Ran Yan Jiu
of Hebei Province) in December 2000. Before joining the Group in
June 2004, Mr. Liu was the vice chancellor of ja[1t& RIEFR (Hebei
Academy of Sciences) from October 1999 to June 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Tung Ho, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company. He currently serves as senior vice
president of Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited. Mr. Yu
is a senior influential media professional in Hong Kong and China
and has been in broadcasting for more than 40 years. Mr. Yu was
a director and the chief operation officer of Asia Television Limited,
the executive vice president of Phoenix Satellite Television Company
Limited and served as chairman of the 12th and 13th Hong Kong
Advertising Industry Association. Mr. Yu has also served as the
deputy general manager of China Radio & TV Corporation for
International Techno-Economic Cooperation and the chief of Radio
Guangdong and an Independent non-executive director of Gome
Electrical Appliance Holdings Limited.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis, aged 47, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 23 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, management and financial advisory. Mr. Wong
is currently an independent non-executive director of Digital China
Holdings Limited, eForce Holdings Limited and Wai Kee Holdings
Limited whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was once the independent non-executive director
of Sys Solutions Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, the independent non-
executive director of Yardway Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the independent non-
executive director of Lightscape Technologies Inc., a company with
its shares listed and traded in the OTC Bulletin Board of the United
States of America. Mr. Wong is a director of both Union Alpha
C.P.A. Limited and Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public Accountants
Limited, both are professional accounting firms. He is also a founding
director and member of Francis M.C. Wong Charitable Foundation
Limited, a charitable institution. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for
KPMG, an international accounting firm for 6 years and the Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of
the United Kingdom, a Certified Tax Advisor of Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
holds a Master Degree in Management conferred by Guangzhou
Jinan University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tianyi, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He is currently the executive vice president
of The Chinese Society For Metals. Mr. Wang has over 40 years
of extensive experience in the steel industry. Mr. Wang studied
metallurgical machinery in 1t R EEfT (Beijing Institute of Iron
and Steel Engineering) (now known as 1t REHE KE University
of Science and Technology of Beijing) from 1965 and graduated
in 1970. He then worked at HBER ] & & A BR & £ 2 & (Handan
Iron and Steel Group Company Limited) ([ HESHEEE | or “Handan
IS Group”) from 1970 to 1995 and held various management and
professional positions, included the position of a technician, deputy
factory manager and executive deputy general manager. From 1995
to 2008, Mr. Wang re-designated and worked at & [ $fi$# £ 5
fR & {TA Al(Tangshan Iron and Steel Group Company Limited) ([ &
i £2[E | or “Tangshan IS Group”) as the chairman and managing
director. From 2005 to 2011, he was also the deputy chairman and
managing director of & i 7 il 25 & B BR F 12 7] (Shougang
Jingtang Iron and Steel Company Limited). From July 2008 to
August 2011, he acted as the vice chairman of ;A 1t S £ B G R
& {£2 7] (Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company Limited) ([ ;7] 3k 8
=% E |or “HBIS Group”). HBIS Group was established after the
merger of Tangshan IS Group and Handan IS Group on 30 June
2008.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Jianshui, aged 44, is a general manager of Jinxi Limited.
Mr. Yu was metallurgy graduate at Hebei Polytechnic University and
obtained a MBA from University of Northern Virginia in June 2009.
He joined the Group after graduation until May 2005 and had over
20 years management experience. During the period, he received
the awards of County Technological Selected Talent (S RHHHL
AA), Ten Outstanding Youths in the County (& +A#EHF ),
Outstanding Youth in Post of Tangshan City (BT & fEfz5E
F), Workers' Model in Hebei Province At & 4 Eh1E &5 ), The
First Class Honour of Technological Improvement in Tangshan City
(WL RHE#E 2 — % 88), The Third Class Honour of Technological
Improvement in Hebei Province (ATt & Bl 2 =% 148). He
was employed as the deputy general executive manager of Shanxi
Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai Iron and Steel Company in May 2005
and then joined Jinxi Jinlan in April 2006 and was also appointed as
a general manager in September 2006. In 2008, Mr. Yu transferred
to Jinxi Zhengda as a general manager. Mr. Yu has been a general
manager of Jinxi Limited since October 2009.

Mr. Lee Hang Tat, aged 37, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor’s
degree in business administration (Accounting and Finance)
from the University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has
over 13 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management in Hong Kong and the PRC.

BREEAR

FiAEE - WA Mpx - BAEEAME
ISR o TRAZENIILET KEH
#HreE¥ —TTNFAARBILEHR
FRERENIFMEBRELEN - B
MIEUAREZTETRFRA —HHAE
AEEI BEBB-_THEEELK
5o HiR - BES[IHEREREAT]
(BT AELHSF BT SFEA
BEF DAt SeReE | - [FILmE
RES—F8R] [ALERBES=F
HIFERERR - TEER-_TTHER
AERLAEZRMMMHEQRTEB
Bl RERZZTEZNFHAMA
EESH  —TETNFNARBTRER
Bo — T N\FRAMTEEAMEZTHE
KB o TREBZTETNFTACHZE
PR AR AR o

FTERLE 375 ARRINBMBRE
RAFWE - FRERBETEARLR
EE(ERERB)SFLIEML - BAE
BEREIAEKE RFFFARETA
EEE - FRERBBNTEBERA3
FEME LY BERER -

Annual Report 2011 —F——4F4EH

27



Corporate Governance Report ¥ &85 &

The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the continued development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) with the best long term interest of the
Group and value enhancement for all shareholders as our ultimate
goal. The Company also believes that sound corporate governance
practices benefit the Group’s employees and the community in
which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange throughout
the year ended 31 December 2011, except for the deviation with
explanation disclosed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

The Board currently comprises twelve Directors and the composition
is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager
and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
(Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee (Deputy General Manager)
Mr. Han Li (Appointed on 7 February 2012)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei
(re-designated on 7 February 2012)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju (resigned on 7 February 2012)

Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi (appointed on 7 February 2012)

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 21 to 26.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

> Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

Approval of dividends;

Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;
Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;
Monitoring the performance of the management;

Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.

YV VV V V

Except Mr. Han Li, who is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business, family
relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy

that have been approved. During the year under review, twenty-five

board meetings were held and the principal business transacted

included approving interim and annual results and reports,

assessing business development and business performance and

implementation. The attendance record of each Director for the year

ended 31 December 2011 is set out as follows:

EER(EERD@

EERREEEEBREITC I ERRR
REBEFER  EFRAEAM_-_TAR
R CREZIZFEBEIAETH
RAREFEENMRE - PEEBERNR
BRERBEMES REFREE_T——
FH_A=+t—BIEFEZHEBRIN
B

Number of Board meeting

Board of Directors Attended
BEER EZRERHERY
Mr. Han Jingyuan BRI A 25/25
Mr. Zhu Jun KESLAE 25/25
Mr. Liu Lei BT A 25/25
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TLEEIS S A 25/25
Mr. Zhu Hao ERAE 25/25
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee Muktesh Mukherjee 5t 4 25/25
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler Jean-Paul Georges Schuler 4t 4 5/25

(resigned on 24 February 2011) (R=ZF——F = A =1FIHEFF)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 7t 4 25/25
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 5t 4

(appointed on 24 February 2011) (R-F——F _H 1 I9EZE) 20/25
Mr. Gao Qingju mBREE 25/25
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REIESE 25/25
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis HMREE 25/25

Mr. Han Li and Mr. Wang Tianyi were appointed as the Executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director respectively
on 7 February 2012. Mr. Liu Lei was re-designated as Non-
executive Director on 7 February 2012. Mr. Gao Qingju resigned
as Independent Non-executive Director on 7 February 2012.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions and
monitor the daily operation of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

A.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (continued)

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that there is no immediate need to separate
the roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company because the role of chief executive officer/general
manager of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are
performed by other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
light of the future development of the operating activities or
businesses of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three Independent Non-
executive Directors of whom Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

During the year under review, the Board as a whole is
responsible for the selection and approval of candidates for
appointment to the Board and did not therefore establish a
nomination committee.

In Compliance with the forthcoming amendments to the Listing
Rules which will be effective on 1 April 2012, a nomination
committee of the Company comprising Mr. Han Jingyuan
(“Mr. Han”) as chairman and Mr. Yu Tung Ho (“Mr. Yu”),
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (“Mr. Wong”) and Mr. Wang
Tianyi (“Mr. Wang”) as members has been established by the
Board with written terms of reference effective from 23 March
2012. Mr. Han is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and Mr. Yu, Mr. Wong and Mr. Wang are
Independent Non—executive Directors of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time (or if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman of the Board
and/or the Managing Director of the Company shall not, whilst
holding such office, be subject to the retirement by rotation
or be taken into account in determining the number of the
Directors to retire in each year and the Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall not be
taken into account in determining which particular Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. The
Company will consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with
the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.

Taking the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code into
consideration, Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman of the
Company, is willing to retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

All the Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan,
Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Han
Li (appointed as an Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 7 February 2012) are appointed for a fixed term of
three years. Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee, Mr. Jean-Paul Georges
Schuler (resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 24 February 2011), Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
(appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 24 February 2011) and Mr. Ondra Otradovec are
appointed a fixed term of two years. Mr. Liu Lei (re-designated
as a Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
7 February 2012) is appointed from 7 February 2012 till 31
December 2012. All Independent Non-executive Directors,
including Mr. Gao Qingju (resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 7 February
2012), Mr. Yu Tung Ho, Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis and
Mr. Wang Tianyi (appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 7 February 2012) are
appointed for a fixed term of one year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Except for the change in the Board as mentioned above,
during the year under review, no Director was appointed to fill
any causal vacancy or otherwise.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Codge”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed with the Company that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.

Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities

and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(7)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since 2005.
[t comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
during the year under review in compliance with Rules
3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee’s term
of reference includes those specific duties as set out in
the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. Pursuant to
its term of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, two committee
meetings were held, one to consider the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2010 including the discussion of internal control report
submitted by the Group’s internal audit department and
one to consider the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2011 including the discussion of
internal control report submitted by the Group’s internal
audit department.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.  Board Committees (continued)

(7)

@)

Audit Committee (continued)

The attendance record for each member of the Audit
Committee for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set

EER(EERD®

(7)

B

=t—HIEFEERRZEER

out as follows: EHFLHENAT
Number of Audit

Audit Committee meeting
Committee members Attended
EREEERE EREEEERHERY
Mr. Gao Qingju maREE 2/2

(resigned on 7 February 2012) (RZZE——F=RtHET)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REVERE 2/2
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BYXCORAEA 2/2
* Mr. Wang Tianyi was appointed as Independent Non- * FREXEN T —-F=

executive Director of the Company and member of
the Audit Committee on 7 February 2012.

In compliance with the amendments to the Listing
Rules which will be effective on 1 April 2012, the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee was revised and
approved by the Board on 23 March 2012.

Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, a
majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
should be Independent Non-executive Directors.
Currently, the Remuneration Committee consists of
the Chairman and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company.

2
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued) BEER(EERD®

F.  Board Committees (continued) F. E=ZE2@w)
(2)  Remuneration Committee (continued) 2 FHEZEE )

The Remuneration Committee’s term of reference
includes those specific duties as set out in the Code
Provision B.1.3 of the CG Code. Pursuant to its term
of reference, the Remuneration Committee is required,
amongst other things, to review and recommend to
the Board the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and senior
management, to review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
to review and approve the compensation payable to
the Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and
senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such compensation
is otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;
and to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
should meet at least once a year and when the need
arises.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, four meetings
of Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follow:

Remuneration
Committee members

FWEZEg s BiEGERIED
¥ERTAIEBA3IESTBIE
XEREYI 2 ERE - RIEH
BiEHE gmMEagA(H
REE)EZRTNESRES
WITES  FRTEERSR
EEBEZHWERN  2ETR
MEERFAZEEFKE
DR LR R IR R B
T BRMUEERMNRTE
E FRTEERSREERE
ERARERASRIEBUNE
E 2 B EUBRZERE TR
BHEESOGRmETE BEAR
NAMEBAFTMIEAE - U
MR EEEL2HET A
ZEHH - FNEECREFR
LPBA—RERUARNES

RAMEE o

RBEE-_FT——F+=-A
=t+—HLEFE FHEES
BITMRER - RREEKE

ZHERERIT

Number of
Remuneration Committee
meeting Attended

FMZEEENE FHEEEERHERH

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRARIR 4/4

Mr. Gao Qingju EBREE 4/4

(resigned on 7 February 2012) (N=—F——F— A+AE/T)

Mr. Yu Tung Ho REELE 4/4

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis TN RAEE 4/4

* Mr. Wang Tianyi was appointed as Independent Non- * TREHLFV2012F2A7THELZTE
executive Director of the Company and member of RABIBIIFRTEERHFNEE S
the Remuneration Committee on 7 February 2012. =
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.  Board Committees (continued)

(2)  Remuneration Committee (continued)

In Compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules
which will be effective on 1 April 2012, Mr. Han Jingyuan
will cease to be the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and Mr. Wong Man Chung,
Francis has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 23 March
2012. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee was revised and approved by the Board on
23 March 2012.

(3)  Nomination Committee

The Board announces that a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) of the Company comprising
Mr. Han Jingyuan (“Mr. Han”) as Chairman and Mr. Yu
Tung Ho (“Mr. Yu”), Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (“Mr.
Wong”) and Mr. Wang Tianyi (“Mr. Wang”) as members
has been established by the Board with written terms of
reference effective from 23 March 2012. Mr. Han is the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and Mr. Yu, Mr. Wong and Mr. Wang are Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee was approved
by the Board on 23 March 2012.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Financial Reporting (continued)

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Internal Controls

The Board recognises that constant changes taking place in the
business environment call for periodical reviews of the system of
internal controls. Well-managed internal controls enable effective
and efficient operations, ensure the reliability of internal and external
reporting and assist in the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board recognises that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is primarily
responsible for designing and implementing the policies and
procedures of the internal controls, which the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the actions of senior management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls previously established.

The Company’s internal audit function is performed by the Internal
Audit Department which reports to the Chief Operating Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer and has direct access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Chief Operating Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer report directly to the Chief Executive Officer. The
internal audit functions include (i) review and report on internal and
operational controls, (i) follow-up on the suggestions made by
external auditors, (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews on different
operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern identified
by senior management.

However, internal control can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against errors or deliberate attempt to defraud
the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee devote to
closely monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. Periodical meetings will be held and
guidance notes and training will be issued and provided to the senior
management where appropriate, to ensure an efficient and effective
system of internal control is in place.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor

For the year ended 31 December 2011 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim
review and taxation services) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms of the same international network for the year
ended 31 December 2011 were RMB 4.8 million and RMB 0.9 million
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2011 and up to the date of this
report, PricewaterhouseCoopers and its member firms of the same
international network provided non-audit services mainly on interim
review and taxation services. These non-audit services are engaged
only as they are more effective or economical than those available
from other service providers and will not constitute adverse impact
on the independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2011 have been scrutinized by the Audit Committee.
Please refer to Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of the fees to auditor.

Risk Management

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results of operation
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. The factors set out below are those that the Company
believes could result in the Group’s financial conditions or results
of operations differing materially from expected or historical results.
There may be other risks in addition to those mentioned below which
are unknown to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Operation Risk

The Group’s results are affected by trends in the industry in which
it operates. Income from the operations is dependent upon the
conditions in global iron and steel market and therefore there can
be no assurance that changes in these conditions will not adversely
affect the Group’s financial conditions and results of operations.

Market Risk

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the Mainland China. The Group operates in
highly competitive and rapidly changing market. The intensification
of price competition by existing competitors, product innovation or
technical advancement could adversely affect the Group’s financial
conditions and results operations.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate

Credit risk arises from a number of areas. These include the
possibility that a counter-party in a transaction may default during
the settlement process. It also arises from lending, settlement,
treasury, transaction and other activities undertaken by the Group.
During the year under review, the Group has not undertaken any
activities in any hedging or derivative instruments. The Group has
not established any risk management committee. The day-to-day
credit management is performed by the Operation Department of
the respective subsidiaries with reference to the creditworthiness,
the type and value of collateral available, the length of business
relationship with the counter-parties and the receipt of bank
acceptance notes from customers.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s Senior Notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland China. Any change in the policy and
procedure in the Mainland China may have adverse effects on the
Group’s operation and results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

NEW REQUIREMENTS

According to the consultation conclusions published by the
Stock Exchange on review of the Corporate Governance Code
and associated Listing Rules on October 2011 (the “Consultation
Conclusions”), the Board has restructured corporate governance
practice, including but not limited to the change in composition
and terms of reference for the existing Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, the set-up of the Nomination Committee
and its terms of reference. The Board has published the information
in accordance with the implementation date set in the Consultation
Conclusions.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the shareholders of the Company. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to shareholders of the Company in a timely
manner through a number of formal channels, which include interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the shareholders of the Company and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior management
of the Group and where applicable, the Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) are available to answer
questions at the general meeting of the Company.

The rights of the shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a
poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meeting on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Director.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationship with its shareholders. Enquiries from the shareholders of
the Company are dealt with in a informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communications, the Company also
maintains a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any). The
Company has established its Shareholder Communication Policy
and is available on its website.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general
meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.
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The Board presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011,

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were
listed on the Stock Exchange on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s principal activities are
investment holding and trading of iron and steel products. The
principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sales of iron
and steel products.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the PRC and mainly from the production and
sales of iron and steel products for the year ended 31 December
2011 and are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2011 and its consolidated balance sheet as at that date,
together with the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2011, are set out in the financial statements on pages 72 to 76.

At a Board meeting held on 23 March 2012, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2011.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 22 May 2012 to Thursday, 24 May 2012 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the Company
may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting.
The record date for the annual general meeting shall be 24 May
2012. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 21 May
2012,

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, is set out on page 236.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year

are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s accumulated losses
amounted to RMB 430 million (2010: RMB 158 million).

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 4,991 million (2010: RMB 4,289 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2011 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Jingyuan

Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling

Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee

Mr. Han Li (appointed on 7 February 2012)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar

Mr. Liu Lei (re-designated on 7 February 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju
(resigned on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
(appointed on 7 February 2012)

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company, Mr. Han
Jingyuan, Mr. Ondra Otradovec and Mr. Yu Tung Ho will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Han
Jingyuan is the father of Mr. Han Li, the Executive Director of the
Company.

In accordance to the Bye-laws 86(2) of the Company, Mr. Han Li, Mr.
Liu Lei and Mr. Wang Tianyi being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Han Li is
the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and controlling shareholder of the Company.

The annual fee specified in each of existing service contracts of Mr.
Han Jingyuan, Mr. Han Li, Mr. Ondra Otradovec, Mr. Liu Lei, Mr.
Yu Tung Ho and Mr. Wang Tianyi are HK$600,000, HK$400,000,
HK$400,000, HK$400,000, HK$400,000 and HK$400,000
respectively. The basis of determining the Directors’ fee was based
on the mutual negotiation between the Directors with reference to
the range of prevailing directors’ fee for directors of listed companies
in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed in this annual report, and except
Mr. Han Li is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Han Li, Mr. Ondra Otradovec, Mr. Liu Lei, Mr. Yu Tung Ho and
Mr. Wang Tianyi do not have any relationships with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 21 to 27 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Five Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years, one Executive Director and two Non-
executive Director have service contracts with the Company for
a fixed term of two years, while the remaining one Non-executive
Directors has service contract with the Company till 31 December
2012, which may be terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors have service contracts
for a fixed term of one year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Zhu Jun and Mr. Shen Xiaoling (Executive
Directors of the Company and its subsidiary) have service contracts
with the Company’s subsidiary on 9 June 2003 for a fixed term of five
years commencing from 9 June 2003 which are exempted under the
Listing Rules. Actual amount of salary was not specified in the service
contracts other than the clause which stated that after probation,
the employees will be paid according to the salary of the post. The
service contracts may be terminated by the Company’s subsidiary
by paying compensation equivalent to the unfulfilled contract’s salary
and one month’s salary for each year of service completed. The
aforesaid services contracts with the subsidiaries are expired.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the interest and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SECURITIES (continued)

U
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Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 1)
BERLE (B 1)
Mr. Zhu Jun

RELE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Y3sp i

Mr. Zhu Hao
ERE

Mr. Muktesh Mukheriee
Muktesh Mukherjee 954

Mr. Han Li (appointed on 7 February 2012)
BHEE(RN-T——F-FHEZRT)

Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler
(resigned on 24 February 2011)

Jean-Paul Georges Schuler 7t £
(R=E——FZA-TWAFT)

Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Ondra Otradovec 5t 4

Mr. Liu Lei (re-designated on 7 February 2012)
EEE(R-B——5- A+ BHAL)

Mr. Gao Qingju (resigned on 7 February 2012)
SERELE(R-_E——E_F+AEMA)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho

REUERE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
BEXREL

Mr. Wang Tianyi (appointed on 7 February 2012)
IXEEEN-_E——F_FtBEZRT)

Interests in Shares

R ER
Corporate Personal
Interest Interest
ARER AR
1,317,502,849 -
- 2,800,000
- 2,400,000
- 2,400,000
- 2,400,000
- 1,686,000
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Interests in
underlying Percentage
shares of the

pursuant to Company’s
share issued share
options capital
RIBBRE P NG|
EHBERG  EBORX

o £ ER
- 44.97%
18,700,000 0.73%
5,200,000 0.26%
5,200,000 0.26%
5,200,000 0.18%
5,200,000 0.18%
2,800,000 0.10%
1,500,000 0.05%
4,000,000 0.14%
5,200,000 0.26%
4,000,000 0.19%
4,000,000 0.14%
4,300,000 0.15%
- 0%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

U

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

(continued)

Note:

At 31 December 2011, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially
owned 63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing
Holdings Limited (“Wellbeing Holdings”) and held 16.09%
of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings on trust
for the benefit of certain employees of the subsidiary of
the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially owned
1,255,849,124 Shares, representing approximately 42.87%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Han also
beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Chingford Holdings Limited (“Chingford Holdings”) which
beneficially owned 61,653,725 Shares, representing
approximately 2.10% of the issued Shares.

At 31 December 2011, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owns
2,800,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Directors’ Report EE k&

EENEFNEBRRAR @

(i) Interests in the ordinary shares of the Company’s associated (i)  RAARDQBRE S DT EKR DA
corporations: %5
Name of Approximate
associated percentage of
corporation Nature of Interest Paid-in capital shareholding
BELRER RtE BRRA BORREDL
(RMB' 000)
(AR®F )
Mr. Han Jingyuan Hebei Jinxi Section Interests in Hebei Jinxi Section 350,000 1.64%
BAREE Steel Company Limited Steel Company Limited through
TILERAEER AR Qianxi County Hui Yin Trading
Company Limited Metes
BRERGERIZERAA
EET R RAR AT
HyiEsaey
Mr. Zhu Jun Hebei Jinxi Section Steel Interests in Hebei Jinxi Section Steel 350,000 0.92%
RELE Company Limited Company Limited through Qianxi
AL RREEAR AR County Hui Yin Trading
Company Limited Metes
BRERGERIZERAR
EETIRREMERAT
HyiEs e
Mr. Shen Xiaoling Hebei Jinxi Section Steel Interests in Hebei Jinxi Section Steel 350,000 0.88%

HERTE

Company Limited
M EEREER AR

Company Limited through Qianxi
County Hui Yin Trading
Company Limited Mees

BRERFERTEER,

al

FEALRRAHERAT

Bk i)

Notes:

M

Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Zhu Jun and Mr. Shen Xiaoling
beneficially owns 8.22%, 4.58% and 4.42% equity interests
respectively in Qianxi County Hui Yin Trading Company
Limited which holds 20% equity interests in Hebei Jinxi
Section Steel Company Limited.

As announced by the Company on 7 March 2012, Hebei
Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi
Limited”) entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Qianxi County Hui Yin Trading Company Limited (“Hui Yin”)
pursuant to which Jinxi Limited has conditionally agreed to
acquire 20% equity interest in the Hebei Jinxi Section Steel
Company Limited (“Jinxi Section Steel”) from Hui Yin. Upon
completion of the acquisition, Jinxi Limited will increase its
equity interests in Jinxi Section Steel from 80% to 100% and
Jinxi Section Steel will become a wholly owned subsidiary of
Jinxi Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

@iy Interest in the debentures of the Company
Corporate
Interest
RS
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 2) US$19,000,000(Note 1)
EHR AL (fE2) 19,000,000 % T (7t 1)
Notes:

M

US$550 million 8% senior notes due 2015 of the Company
was issued at 11 August 2010. (“2015 Senior Notes”).

At 31 December 2011, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned
100% of the issued share capital of Eastland International
Trading Limited, which beneficially owned US$4,500,000 of
the debenture of the Company.

Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned 63.15% of the issued
share capital of Wellbeing Holdings and held 16.09% of
the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings on trust
for the benefit of certain employees of the subsidiary of
the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially owned
US$14,500,000 of the debenture of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled

Share Option Scheme” below, at 31 December 2011, none

of the Directors, chief executives and their associates had any

interest and short positions in the Shares, underlying shares

and Senior Notes of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of SFO) as recorded in the

register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or

as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options were granted to eligible participants under a share
option scheme approved and adopted by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 17 May 2006 (“2006
Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme approved and
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 20 December 2010 (2010 Share Option Scheme”)
(together with the 2006 Share Option Scheme, collectively referred
to as (“Share Option Schemes”)) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who are regarded as
valuable human resources of the Group or who have contributed to
the growth and success of the Group with their performance and
other factors (e.g. their years of service with the Company and/or
work experience and/or knowledge in the industry etc.) to contribute
further to the Company.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise of
an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Scheme the
Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting of an
option on a case by case basis taking into account of the relevant
factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers appropriate.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the Share Option
Schemes to each eligible participant within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years from their respective dates of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the
Directors at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the
highest of: (a) the closing price of shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (b) the average closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.

The consideration payable on acceptance of all of the options under
the Share Option Schemes are HK$1.00.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes upon exercising of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised is 229,470,000 Shares, representing
approximately 7.83% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

On 14 January 2011, share options to subscribe for 800,000 Shares
were granted to the grantees at an exercise price of HK$3.20 per
share under the 2010 Share Option Scheme which represents the
highest of () the closing price of HK$3.20 per Share as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of the share options, i.e. 14 January 2011 (the “Date of Grant”);
(i) the average closing price of HK$3.118 per Share as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of Share, which is HK$0.10. The share options
are exercisable by the grantees in the following manners: (1) up to
33% of the share options granted to each grantee on or after 14
January 2011; (2) up to further 66% of the share options granted to
each grantee on or after 14 January 2012; (3) all the remaining share
options granted to each grantee on or after 14 January 2013, and in
each case, not later than 13 January 2021.

On 28 March 2011, share options to subscribe for 9,800,000
Shares were conditionally granted to Mr. Han Jingyuan subject to
the approval by the independent shareholders of the Company at
the special general meeting at an exercise price of HK$3.08 per
Share under the 2010 Share Option Scheme which represents the
highest of () the closing price of HK$3.08 per Share as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of the share options, i.e. 28 March 2011 (the “Date of Grant”);
(ii) the average closing price of HK$2.814 per Share as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of Share, which is HK$0.10. The share options are
exercisable by Mr. Han Jingyuan in the following manners: (1) up to
40% of the share options granted to Mr. Han Jingyuan on or after
the date of the approval of the grant of options by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 27 April 2011 (the “Date of Approval”); (2) up to 70% of the share
options granted to Mr. Han Jingyuan on or after one year from the
Date of Approval; (3) all the remaining share options granted to Mr.
Han Jingyuan on or after two years from the Date of Approval, and
in each case, not later than 27 March 2021.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2006 Share
Option Scheme are 290,500,000 Shares, representing 9.9% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2011.
Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option Scheme includes
all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of any company in the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an employment
or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid or
unpaid). Details of the share options outstanding under 2006 Share
Option Scheme were as follows:

i S

Closing price
per share
immediately ~ No. of options
Exercisable hefore the  outstanding at
Date of grant Period  Exercise price  date of grant 1Jan 2011
SRR -A-H

el AEN
g¥R AORER #E  SRY®E  BREER

HKS HKS
BT BT

M. Han Jingyuan 2009/2/24 2000/2/24 139 124 2,900,000

B o
E3

201972123

2010/11/26

fo
=

x
2016/5/16

Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2124 2009/2124 139 124 2,600,000

RERE fo

iy

E
201972123

. Shen Xiaoling 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 139 124 2,600,000

Py to

oy

E
201972123

201012120 300 300 6,000,000

LRSS BRES &2

RIE2006 FEARERTE] - AR E IR
BEHE - DAGEAR I8 2006 BE AR A 5T 214% H &Y
FT 75 BB AR R M 1T B AT B2 1T R AR 10 4R B
#%290,500,000 IX B 17+ th AR R AR =
T——F+ A=+ —HMBEBITRAE
9.9% ° 2006 T B & EIR 2 HE
BREARREBER(ERNTESHIE
BITESERERESE L) RAEEEMA
RERRSAEBETAKERTHAER
REXNTMEENIMEE (BREH
) (TREERER  GHEE
S HAME KRR X E) o 2006 HEARERT
BT MARITE R B IBT

Approximate

shareholding

percentage of

the underlying

No. of options shares for

No. of options exercised/  No.of options  the options
granted cancelled/ outstandingat inthe share
during  lapsed during 31 December capital of

the year the year 2011 the Company

REER RCER--F 0 BREER

ReER BAE/EE/ toA=t-B RBEALE
il Pl AN RANER
BREZE  BRENE  RREER  BWAOM

- - 2,900,000 0.10%
- - 6,000,000 0.20%
- - 2,600,000 0.09%
- - 2,600,000 0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR REEENEBIRESTE 2
Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Closing price No. of options shares for
per share No. of options exercised/  No. of options the options
immediately ~ No. of options granted cancelled/ outstandingat in the share
Exercisable before the  outstanding at during  lapsed during 31 December capital of
Date of grant Period  Exercise price  date of grant 1 Jan 2011 the year the year 2011 the Company
H-g--% MEER NoB--F BRERE

SRRDE -A-# MR BfR/EE/ T2RZt-A RBERLA
RFEHH K i &k AOEN  BANRE
RFR UAEER fEE  SKY®E  BREEE  BREBE  BRERE  RREHR  AMAEM

HKS HKS
BT B

M. Zhu Hao 2000/2/24 2009/2/24 139 124 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
REEE o
S
2019/2/23

Mr. Muktesh Mukheriee 2009/5/11 2009/5/11 150 149 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
Muktesh Mukherjee 725 0
E
2019510

Mr HanLi 2000/12/29 20101329 284 217 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 0.05%
(appointed on 7 February 2012) fo
Bnks 3
(W-F-—£-BLAERM) 201912128

Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler ~ 2009/5/11 2009/5/11 150 149 2,000,000 - 500,000 1,500,000 0.05%

(resigned on 24 Feb 2011) fo (Note 1)
Jean-Paul Georges Schuler E (1)

(W-R-——F-A-THERL) 20197510

Mr, Onara Otradovec 2000/5/11 2009/5/11 1.50 149 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
Onora Otradovec 24 o
S
2019/5/10

Mr, Lu Lei 2000/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
(re-designated on 7 Feb 2012) fo
it E
(W-Z-—F- At RERE) 2019223

Mr. Gao Qingju 2000/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
(resigned on 7 Feb 2012) fo
BERfE z
(W-E-—£-AtAEA) 2019223
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

DRGSR B IRER &)

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Closing price No. of options shares for
per share No. of options exercised/  No. of options the options
immediately ~ No. of options granted cancelled/ outstandingat in the share
Exercisable before the  outstanding at during lapsed during 31 December capital of
Date of grant Period  Exercise price  date of grant 1Jan 2011 the year the year 2011 the Company
R%--% MEER  RZE--F BREEE
SiERE -B-E WRER BRE/HEE/ TSRZT-R RBEADA
RFAAN RTEH RFH Xk AEE  RANRE
BFR AfREE ik SRYTE  BREHE  BREHE  BREEE  BREEE  #HEAR
HKS HKS
#7 B
Mr. Yu Tung Ho 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 139 124 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
RRERE o
S
20192123
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis 20092124 2000/2/24 1.39 1.4 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
TR o
E
20192/23
Employess 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 139 124 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.04%
[E8 o
S
20192123
Employess 200912/29 2010329 284 211 140,450,000 - 400000 140,050,000 4.78%
= o Note 1)
F (1)
201912128
Total
adt 175,150,000 - 900000 174,250,000 5.95%
Note: i
1. 900,000 options were lapsed during the year. 1. FAFEMA » 900,000 I EERS D ik
* Mr. Wang Tianyi was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive * FAREBEEEN S ——F-_A+HESZ

Director on 7 February 2012 and was not granted any options
under the 2006 Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2011,

EABTIFHTES BE- T4
+-B=t—BL - RRERE-FE
AR BV RS R -
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the Company can issue
options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme are 146,486,250 Shares, representing 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2011. Eligible
participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme includes all Directors
(whether Executive or Non-executive and whether independent or
not), any employees (whether full-time or part-time) of any company
in the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (whether on an employment or contractual
or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid) and
any person considered by the Directors to have contributions to
any company in the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds an equity interest. Details of the share options
outstanding under 2010 Share Option Scheme were as follows:

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B 3% B A BR A 7]

DR R B IRER &)

RIF2010 AR #ERT & - AARIAIE LB
BEHE - DAfEAR #2010 BE AR i A 811 H &Y
FrE MBI T R A 1T RO AR D A 2k
73146,486,250 1K Bz 7 (h AR R AR =
T——F+ A=+ —HMEBITRAE
5% ° 2010 EREFT IS BERBEER
RARAERES(ERPITESTIIERN
TEEREREGENY) AEBEERK
BRARISAEEEMKE R FFARA
BENTREENTAES (BREBK
FE) (TwmHEERER - 6403 %E
HtHEERERZH) RESRAHAS
E{EAKE Ral Sk AEBERKE QA
BERAEZNEMNEEIELERNE
Al At o 2010 BB AR T &I T MR TT Y
BAREFIENT
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Mr. Han Jingyuan
#Ess

Mr. Zhu Jun
RERE

Mr. Shen Xigoling
MEREL

Mr. Zhu Hao
RERE

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
Muktesh Mukheries %

Mr. Han Li
(appointed on 7 February 2012)

Exercisable
Date of grant Period

B¥R  ARER

0110328 2011/0427

0]
=

x
2021/03/27

20101224 20101224
[

iy
x

20201219

201012024 201012124

0]
=

x
20201219

01012124 2010112724

[

iy
x

20201219

201012024 201012124
fo

E3

202011219

01012124 2010112724
fo

Bhik 3
(W=F-—E-RLHEER) 20201219
Mr. Ondra Otradovec 2010/12/24 201012724
Ondra Otradoves 76 fo
Y

20201219

Mr. Liu Lei 2010/12/24 201012724
(re-designated on 7 Feb 2012) fo
Hank 3
(W=F-—E-RtAERD) 20201219

Exercise price

TR
HKS

3.08

Closing price

per share
immediately ~ No. of options
before the ~ outstanding at
date of grant 1Jan 2011
H-g--%
SiERE -RB-8
R A RTEH
ShymE  BREEHA

HKS

o

3.08 -

37 2,600,000

3 2,600,000

37 2,600,000

3 2,600,000

37 1,200,000

3 2,000,000

37 2,600,000

DRGSR B IRER &)

No. of options
granted
during

the year

REER
i
BRERE

9,800,000

No. of options
exercised/  No. of options
cancelled/  outstanding at
lapsed during 31 December
the year 2011
MEER RZB--F
BffE/2%/ tZAZ1-R
Xt RiTRH
BhE®E  BREmE

- 9,800,000

- 2,600,000

- 2,600,000

- 2,600,000

- 2,600,000

- 1,200,000

- 2,000,000

- 2,600,000
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Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company
ERERE
RGERLE
el
BAEAY

0.33%

0.09%

0.09%

0.09%

0.09%

0.04%

0.07%

0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant
sl
Mr. Gao Qingju 201012724
(resigned on 7 Feb 2012)
Bt )
(W-E-—£-ALAEA)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho 201012724
RERE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ 2010/12/24
AXFEE

Employees 201012124
&

Employee 011114
|

Qther Participants 201012124
Eippak

2. 1,800,000 options were lapsed during the year.

Exercisable
Period

TEEE

201012024

to

£

2020112119

2010112724

[

ey
x

20201219

201012124

to
=

x
202011219

2010112724

f0

ey
x

20201219

o~

201111
fo

S
2021113
201012724
[

ey
x

20201219

Exercise price

320

Closing price
per share
immediately
before the
date of grant

SRRDE
RFEHH
SRymE
HKS
7

3

No. of options

DR R B IRER &)

Approximate

shareholding

percentage of

the underlying

No. of options shares for

No. of options exercised/  No. of options the options
granted cancelled/ outstandingat in the share

outstanding at during  lapsed during 31 December capital of
1 Jan 2011 the year the year 2011 the Company
H-g--% MEER NoB--F BRERE
-A-H WRER BAR/HEE/ oS- REGRDE
RTEH b5k XK AEE RANRE
BhEEE  BREHE  BREHE  BREEE  HKESM
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
2,300,000 - - 2,300,000 0.08%
23,200,000 - 1,000,000 22,200,000 0.75%
(Note 2)
(i)
- 800,000 - 800,000 0.08%
1,400,000 - 800,000 600,000 0.02%
(Note 2)
(i)
47,100,000 10,600,000 1,800,000 55,900,000 191%
i1

Mr. Wang Tianyi was appointed as an Independent Non-executive

Director on 7 February 2012 and was not granted any options
under the 2010 Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2011.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The value of the options granted during the year is RMB 12.24
million, based on the Black-Scholes valuation model. Please refer
to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements for the details
of the significant inputs into the model. The Black-Scholes model is
developed to estimate the fair value of European share options. The
fair values calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to
the assumptions made and the limitations of the model used. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Any change in variables so adopted may materially
affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

The accounting policy for equity — settled share option is stated in the
Note 2.22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

DRGSR B IRER &)

REBEN R —FRHHEELGE  ©
FARLNBERREE/RARE1,2248
T BRMENNTRR AEBFIE -
B2HRAVBHRERME2 - AR —
HFRAEEELE EHEBNBREDN
DNREE - ERAERKREATAELS
RE|- FAEF R AR BEFEEBLT
MERE BREBERESTIER

B AL UMBBRED A BEGEEE
EARE -

RS E B ST ERN A #
w2220 27 -

ESRBRODEFHNER

B EXXCPTRBEE SN - R EF REIRE
MEEFNEFTAREEBNEBIKRHD
TNAEN FREREBBEARARFR
EEMEAN BB R EFMERE
A - IITEEARFERN  MARRK
HAEER AR - [/ XK B AR MM B
NEBER AR R B BUEARRRIE
= RESENRBIRHTN\ERNT
2R B E TR A ABRRBAZEEN

EXREW
Bk £ X AT EEE SN B I S SRR MY
ABFIRBER B - 1R S E AT

B B A AR R I 4 B R B s H Y
RAEIMAEMERAEL °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

are as follows:

Name

=1

Wellbeing Holdings

ArcelorMittal Holdings AG
(formerly known as Mittal Steel Holdings AG)

(“AM Holdings AG”) (Note 1)
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG

(A7 5 Mittal Steel Holdings AG)
([ AM Holdings AG ) (#&5E 1)

ING Bank N.V. (Note 2) (f&7£2)

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
(Note 3) (&7 3)

Number of
shares held

FrsROEA
1,255,849,124

867,711,151

509,780,740

289,990,800
289,990,800

220,934,306
219,801,940

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B 3% B A BR A 7]

FERR

N—_E——F+_A=+—H  BEX
NAIRBES KB EHE 86 IEFFE
MR BT - FRAT(RRRE
FERFETHABRINRARR RN K
HEARMNEENERSIART

Percentage
of the Company’s
issued share

capital Long/Short
EARATE Position
BITRAT DL 7 RKE
42.87% Long (#F)

29.62% Long (&f)

17.40% Long (#F)

9.90% Long (%F)

9.90% Short (%)

7.54% Long (4F)

7.50% Short (%)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

M

At 31 December 2011, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs.
Usha Mittal directly own 40.84% and indirectly own 40.84% of
the issued share capital of ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds
the entire equity interest in AM Holdings AG. AM Holdings
AG beneficially owns 867,711,151 Shares, representing
approximately 29.62% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

On 30 April 2008, AM Holdings AG entered into a put
option agreement with ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft, pursuant to which AM Holdings AG granted an
option to ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
over an aggregate of 509,780,740 Shares, representing 17.40%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

On 25 March 2011, AM Holdings AG entered into the extended
put option agreements with each of ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft by extending the aforesaid put option
agreements for a further term of 36 months from 30 April 2011.

On 30 April 2008, AM Holdings AG and ING Bank N.V. entered
into a put option agreement, pursuant to which AM Holdings AG
granted an option to ING Bank N.V. to sell 289,990,800 Shares.
As at 31 December 2011, ING Bank N.V. owned 289,990,800
Shares, representing 9.90% of the issued shares capital of the
Company.

On 25 March 2011, AM Holdings AG entered into an extended put
option agreement with ING Bank N.V. by extending the aforesaid
put option agreement for a further term of 36 months from 30 April
2011.

FERR®

i

(1)

RZT——F+=ZH=+—H rLakshmi
Niwas Mittal %t & A Usha Mittal A X
H % ¥ B ArcelorMittal & 2 17 i 15
40.84% A [ ¥ % B ArcelorMittal £ 2
17R% 19 40.84% + T ArcelorMittal i £
#45 AM Holdings AG 2 2B AN RS
AM Holdings AG Bz 4H 867,711,151
AR QERRG + AL AR R B BIT]
1D E) 29.62% 125

EA;E%\EE HA=+8 ' AM Holdings
G/ BIEEING Bank N.V.#1Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft 3] 7 — 32
SHERHE S - 5tk AM Holdings AG %
BI#%F ING Bank N.V. #l Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft —EFR A B - &3k
509,780,740 IR BI AR A RIA& 1D + #9MhEAR
NRIEEITARNAI17.40% HEas o

RZE——F=RA=Z+HA AM
Holdings AG % BIIE2ING Bank N.V. ﬁ‘u
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft 287

—ME R - 2R
55/3\)%%%%.3&9’9@%%*?——@@)%
=T HE—FER=T/SEA -

MRZZZ)\FWA=+H ' AM Holdings
AGEHLING Bank N.V. 25T T — 19724
HIHE 1 2% 0 ¥& LEAM Holdings AG#R
FING Bank N.V. — &4 B n] B &
289,990,800 M) R A A FE 3 - I =
T——F+=-F=+—H " ING Bank
N.V.$# 5 289,990,800 i% &) /& 2 7 B&
15 #MEAR QBB TR #99.90% 12

P

BX

RZTE——F=AZ+HH AM
Holdlngs AGE2ING Bank N.V. 851 7 —
{ wu/ﬁxﬁﬂﬁéﬁfau HﬂJ:LZu/L,/\EHJq

%Wz%ﬁ’ﬂi,ﬁﬁm:?——iﬂﬂ =+H
E—HER=1XEA -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Notes (continued)

(8)  On 30 April 2008, AM Holdings AG and Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft entered into a put option agreement in
which AM Holdings AG granted an option to Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft to sell 219,789,940 Shares. As at 31 December
2011, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft owned 220,934,306
Shares, representing 7.54% of the issued shares capital of the
Company.

On 25 March 2011, AM Holdings AG entered into an extended
put option agreement with Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft by
extending the aforesaid put option agreement for a further term of
36 months from 30 April 2011.

Saved as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities sections, at 31 December 2011, no person,
other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the following transactions between certain
connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group
have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant
announcements and independent shareholders’ approval, if
necessary, had been made and obtained by the Company in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Connected transaction

During the period between March to December 2011, Hebei
Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
purchased from Pingquan County Jinyin Charging Company
Limited (“Pingquan County Jinyin”), an associate of a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, certain
quantities of lime products on normal commercial terms for an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB 11.4 million.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B 3% B A BR A 7]

EERRR @)
EAC )

B MRZZTZENFMA=-+H 'AM Holdings
AG £ Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
BRI T —HORAGHERZE B
AM Holdings AG#% T Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft —{Ez25E HA#EA] H &
219,789,940 R A R AR D « M= F
——%+= A=+—H -Deutsche Bank
AG#5H 220,934,306 B HY AN A B -
RAMERATEBEITIRINE 7.54% 5 -

WZZE—-——F=ZRF=+HHA"
AM Holdings AG EDeutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft 2 5] 7 — 5 K24
MR - g Ll RO BRI AR e
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B E XA IREEE INE R B RN E A
BILRB MM R-F——F+_H
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BHERS
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1L AR A R IEIR B BOR L/ (AT
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions

On 3 December 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Longba Charging Company
Limited (“Longba Charging”), an associate of a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase
of lime products and related products from Longba Charging
by Jinxi Limited for the period from 3 December 2008 to 31
December 2010. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2011 was set at RMB 140,000,000
as set out in the announcement dated 25 October 2010.
The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2011 was revised from RMB 140,000,000 to
RMB 213,840,000 as set out in the announcement dated 14
October 2011. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB 161.3 million
(excluding VAT).

On 3 December 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Jinxin Mining Company Limited
(“dinxin Mining”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase of iron powder
and related products from Jinxin Mining by Jinxi Limited for
the period from 3 December 2008 to 31 December 2010. On
17 November 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into the Renewal
Master agreement with Jinxin Mining pursuant to which Jinxi
Limited or its subsidiaries can purchase iron powder and
related products from Jinxin Mining for a further term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2011 and expiring on 31
December 2013. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB 1,177 million. The
total amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred by Jinxi
Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2011 was RMB 332.6 million (excluding VAT).

BEXS#E)
Q) HEBHERS

RZEZENF+_A=H " 2AEH
HEBAZREFEENERETAA
([BEBER]) KRB ARIE
ERRMNBEALT - SREAREA
EHENEEARERMEEE®D
RN —MERWE  B-TTNF
+—A=ZHE=ZE—ZTF+=A
=t+—Hit- MB#WA-_ZT—TF
TAZTRENREME X5
MBE=—F——F+=A=1—H
IEFE LR & A K ® 140,000,000
T MBEEA-_ZT——F+ /1M
HEREME  ZXH5NBE_F
——F+-A=+—HLFELR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 31 December 2008, Jinxi Limited, Jinxin Mining and
Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Company Limited (“Jinjin Mine”)
entered into certain agreements and an authority mandatory
agreement in relation to granting of the management and
operation right of Jinjin Mine by Jinxi Limited to Jinxin Mining
for a period from 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2011. Jinxi
Limited and Jinxin Mining holds 51% and 49% equity interest
in Jinjin Mine respectively. The total amount of the aforesaid
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB
6.5 million.

On 10 March 2010, Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet
Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework
agreement with Foshan Jin Lan Import and Exports Company
Limited (“Jin Lan I&E”), a company controlled by the daughter
of Mr. Zhou Weijie who is a substantial shareholder of Jinxi
Jinlan for the sale of iron and steel products by Jinxi Jinlan
to Jin Lan I&E at a selling price not lower than the prevailing
market price for the period from 10 March 2010 to 31
December 2012. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB 110 million. The
total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31
December 2011 was RMB 2.5 million (excluding VAT).

On 18 June 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Foshan Jin Lan Group Company Limited
(“din Lan Group”), a connected person of the Group, for the
sale of steel products by Jinxi Limited to Jin Lan Group for a
period of approximately two years and seven months from
18 June 2010 to 31 December 2012. The annual cap for this
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB
70 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2011 was nil.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 18 June 2010, Hebei Jinxi Section Steel Company Limited
(“Jinxi Section Steel”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a framework agreement with
Jin Lan Group, a connected person of the Group, for the sale
of steel products by Jinxi Section Steel to Jin Lan Group for
a period of approximately two years and seven months from
18 June 2010 to 31 December 2012. The annual cap for this
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB
100 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB 20.8 million
(excluding VAT).

On 18 June 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village Wang
Zhihong Iron Ore Mill (“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”), a connected
person of the Group, in which Jinxi Limited would purchase
iron powder from Qianxi Iron Ore Mill at prevailing market
prices for a period of approximately two years and seven
months from 18 June 2010 to 31 December 2012. The annual
cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December
2011 was RMB 140 million. The total amount of the aforesaid
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB
75.8 million (excluding VAT).

On 22 January 2011, Jinxi Limited entered into the iron and
steel framework agreement with Luxembourg Steel (Sichuan)
Company Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
ArcelorMittal, a substantial shareholder of the Company (“Lu
Steel”), in which Jinxi Limited would sell steel products to Lu
Steel at prevailing market prices for a period of approximately
three years from 22 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.
The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2011 was RMB 80 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2011
was RMB 2.4 million (excluding VAT).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 22 January 2011, Jinxi Section Steel entered into the Iron
and Steel Framework Agreement with Lu Steel, in which Jinxi
Section Steel would sell steel products to Lu Steel at prevailing
market prices for a period of approximately three years from
22 January 2011 to 31 December 2013. The annual cap for
this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
RMB 80 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB 4.5 million
(excluding VAT).

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its letter containing his findings and
unqualified conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 65 to 68 of the
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As per the information that is available to the Company and to the

best knowledge of the Board (as of 23 March 2012), the public floats
exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

_
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 235,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

ALK B ET BT AP BRR R T
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

it : +852 2289 8888 » fHH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 65t E& &%

(Alllamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEIRARB (ARR ) TLREM) R-F——F+t_HA=t—RHLFE

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Leasehold land and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investment in an associate
Available-for-sale financial assets
Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

Loan receivable
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Properties under development

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other current assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Amounts due from related parties

Loan receivable

Notes receivable — bank
acceptance notes

Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Ordinary shares
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BE
FRBEE
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Note
B aE

14
16
17

18

43(c)
19

17
20
20

21
21
22

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2011 2010
-5 —T-TF
137,128 116,949
8,395,398 7,946,548
15,984 16,789
8,530 36
12,697 10,557
167,976 116,172
539,647 264,663
300,000 -
192,694 102,018
9,770,054 8,573,732
368,857 246,700
4,615,903 4,085,745
396,181 76,882
10,378 10,594
1,995,653 897,972
- 131
65,831 999,590
20,000 20,000
3,830,658 3,447,559
891,396 159,945
965,082 2,223,245
13,159,939 12,168,363
22,929,993 20,742,095
311,715 311,715
2,190,291 2,190,291
1,370,287 1,278,429
4,991,327 4,280,327
8,863,620 8,069,762
647,730 450,012
9,511,350 8,519,774




Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued) 6t EEEER &)

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2011
(BRRFEBEN  FRESEANARE (AR ) FLREM) RN-T——F+_A=t—HIFE

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—H
Note 2011 2010
MosE —E——F ZZE-TF
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Borrowings = 25 5,360,962 5,791,030
Other long-term payables Hib R EAER R 26 133,517 344,836
Deferred revenue FEFEWIA 27 38,020 27,010
Amounts due to related parties FET Bt 5 kI8 43(c) 17,304 -
5,549,803 6,162,876
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade payables FENE SRR 23 2,106,100 1,682,730
Accruals, advances from customers JEIRER - EWERF A
and other current liabilities REMTEEE 24 3,087,962 3,037,452
Amounts due to related parties e~ A 5 I8 43(c) 101,147 267,436
Current income tax liabilities EHIFMEHREE 193,072 179,033
Other long-term payables Hih REIER R
— current portion —nEE s 26 223,546 209,150
Borrowings e 25 2,152,422 680,249
Dividends payable FERIAR S 4,591 3,395
7,868,840 6,059,445
Total liabilities e E 13,418,643 12,222,321
Total equity and liabilities EEREEE 22,929,993 20,742,095
Net current assets TREBEESRE 5,291,099 6,108,918
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 15,061,153 14,682,650
Han Jingyuan Shen Xiaoling
Chairman Director
ES 3

The notes on pages 81 to 235 are an integral part of these financial 81235 B WM 1 &8 F& 2R3k HyERae —2h
statements. 7 o

N
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Company Balance Sheet AAEE&EX

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2011

(BRREREAIN - AESEAUARE TITRER)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Accumulated losses

Total equity
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Note
MI5E

10(a)
10(b)
15

17

18

20
20

21
21

As at 31 December

R+=A=t—H

2011 2010
e
840 1,100
550,046 433,100
4,630,942 4,135,633
58,371 51,567
5,240,199 4,621,400
3,310,668 2,411,390
85,778 47,347

- 131

113,296 26,830
172,641 1,339,605
3,682,383 3,825,303
8,922,582 8,446,703
311,715 311,715
2,190,291 2,190,291
315,001 254,936
(429,500)  (158,229)
2,387,507 2,598,713




Company Balance Sheet (continued) AR EERER &)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2011
(BRRAFEBEN FRSEINARETIREN) R_T—F+-H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
Note 2011 2010
Mo5E —E——F —T-TF
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings =k 25 5,295,962 5,544,030
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FETE SRR 23 58,854 164,862
Accruals and other current liabilities TERRERREMRBIAE 137,524 138,995
Borrowings SN 25 1,042,587 -
Dividends payable FERTAR B, 148 103
1,239,113 303,960
Total liabilities N =R 6,535,075 5,847,990
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEaT 8,922,582 8,446,703
Net current assets REEEFHE 2,443,270 3,521,343
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 7,683,469 8,142,743
Han Jingyuan Shen Xiaoling
BiR TR
Chairman Director
EY o

The notes on pages 81 to 235 are an integral part of these financial 812235 B MM 5T A 5 MmR A —&0
yaN

statements. 77 °
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Consolidated Income Statement &6t FE &R

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEERAN  FEEBEIUARBTLREN) BE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Note 2011 2010
MI5E —E——F —E—TF
Revenue g A 5 38,596,633 30,135,718
Cost of sales SHES AR 31 (35,995,031)  (28,080,858)
Gross profit EF 2,601,602 2,054,860
Other income =N 30 26,718 63,783
Distribution costs 7 HA A 31 (98,338) (65,673)
Administrative expenses 1THER 31 (390,321) (301,407)
Other expenses Hb & A 31 (35,643) (25,076)
Other (losses)/gains — net Hb (E18) Was — F5E 29 (80,444) 25,409
Operating profit R 2,023,574 1,751,896
Finance income ZUp L ON 33 96,898 57,049
Finance costs BATE A 33 (190,800) (195,655)
Finance costs — net BARSE AN — SR 58 (93,902) (138,6006)
Share of profit of an associate JE(G — At = R ) Al 11 2,140 191
Profit before income tax B Fr B 55 Al e A 1,931,812 1,613,481
Income tax expense FEfHER 34 (514,023) (428,030)
Profit for the year FEERA 1,417,789 1,185,451
Profit attributable to: AR
Owners of the Company RAGIESFEE 1,241,893 1,062,838
Non-controlling interests FEFR I M RS 175,896 122,613
1,417,789 1,185,451
Earnings per share for profit FARAXRQTERISZEE
attributable to owners of FEAE R R B = AR U 2
the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share) (B ARYEIT)
— Basic earnings per share —FlRERK 37 AR¥042t AR¥0.367T
— Diluted earnings per share — SRR S 37 AR#0427T AR¥0.367T

The notes on pages 81 to 235 are an integral part of these financial 812235 B MM A MR AR — T

statements. 5 o

Dividends BE 38 241,351 266,750
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income & &&= &R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——F+-A=T—HILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

Profit for the year FEEF

Other comprehensive income: HiRE W -

Fair value gains/(losses) on AN ESREEN
available-for-sale financial assets N EEWES(EE)

Total comprehensive FEHEWEEE
income for the year

Attributable to: BB :

Owners of the Company KA ERIFAE

Non-controlling interests FEIEHI M

The notes on pages 81 to 235 are an integral part of these financial
statements.

Note
MI5E

15

81 ZE235 A A MR M EERE — &

N

4 o

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2011 2010
—E2——-F C—EZEF
1,417,789 1,185,451
6,804 (8,453)
1,424,593 1,176,998
1,248,697 1,054,385
175,896 122,613
1,424,593 1,176,998
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &6t #E=2 8%

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BRBEHERN  FEEEHUARETTREN)

Balance at 1 January
2010

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Fair value losses on avalable-
for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme:
- Proceeds from shares issued
- Value of employee services
Profit appropriation to
statutory reserves
Final dividends of the Company
relating to year 2009
Transaction with non-controling
interests
Deconsolidation of a subsidliary

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December
2010

R-%2-2%-A-A
i

Fakd
EERR

Afbtrak
HESHEAE
WAL ERER

Gakaat

REERRENRS
[ERERES
~HTRA R
- EERHNEE
A Bt LAY
AR
ARRZEENE
RS
SFEHIERENRS

—BHBAREIAKAR

REEERENRASH

RZE-BE+ZA=1-H
fte

HE-Z——GF+-_RA=1—HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANRRERAEEN
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
i)
izt ke RiEE EtEE ER4E a5t Bs ERA
311,669 2189695 1192190 3475204 7168758 291,99 7,460,750
- - - 1062838 1062838 122613 1,185,451
- - (8453 - (8453) - (8453
- - (8453 1062838 1,054,385 122613 1176998
21 46 596 = = 642 = 642
- - 67,562 - 67,552 - 67,562
2 - - M0 i) - - -
- - - (221575 (221579 (6,730)  (227,305)
- - - - - 40,000 40,000
= = = = = 1,187 1,187
46 596 94692  (48716)  (153381) 35407  (117,974)
311,716 2190291 1278429 4289827 8069762 450,012 8,519,774

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) &t EZZ B X )

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOARRHEAEL
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
FAEHIE
i RE  RHEE HiRe SRUE h Bs ERA
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-B--£-A-BHER 311715 2190291 1278429 4289327 8069762 450012 8,519,774
Comprehensive income GalE
Proft for the year EEEF = = - 1241893 1241893 175896 1,417,789
Other comprehensive income Httgals
Fair value gains on available- AHEeRER
for-sale financial assets WAL EENE - - 6804 - 68U - 68U
Total comprehensive income BAkRAH - - 6,804 1241803 1248607 175,896 1,424,508
Transactions with owners RERREENRS
Employes share options scheme: [EEBREE
- Value of employee servioes -EERKNER - - 53262 - 536 - 53262
Profit appropriation to statutory WA R {ELR
reserves B 2 - - 3,792 (8179 - - -
Establishment of a subsidiary FU-HHBAA 1000 - - - - - 49000 49000
Disposal of a subsidiary hE-FHBAR 10(g) = = = = - (854 (8574
Acqisition of a subsidiary Y -RHB A 10/ - - = = - 53053 53083
Captal injection BRTE 10d) - - - - - 13882 13882
Final dividends of the Company ARRZE-ZERERE
relating to year 2010 38 = - - (266,750  (266,750) - (266,750)
Interim dividends of the Company RAAEE-2—F
relating to six months ended NAZTRILEER
30 June 2011 ) 3 g . - agsl)  (41350) R
Diviclends to non-controling interests 4 FaEiEH EERARE = - - - - (45539 (45,539
Total transactions with owners ~ RERHEENRAAH - - 85054 (530893 (464839 21822 (433017)
Balance at 31 December R-B-—-%
2011 TZA=1-RHLe 376 2190291 1370287 4,991,327 8863620 647,730 9,511,350

The notes on pages 81 to 235 are an integral part of these financial 81 E 235 B MMt A SRR —ET

AN

statements. 4 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 5§43 &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABIEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Interest received
Interest paid

Refund of prior year pre-paid income tax

Income tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Disposal of financial assets at fair value

through profit
Proceeds from sales of property,
plant and equipment

Investment income from loan receivable

Increase in loan receivables

HE-Z——GF+-_RA=1—HLEFE

Note
BT

RELETHNELRE
ELEa/(AR)Eenise 40
BEUFI2
BRFIE
FFEERAMEHER
B

BREEEDORLFE
KEREEDHRL TR
WEMBAF  IRHERE 99
BENE  BERE
D EE R AR

STABRRNEREE
HEME  BEKR

RFTS50R 40
REAEKEZRHERERS
P E I

Increase in available-for-sale financial assets

A E SR AN

Decrease/(increase) in amount due from

related parties
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from Senior Notes

Proceeds of borrowings from related parties
Repayment of borrowings from related parties

Dividends paid

Capital injection by non-controlling interests
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
Cash paid relating to sales and leaseback

transaction

(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank
balances pledged as security for
current bank borrowings

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The notes on pages 81 to 235 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

R 3 IR AT SROBRL, /(2 0)

REBESMENRSFR
REMETDNRERE

fE SRS EIR
B
BARBHREHA
BAR S fE SRS SR
{BE AR 7 A3
ENERE
IR E
FTERRAERR
RHEREERSZE
xR e
fERRENIRITIE KR
RR BRI TAEER
(3hn),/

REAEHEENRLFE
ReRRLEEN(AL)/
N5

IEERZHNTE

FONRERREEED
FRAG KRG EED 20

N

4 o

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

2
AL

BX

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2011 2010
—g--5 -2-%F
908,224  (1,243,105)
96,784 50,345
(469,737) (118,922)
- 75,500
(597,818) (482,040)
(62,547)  (1,718,222)
22,294 -
(984,655) (194,285)
131 -

777 1,792
20,638 4,508
(300,000) (80,000)
(45,000) (64,674)
110,000 (122,582)
(1,175,815) (455,241)
7,643,220 2,672,344
(6,301,335)  (4,202,807)
- 5651767

- 44,540

- (29,937)
(552,444) (268,271)
62,882 40,000

- 642
(251,280) (202,690)
(585,925) 174,500
15,118 3,880,088
(1,223,244) 1,706,625
(34,919) (127,410)
2,223,245 644,030
965,082 2,223,245

F81E 235 MM AV IS RRAERE—F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

Following the completion of the global offering, the Company’s
shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 2 March 2004.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sales of iron and steel
products. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 23 March
2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—REHR

FERSEEZEBERAR(TAR
ADR-_ZFZF=F1+—A=ARER"
RE-NN—FRRDEEBREZLM
L RERRAREMTAR - AT
T —IREEEHE(EA] -

RN B) R % EE Hb 4k A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

REREERRE - ARARGR=
TTNE= § - BEEEBER S
ARAF L -

RRA R EKB R BN T XA RA
SE - AEBTERFLENHEH
HEM  AEEETEARANE
([hE ) AibE RERAEREGEER
B WEEHEU NP REESET
$HE o

BRRBEAIN - RAFHBREUAA
RETTE2S - REHUBRRERL
HEER(EERDR-_F——F=
AZt=BH#ERE -

EREHBERRBE

AR BHRRRANTIESS
BREN T > BRRBIEHAIN - HF
BREMEIINMEFERNEHE
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - AESEAUARE TITRER)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ——FT-A=1T—HILEE

2.
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FEGFE e ([HFE G
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards, and
interpretations mandatory for the first time
for the financial year beginning 1 January
2011 but not currently relevant to the Group
(although they may affect the accounting for
future transactions and events)

o HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Classification of
rights issues’.

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 ‘Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments’.

o Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘Limited
exemption from comparative HKFRS 7
disclosures for first-time adopters’.

° HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related Party
Disclosures’.

° Amendment to HK(IFRIC) Int — 14,
‘Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement’.

o Third annual improvements project (2010)
published in May 2010 by the HKICPA.

2. EESTHERBEEE)

21 REEEE)

B ERERKRENRL

(@) ERBE=FT——F-A—
ARBNI R EFEEE R
B e HY TR R AR RT I
ER R AR - (BB ATERAE
EEER(BRAHETRES
FEARARNRZNMEEN
SRFRER)

s FBBEIEREI
5 (1220 [BCAm D
18]

s BE(ERMBEHRS
BEBLZEY) —@E
NEE195% [ LA

s TARKERE

R] e

s FBTAUBHHSER
F1RMER - [ &
BB HREENST
LR BEE B E
IRER A R L
%]

s FAEBEAF24
DASCEIDAN L Yokt

B

o FE(BRMBHRSE
HREZEY) —MHE
NEF14F BN
[RIEESREMNTE
ENIE

W

.

/

HE(ZZE—TF) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt #& R R Ki s

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BREEHEAN - ESBINARETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have not
been early adopted

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these
new and amended standards is set out below.

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces
the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to the
classification and measurement of financial
instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified into two measurement
categories: those measured as at fair value
and those measured at amortised cost. The
determination is made at initial recognition.
The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument. For
financial liabilities, the standard retains most
of HKAS 39 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases where the fair value option is
taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit
risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s fulll
impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 9 upon
its effective date, which is for the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

o HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial
statements’ builds on existing principles
by identifying the concept of control as
the determining factor in whether an entity
should be included within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company.
The standard provides additional guidance
to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. The Group
is yet to assess HKFRS 10’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

° HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in
other entities’ includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, special purpose vehicles and
other off balance sheet vehicles. The Group
is yet to assess HKFRS 12’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 12 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’
aims to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing a precise definition
of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The requirements
do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it
should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other standards
within HKFRSs. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 13’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 13 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE(ZE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 KEBRE

2.2.1 Consolidation 2.21 HRERE

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern
the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

MERREMEARES
T2 I B IR N 48 B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances, income

and expenses on transactions between group

companies are eliminated. Profits and losses

resulting from inter-company transactions that

are recognised in assets are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been

changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

(@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree's
identifiable net assets.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

@)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date through profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERES)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MIBRR (&)

2.2.2 BB EHK

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the

RIS B AR 2 IERKA
HIFRBREAR - NATRE
REREERBEKAE - &
RARR B UK I B
EREE  GtEWEBRR

ANP I R R RV R B TS
ERRHAME AR MR
BREARE  NEEBY

total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in PEHERPOERESR
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying B IS RER P IR E
amount of the investment in the separate financial HAEE(BEEE) ZE
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the EER - BIZBENE AR

consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

EREETTRERIR -

net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates

HE-Z——GF+-_RA=1—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill,
if any, identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(B A AN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the management committee (Note
5(b)) that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE

2.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net

investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “finance cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other

(losses)/gains — net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

BREER)

2.

FIAEERANARBT TREN) BE-T—

~F+=A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings,
machinery, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, leasehold
improvements and finance leased machinery are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

2.

EREHBERBE(E)

25 HNERE (4F)

(c) &EEAT(E)

(i BHAEREI
ARAZEFEHE
R@|E BERT
AEERRESE M
RMERSHZE
KRS RN BREY
2. HIREX 5 H
ZEERFTE I F U
ARz - &

iy FTBEAILMEEZ
B 5 =GR EAM
4R WS RERR o

26 M= BEEXRE

BEET MBRE PHOR
B AE HEMELERH
EHERRRBEEDE  BE
BETRE L RARITE &
AR o £ AN B RIS
ZIEE ERENHAX -

EiﬁéﬁRZKEEBAEH/\EZ HE AR
R R R EM S RA A BEE R
Aﬁ%l'ﬁﬁamﬁﬁm%
ARG E TERREERE
B BRI SRR R B B 2 (A0
M) o K IEHERWE R D
REfE- AAEEMBERRE
REAMTHEIRE B & 678
ZRHRR -

=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, EEETBEREAE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 26 WE - BEIEEGE)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Estimated useful life

Buildings 10-20 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Vehicles 4-10 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years
Finance leased machinery 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes the costs of construction and acquisition. No
provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use. When the assets concerned are ready for
their intended use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRERERAIN - RS EAUARE T RER)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual land ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums
paid for such right and the improvements related to the
land are treated as prepayment for operating lease and
recorded as leasehold land and land use rights, which
are amortised over the lease periods using the straight-
line method.

Investment property

The property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the entities in the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Fair value is determined based on active market
prices, if necessary, adjusted for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group used alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are reviewed annually by the Directors.
Changes in fair values are not recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R R K{ s

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment property (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that
property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the
net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

(@

(b)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software costs recognised as assets
are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
FASEENARETLAER)

(B A AN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life-for example,
goodwill-are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=t—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

()

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘loan receivables’, ‘trade receivables’, ‘notes
receivable — bank acceptance notes’, ‘other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
in the balance sheet (Notes 2.15 and 2.16
respectively).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

2.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Available-
for-sale assets of the Group include investments
in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, which are
measured at cost less provision for impairment, if

any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 SREE (&)

2112 AR E (&)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement as ‘gains and
losses from investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part
of other income. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

2.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can

be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continuead)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument's fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

2.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables

is described in note 2.15.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries or associates is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary or associate in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets

including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
FASEENARETLAER)

(B A AN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

214

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and the net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Development cost of properties comprises cost of
land use rights, construction costs and borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

Land use rights which are held for development for sale
are classified as inventories and measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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(BR=AE=AN

2.

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Trade, notes and other receivables

Trade and notes receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, notes and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade, notes and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or

services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or

less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business

if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs

(a)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs (continued)

(a)

(b)

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates

to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

2.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax
liabilities where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTHHEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits 2.21 EEFEH

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
Hong Kong employees make monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap of Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”)1,000 per
person per month and any excess contributions are
voluntary.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan organised by
PRC government. The PRC government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees payable under the plan
as set out in Note 32. The assets of this plan are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent
fund managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plan are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T—F+-A=+t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments

(@ Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity's share
price);

° including the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 #& R R Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BR=AE=AN

2.

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Government grants

A government grant in the form of subsidy or financial
refund is recognised when there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to the grant and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Government grants (continued)

Grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities and

recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

2.25 Revenue recognition

(a)

Sales of goods produced

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(d) Leaseincome

Lease income from operating leases is recognised
in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

2.26 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTHHEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued) 2.26 fAE (&)

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

HE-Z——F+-_RA=1—HLEFE

POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises

from past events and whose existence will only be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one

or more uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation

arising from past events that is not recognised because

it is not probable that outflow of economic resources

will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised

but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements. When a change in the probability of an

outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be

recognised as a provision.

2.28 Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders

is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2.29 Earnings per share

(a)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
by weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been
issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.30 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees
are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required
to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. The fee income earned is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk

)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant float interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s interest rate
risk mainly arises from Senior Notes and
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Senior Notes and loan
receivables issued at fixed rates exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Notes 19 and 25
respectively.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Directors do not consider the exposure

to foreign exchange risk is significant to

the Group’s operation as the Group mainly

operates in the PRC with most of the

transactions denominated and settled in

RMB. Therefore, the Group has not used

any derivatives to hedge its exposure to

foreign exchange risk for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

The major foreign exchange risk exposure

arises from the Group’s importing and

exporting activities and the Group’s

borrowings, which are mostly denominated
in United States Dollars (the “US$”). The
Group also has certain bank deposits,

financial assets and financial liabilities that

are denominated in foreign currencies,

mainly US$ and HK$, which are exposed to

foreign currency translation risk. The foreign

exchange risk is reduced where the Group

is in a position of receiving and paying the

same currency. The Directors believe that

the Group does not expose to significant

foreign exchange risks. The maximum

exposures to the foreign exchange risks
are disclosed in Notes 17, 20, 23 and 25

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i

Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following table summarised the impact
of increases/decreases of the cash flow
interest rate and the foreign exchange
rate on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The sensitivity analysis for the cash flow
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk is
based on the assumption that:

(@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/
higher from the year end rates with
all other variables held constant (for
example, 11.5% or 8.5% instead of
10%);

(o) RMB had weakened/strengthened by
10% against US$ and HK$ (pegged
with US$) with all other variables held
constant.
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BMBEREE(E)

3.1

R EZE (Z)
(a) TMEERKR(E)
(i) BRELTHE

TEBAERE R
BN EXRINE E
/T BREAEE
BHUBHRERNOE

£,
=

AERENERRER
Ko 51 BE [ B # B1 J2%
BEAMEERIAT

B

@ K E®RER
TR EFA
15% @ 1 AT
EHME S
HRFDHE

( f:11.5%
58.5% * M3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BERRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BI%REREZEE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) TWEER(E)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) SREELTHE(E)

Cash flow interest rate risk
RERENERE
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
REE Al Bi Al ER

31 December 2011 Z8-——5+ZA=t-H
Financial assets at BIBFETEN
floating interest rates tREE
Cash and cash equivalents B RREEEY 965,082 (1,287  (1,287) 1,287 1,287
Restricted bank balances XRBIRITE 801,3%6 (1,189  (1,189) 1,189 1,189
Amounts due from related parties UM 7B 65,831 (625) (625) 625 625
Financial liabilities at BEBAETEN
floating interest rates SREE
Bank borrowings BITIRT (217422 11,010 11,010 (11,0100 (11,010)
Amounts due to related parties  FEfTEEEE S FIE (118,451) 199 199 (199) (199)
Other long-term payables Hin REBREMH (857,063 5377 5377  (53717)  (5,377)
Total increase/(decrease) AfEN/ (D) 13485 13485  (13,485) (13,485)
Foreign exchange risk
SME R
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE Al B A B

31 December 2011 “Z——F+ZA=t-H
Monetary assets EMEE
Cash and cash equivalents e RESZEY 965,082 35016 35016  (35,016) (35,016)
Restricted bank balances XA RITE 891,3%6 8547 8547  (8,947) (8,547)
Trade receivables GEESY 396,181 23753 23,753  (23,753) (23,759
Deposits and other receivables ®E REMEIGRT 907,876 2,585 2585  (2,585)  (2,585)
Monetary liabilities EXaR
Trade payables ARG ES (2,106,100)  (12,350) (12,350) 12,350 12,350
Other payables () EthERFIE() (368,433) (12,978) (12,978) 12,978 12,978
Borrowings EEN (7,513,384) (700,238) (700,238) 700,238 700,238
Total (decrease)/increase AR (HD)/ %M (655,665) (655,665 655,665 655,665
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i

Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2010

Financial assets at

floating interest rates
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances
Amounts due from related parties
Loan receivable

Financial liabilities at
floating interest rates

Bank borrowings

Amounts due to related parties

Other long-term payables

Total increase/(decrease)

= e
BIBNETEN
TREE

e RAeSEN
RRHBRTES

FEMRAR TR
EUES

EFBRIETRMN
THER
IR
e B 3R
R RAEMR

atEm/ (WD)

BE—T——Ft-_A=t—HLLHFE

3. UBERERE)

3.1

Carrying
amount

REE

2,223,245
169,945
999,590

20,000

(862,249)
(267,436)
(553,986)

iR AR (&)
(@) WHEER(E)
(i) BRESNREE)
Cash flow interest rate risk
ReRENZER

-15% +15%

Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
Al i el s

1371 (1371 1311 137
(©9) (99) 99 9
609 609 609 609
67) 67) 67 67

20726 20726  (20726) (20,726)
51 51 (59) (51)
7932 7932 (793 (7,939

26563 26563 (26563 (26,569
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2010 “E-EE+-A=1-H
Monetary assets EREE

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEN
Restricted bank balances SRR
Trade receivables W E S8R
Deposits and other receivables k4 REHEK R
Other current assets HiReEE
Monetary liabilities KHEE

Trade payables N

Other payables () Hin R ()
Borrowings &%

Total (decrease)/increase AL (HD) /i

Note: Profit represents consolidated profit
before tax; equity represents total equity,
including non-controlling interests.

(i) Other payables include payables
for purchase of property, plant and
equipment, customer deposits and
employee deposits as stated in Note 24.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——FT-A=T—HILEE

3. UBEBRERE)

31 BHBRBRREZEE)

(@) TEER(E)

(i) SUREANHEE)
Foreign exchange risk
SHERR
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
REE bl i e B
2223245 102,023 102,023 (102,023 (102,023)
169,945 2,683 2,683 (2,683 (2,683
76,882 108 108 (108) (108)
253,862 1,665 1,685 (1,655)  (1,599)
10,694 19 19 (19) (19
(1,682,730) (19517)  (19517) 19517 19,517
(472,751)  (14,323) (14,328) 14323 14,323
(6,471,279) (683,272) (583,272) 583272 583272
(610,729) (610,729) 510,729 510,729

T + R FURRR BRI
BEET © 218
MRS AR - B
I -

() EHthEARE
BEBEY
¥ BEREE
%2 EAR
B BEFP &
¢ KkiEB &
@ (R M
24) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The Group does not have significant credit
risks arising from off-balance sheet items. The
Group’s credit policy for the sales of products is
mainly delivery either on cash or upon receipt of
bank acceptance notes with maturity dates within
six months. For bank and financial institutions, the
Group has policies that deposits are placed with
reputable banks. Credit quality of financial assets
is further disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 19 and 43(c)
respectively.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
together with adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
A EEUAARETTRAEN) BEZ——F+-A=1T—BILFE

3. UBERERE)

31 BHBRRREZEE)

(b)

()

FERR

AEBEWEERERHE
ERfE - ReRFAEE
e EBREZERRE
B ke REAMEWKERR
K2 FE W A Bt 75 5 IE O BR TE
BAASENSREET
EERBRAENS=ER
KT o REE W R & E
BEXRIINEEEENER
EERR o A&EBEEMmH
%MEEﬁ%I%E%W
BIR S F R/ E A
NEIRITA L IERR 2
S E o HNIRTT R & R
B AEENBERERE
HERRBEEHIRIT -
CREENEEERS
B 1E BY #E12 - 13 - 190
43(c) NHE— P H & ©

RBETERE

AEENRSE ©ARE
BEBARHEELREF
BY  AREHRITEE
BAEES

TREALSESHARZD
DT - REEHESHE
HRMFISRER - 525
BESDEBEOHERA
Bl e RPBEENSTELL
ERARFTHRBSHRE - 8
128 A R E| BRI RREE
BB EETK 258
BEENEREREE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBRBRSEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BREEREZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) wBELER(E)

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1year 2years b5years 5years Total
1R 1225 2Z5F% 5%HE aF

At 31 December 2011 R-B——F
+=A=t+-8

Borrowings fa 2,152,422 65,000 3,421,795 1,874,167 7,513,384
Interests payments on fEFRM ST H ()

borrowings (i) 427,394 409,118 839,815 115,377 1,791,704
Trade payables ENB SRR 2,106,100 - - - 2,106,100
Other payables H A BRI 457,430 - - 18510 475,940
Amounts due to related parties &/ B 5 28 101,147 - - 17,304 118,451
Finance lease liability BEMHEaRE 223,546 115,007 = - 338,553
Interest payments on finance  FLELE B EL [T

lease liabilty (i) B & i) 37,697 7,327 - - 45024
Guarantee for bank borrowings A% = H)$R1TIE

of a third party AR - - 30,000 - 30,000
At 31 December 2010 RZB-2F

t=B=+-H

Borrowings N 680,249 202,000 3,623,745 1,965,285 6,471,279
Interests payments on ARSI ()

borrowings (i) 448,447 428,671 1,166,392 258,556 2,302,066
Trade payables ENB SRR 1,682,730 - - - 1,682,730
Other payables HEtb RN 532,069 = = - 532,069
Amounts due to related parties &/ B 5 I8 267,436 - - - 267,436
Finance lease liability REREEE 209,150 232,066 112,770 - 553,986
Interest payments on finance  FLELE B EL [T

lease liability (ii) B8 (i) 49,166 26,250 5,455 - 80,871
Guarantee for bank borrowings A% = H)$R1TfE

of a third party HAER - - - 30,000 30,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

)

(i)

The interest on borrowings is calculated
based on borrowings held as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 without taking
into account of future issues. Floating-rate
interest is estimated using current interest
rate as at 31 December 2011 and 2010
respectively.

The interest on finance lease is calculated
based on remaining balance of finance lease
liability and the interest rate implicit in the
lease as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

BE—T——Ft-_A=t—HLLHFE

3. UBERERE)

3.1

3.2

MERRRER (&)

(c) #RBELEKE(Z)

h BRMNBEE_-ZE
——FR-_F-F
F+-A=+—H
FRENERTE
NERBEMARKE
| F RN XS R
B_T——F k=
Z-ZF+ A
=T —HHERF
RHE o

iy MZZE——Fk=
T—ZTF+ A
=+—H ®m&EM
EHH E TR E
BEHEBEBENRE
RF|EETE o

BEvRRER

AEENESEERE R
EAKERSEREEEHE
BEZREN UARRERD
H RAEREEOERRESE
BRI ER - WHER R ENE RS
BAREE R o

REBABEAREE AR
CEETEE SR TS T
BEW MBEEEAS ¥
TR AR LORIE TS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BRBEERAN  FEEBEINARBTLREN) BE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HXERERE(E)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 3.2 EBEoRMRER(E)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to- A& B R R IR (E 78 B2 A Ly R
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided EEREBE NN - BIHEE AL
by the total capitalisation. Total debt includes current REBEREBERNBER - F
and non-current borrowings, finance lease obligations HEEaE R RIETHE
and borrowings from related parties. Total capitalisation P g EMHEEAE KB A A
includes non-current borrowings, non-current portion of BN BERXBIEIERHE
finance lease obligations and borrowings from related = BB EAEN AR
parties and equity attributable to owners of the parent. B IERE B & FBRA

RAERFAE R o

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

Total debt BIRME%E 8,011,737 7,279,223

Total capitalisation FEREWN 14,358,099 14,205,628

Debt-to-capital ratio fETE B RS b 55.8% 51.2%

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 RAEEMET
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at TREBEBEEDTIRARE
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have BEfEWNEHITA - TEKR
been defined as follows: FLEWT :
e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for s KEEEXBERGRET
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). HRE (CREARE) (F—
&) e
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within e RBRBERE—RHME
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, N BENBER R B
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, B (BIME) Sk (A
derived from prices) (level 2). REEBRE) WAER(F
=) e

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o  WIREBEABERMHER
on observable market data (that is, unobservable METHEEN B BNEH
inputs) (level 3). AEEH(BIRAT & R 1 85

ABR(E=4) »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and

liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December

2011 and 31 December 2010.

At 31 December 2011

Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
— Equity securities (Note 15)

At 31 December 2010

Assets
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
— Trading funds
Available-for-sale financial assets
— Equity securities (Note 15)

Total assets

AEHESREE
— B AFE S (s 15)

R-B-FF
+=H=+—-H

gE
BARBEFEEEE
FABRRNEREE
~-EE&¢

AHHESREE
—RAES (HiFE15)

nEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——F+-A=T—HILFE

3. UBERERE)

3.3 AREBEM:TE)

TREVIWAKER =T —F
;F—E—ZEF+_A=+—H

Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
E—H E-H E=R st
58,371 - - 58,371
Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
B E-H E=R wst

131 - - 131
51,567 - - 51,567
51,698 - - 51,698
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

HE-_Z——&+-_BA=1—HItFE

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise liquid reserves
fund classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and equity securities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment are disclosed in Note 15. The Group has no
level 2 or level 3 financial instruments as at 31 December
2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting judgements
and estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition as
at the balance sheet date and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.

(b)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amount of a CGU
has been determined based on higher of value-in-use
and fair value less costs to sell.

RS & E

fhEr RAE @ pas AT - XRIEB
EERNEMRZETHEN G S
REEABRTHESSEMNERE
EMFE0TRE -

AR B R R AR A B AR R R
Re TS HE REFOEE
% ROSEHEHERERAR - R
RE2s MM BEENEERAR
M AR EMEE L E AR A A - h5T
KBRS maE

@ TEEETEIRHE

FENAEREFERATEERR
BIEFHEEE  BAE T
PR B SHE i o B2 F b AT
RERGEENRTHRARE
ERHEEEERUNERNB
ERERETE -

b) % - BEARERE

EETABERTEEHRED
BURNBRE(ERIRE T & T AR E
B ANEE RIS RENE2.10
Pl B & St R RET I % - R
FEREENRE ReELE
A meRE REERE
BEEAAEBEREEXNAME
MRS EEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the construction of certain
CIP stopped for a long period and it is not expected
that the CIP would be put into use in future. The Group
considered these assets had impairment indicators
as the changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which these
assets carrying amounts exceed recoverable amounts
determined in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies (Note 2.10). The estimation of the recoverable
amounts is based on current market conditions and the
Group’s plan.

The Group also determined that there was an
impairment indication relating to two production lines of
a subsidiary which manufactures galvanised sheets and
cold rolled sheets. These production lines were identified
as CGUs separately.

The Group measured the value-in-use and fair value less
costs to sell by discounting the future estimated cash
flow deriving from the property, plant and equipment.
These calculations required the Group to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to
apply a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©)

Useful life of the property, plant and equipment

Useful life is the period over which an asset is expected
to be available for use by an entity. The depreciable
amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis
over its useful life (Note 2.6).

The following factors are considered in determining the
useful life of an asset:

(i) Expected usage of the asset

(i)  Expected physical wear and tear

(i)  Technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset

(v Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset

The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each financial
year-end and, if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change will be accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with ‘HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’.

BE-_Z——&+-HA=1—RBItFE

4. BRESTHETRAE(E)

ME - BEMREOAERF
5

AERFRAEERRAMHE
BEMANHR - BENAITE
SEREAERFHARRER
EEETTOR (15E2.6) ©
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(i) REEZDHHARREIMS
iz A B EREm SRS
% th BO R SR B B T & P I
MR % LBk

vy FERZABEEREES
FRLAPR I

BEMNAERAFHRNESHERE
EAREITRE - fr FEHI AT 62 B
FHENEEROBETART
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(®

Impairment of the Group " s assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to
determine whether the Group’s assets are impaired.
As stated in HKAS 36, the net asset value of an
entity that exceeds its market capitalisation is an
impairment indicator which would require an estimate
of the recoverable amount to be performed. As at 31
December 2011, the Group’s market capitalisation
amounted to RMB 6,592 million approximately, which is
lower than the Group’s net assets value which is RMB
9,551 million. Thus the Group needs to assess whether
its assets are impaired. This assessment requires
significant judgments and estimations. In making these
judgments and estimations, the Group evaluates and
considers both qualitative and quantitative factors that
will affect the value-in-use of an asset or a CGU such
as the extent of difference between the net assets value
and market capitalisation, composition of the Group’s
assets, results and timing of previous impairment tests.

The Group has performed the impairment test according
to HKAS 36 and determines that except for the goodwill
and property, plant and equipment, no other asset or
CGU has been impaired. The impairment assessments
of goodwill and property, plant and equipment are
analysed in Note 9 and Note 7 respectively.

4. BRESTHETRAE(E)

REBEERE

AEBIZBREB ST ERE
BHMIESEEAEENE
EEERE - mEES £
FEIE A BEREEFE
BAEMBENE  AABSE
20 43 0] U [B] < B8 1 A 5T AOOR
BFR - R—E——F+_A8
=t+—HB ' AEEHNHHEL
fb&mH A ANRE65.9287T
BERAEENEEFEARYE
95.51 87T « Itk - AEE AR
HHEERTRE - ZEA
E E R A R AEET - BT
2 N TR R EE R
MERETZE-—HEENR®
ELBEMZERBENTE MM
TERE G MEEFEETS
BARELZHNZEZERE A&
B EEMAS AR ZBIRIER
AR AR -

REBIIRBEBE AT ERIE 36
RETREANR - WEERE
BUARDE  BERZEN -
WEHMEENRSEEEN
ERE - BEARDE  BE
KR AER R E R D B HIEE9
K7D ©
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEBERIHER -KEE
(@) Sales (@ SHER
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and REBFENREEEREEH
sales of iron and steel products. Sales recognised for BEM BE_T—F&K=
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as E—ZTF+_A=F+—HIF
follows: FEMEEENT
2011 2010
—E——F —=—TF
Sales: SHERE ¢
Gross sales, less discounts SHE BRI
and returns MRE
— Strips and strip products — T N A SRR E S 14,246,276 12,392,818
— H-section steel products — H 3 = 13,768,307 9,105,151
— Billets — 3R 6,191,858 6,607,363
— Cold rolled sheets and —IRELR R SE AR
galvanised sheets 2,311,437 2,047,781
— Rebar — B2 1,964,813 -
— Others —HAth 213,279 -

38,695,970 30,153,613
Less: Sales taxes B SHETIE (99,337) (17,895)

38,596,633 30,135,718
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information

The chief decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee, which comprises all executive
directors and top management. The decision-maker
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources.

Based on these reports, the decision-maker considers
the business from a business perspective. From a
business perspective, the decision maker assesses the
performance of the iron and steel and the real estate
segments.

(i) Iron and steel — Manufacture and sale of iron and
steel products; and

(i)  Real estate — Development and sale of properties.

The decision-maker assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of revenue and
operating profit. This measurement is consistent with
that in the annual financial statements.

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the
properties of the real estate segment were still under
development, and no sales revenue was recognised. All
the revenue and most of the operating profit of the Group
are from the iron and steel segment. For the year ended
31 December 2011, the segment operating profit of the
iron and steel segment was RMB 2,041 million (2010:
RMB 1,752 million) and the segment operating loss of
the real estate segment was RMB 17 million (2010: nil).

5. WHEHERIBEH-F&EEH(E)

2 EEF

ARBERRRACEERS
EBREMBRNTESEIRSER
BNMTTRES  REAEMH
AR B R AR RS PAERHE X

BERBAMDEER -
REBEZFHRE  RRARED

AREEET - XHAE
REAFHEEE N FHED B
=B o

() E-RERHEMEE
&

iy EHE-FHAZEXEEY
%o

RBEARBF EWARE LG
M EE DRI - LAt E
BEFPHRR N -

BE_T——FRK_FT—FTF
+_A=+—HIEFE Eit
EDEMEDNRENZERP RE
HERR - NEBEME WA R
FEKERHEG R G HE D
HoBEZF——F+=A
=+—HIEFE  #l#5 T
DEEETEA/ARE 20.41 18
TT(ZE—ZF : AR¥A17.52
B7T) REHE 7 ZhH) 7 Bh48 =&
EBEAEARK17008T(ZF
—ZTFF) o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

BRFRAN  MAESRENAREBTIREMN) BE-ZT——F+ A=t HILFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERSBER -—KEE(EF)
(continued)
()  Segment information (continued) () DEER(E)
Segment assets are those operating assets that are DEEETIDBARELLE
employed by a segment in its operating activities. HHEEEE - DEfBEEHR
Segment assets are determined after deducting related NEEBBRTEEHKEER
allowance that is reported as direct offsets in the balance RIEREZRRETE - DEEE
sheet. Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold FTEEFEA G - K L+ (F B
land and land use rights, property, plant and equipment, - WE- BELARE  KE
investment properties, intangible assets, investment ME - BEEE  BERAAK
in an associate, inventories, trade receivables, E -GFE EBRRESERKE
notes receivable, prepayments, deposits and other WEE - FENHRIE ZEkE
receivables, other current assets, amounts due from o EWBR R - EfmENE E -
related parties, restricted bank balances and cash and FE U RE B 5 2E IR HIERTT
cash equivalents. EHR kA RRSFEY -
Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that DERBET D ERK L EEFT
result from the operating activities of a segment. BEHKEEE -
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RZE——F+=-_A=+—H
2011 are as follows: Mo BEERBENT
Iron and steel Real estate Total
Eif) EiE @t
Total assets BEE 21,720,916 528,407 22,249,323
Total assets include: BEERE
Investment in an associate HMENTIRE 12,697 - 12,697
Segment assets for REN PO HEE
reportable segments 22,249,323
Unallocated: AO® :
Deferred income tax assets BEFMEHEE 192,694
Available-for-sale ENESREE
financial assets 167,976
Loan receivables EWED 320,000
Total assets per balance sheet BERERANBEE 22,929,993
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5.
(continued)

HEBER D HER — A8 (£F)

(b) DEHEH(E)

(b)  Segment information (continued)

Iron and steel Real estate Total

i EHE @t

Total liabilities “aEg 5,395,652 311,944 5,707,596
Segment liabilties for REDBOHHAE

reportable segments 5,707,596

Unallocated: ROE :

Current income tax liabilities SHMEHEE 193,072

Current borrowings MENEHR 2,152,422

Non-current borrowings e 5,360,962

Dividends payable ERRE 4,591

Total liabilities per balance sheet BEABRANBEE 13,418,643

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

R-E—ZFTF+_-_A=+—H

2010 are as follows: Mo HEERBELT ¢
Iron and steel Real estate Total
meE EitiE ast
Total assets ngE 20,239,503 264,271 20,503,774
Total assets include: BEERR
Investment in an associate BENAIRE 10,557 = 10,557
Segment assets for BEDBHHHEE
reportable segments 20,503,774
Unallocated: APE :
Deferred income tax assets BREHERE 102,018
Available-for-sale AfHESHEE
financial assets 116,172
Financial assets at fair value NALBEFEAEES
through the profit and loss AABRENEREE 131
Loan receivable EWED 20,000
Total assets per balance sheet BEBERANBEE 20,742,095
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(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T——F+-_A=t—HILFE
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5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERIDEH-XEEH(E)
(continued)
(o)  Segment information (continued) b) DEEFRE(E)
Iron and steel Real estate Total
i EHE FH
Total liabilities FR=T] 5,474,963 93,651 5,568,614
Segment liabilties for REDHNHHAE
reportable segments 5,568,614
Unallocated: ROE :
Current income tax liabilities SHMEHaRE 179,033
Current borrowings mEE 680,249
Non-current borrowings IEREER 5,791,030
Dividends payable BRI E 3,395
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEABRANBEE 12,222,321



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS - 6.

GROUP

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent the prepayment for the operating lease, the net book
value of which is analysed as follows:

At 1 January R—H—H
Additions NE
Amortisation of leasehold land HET Rt
and land use rights (Note 31) {5 PR 48 (F93E31)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8

As at 31 December 2011, the net book value of leasehold
land and land use rights pledged as security for the Group’s
borrowings is nil. (2010: RMB 23 million) (Note 25).

The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are located in
the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 30 years
to 45 years.

HE TR+ A - AL

AREBMAEMRE T30 Ko+ AR
SIEREEERNFIR - REREF
EDHTET:

2011 2010
—g——% —2-2F
116,949 73,139
23,584 45,607
(3,405) (1,797)
137,128 116,949

R-_Z—F+_F=+—H B2AK
EEEZRMEARNFAE LN b E
EHNEMFEAZS(ZE—ZTF | AR

e —

#2 30087 (fizE25) °

ARE BT E £ 3 K 4 (s PR RE AL
R SR THEAN T 30FEA5F o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - AESEAUARE TITRER)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ——FT-A=1T—HILEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. YE BERRZRE
The Group REE
Furniture Leasehold Finance
and improve- leased
Buildings Machinery  fixtures Vehicles ~ ments CIP machinery Total
HENE HEHE
BF BERE HORE A& i HEIR B h)
At1 January 2010 R-E-ZE-f-H
Cost A 2601122 7040908 83754 110323 1,337 503000 800000 11,230444
Accumulated depreciation 2 (434,844) (1,869,679 (29,164  (52,708) (965) - (12783)) (2515,192)
Impaiment e (20545)  (68,146) (891) (65) - - - (80.667)
Net book amount REFE 223,733 5103083 53699 57530 372 503000 672,168 8625585
Year ended 31 December 2010  HZ2-F-F%5+=f
ST-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENERTE 223,733 5103083 53699 57530 372 503000 672,168 8625585
Addions FE 9 7468 2807 1005 - 330041 - 350470
Transfer from CIP fRTEEA 53080 203150 9170 11,073 - (276482 = =
Disposals (Note 40) I (Fiz40) (53)  (27,881) @17 B4 - (113,300 - (145,351)
Transfer to CIP BHTEETRE (7,325) - - - - 13 - -
Depreciation (Note 31) W& (Wst) (125580)  (B44.067)  (13441)  (18616) (55) - (90276)  (892,035)
Impairment HE - 7819 - - - - - 7879
Closing net book amount FREEEE 2,155,480 4649632 52018 56,625 317 450,584 581892 7,946,548
At 31 December 2010 RZB-BF+-A=1-H
Cost A 273,110 7201385 95301 123840 1,337 450584 800000 11,408557
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (560,085) (2491.486) (42392  (67.130)  (1,020) - (218,108 (3,380,221)
Impairment e (20,545) (60,267 (891) (85) - - - (81,789
Net book amount REFE 2155480 4649632 52018 56,625 317 450584 581892 7,946548
Year ended 31 December 2011  HZ-F——%£+-A
=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount EAREHE 2155480 4,649,632 52018 56,625 37 450584 581,802 7,946,548
Acquisiton of subsidiary YEHBAR 3239 4,160 1,057 1914 - 257 - 7672
Adaltions hE 2369 33277 3244 10,869 - 1,411,704 - 1,461,463
Transfer from CIP fRIREA 62192 252741 1,123 7845 - (323901) - -
Disposals (Note 40) i (fzE40) (1,089  (5,690) ©90) (55%) - - - (1239
Transfer 1o leasehold land EHRRETIHE
and land use rights (Note 6) T RE (i6) - - - - - (23584) - (23584)
Depreciation (Note 31) W& (HEs1) (127,597) (646,387)  (13,046)  (18470) (55) - (8653 (892,099)
Impaiment (Notes 29,40) /B (i520840) - - - - - (161,270) - (161,210)
Closing net book amount ERRARE 2,123,694 4324733 44306 53,259 262 1,353,790 495354 8,395,398
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_ZT——F+-_A=t—HILLEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7.

The Group (continued)

At 31 December 2011
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

Furniture
and
Buildings Machinery fixtures

BT HERE BORK

M3~ BERRE(E)

REE (&)
Leasehold Finance
improve- leased
Vehicles ~ ments CIP machinery Total
HENE HEHE

nE KB HRIE  #8& &t

RZB--F+Zf=1-A

A 2834624 7527023 101,048 120,788 1,337 1,515060 800,000 12,899,880
ZithE (690,385) (3,142,023)  (55,851)  (67,444)  (1,075) - (304,646) (4,261,424)
HE (20,545)  (60,267) (891) (85) - (161,270 - (243,059)
BHFE 2123604 4324733 44306 53,259 22 1,353,790 495354 8,395,308

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
income statements as follows:

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

HEMRA
TTRE M

As at 31 December 2011, the net book value of buildings and
machinery of approximately RMB 41 million (2010: RMB 175
million) is pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings (Note

25).

ERaMAERP AT ER 40
T

2011 2010
—g——% —2-2F
865,237 867,791
26,856 24,244
892,093 892,035

R-—Z——%+-fA=+—H B4
REEERMERPHIET KRR 2E
WEEEFEANARKE 41008 (=
T—TF . AR®1.7585T) (K
25) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - AESEAUARE TITRER)

7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 35 million (2010: RMB 15
million) were capitalised into the cost of property, plant and
equipment at an average capitalisation rate of 6.38% (2010:
6.22%) approximately.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Directors noted
indications that certain property, plant and equipment,
including CIP were subject to impairment (Note 4(b)). During
the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recognised
impairment losses of RMB 161 million for its CIP under the
iron and steel segment. These CIP were mainly related to the
production of coke and rolled sheets. Due to the change of
market environment, the Group decided not to continue the
construction and will abandon these CIP.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ——FT-A=1T—HILEE

7.

I~ BB RRE(E)
REE (&)

HE-_T——F+_A=+—HIHF
B BERAHARE 35008 (=
T—TF : ARK150087T) ERF
BHEREEER#)6.38% (Z T —T4F ¢
6.22%) EAXLBME - BE RZHE
BB o

RZE——FR=ZF—ZTF+=H
=+—H ARAEFFEIHHR
BTREMOYZE - BB REE - BIEE
ETRFFRRE(KFE4b) - RE
B ——F+HA=1+—HIHF
B AEBEHE S BARRARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. V¥ BERREE)
The Company ¥iN/NE]
Furniture
and
fixtures Vehicles Total
WARE E @5t
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZ-Z5-A-H
Cost DN 826 2,165 2,991
Accumulated depreciation ZEINE (596) (1,613) (2,209)
Net book amount REFE 230 552 782
Year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=-Z-ZTF+=f
=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFEE 230 552 782
Additions NE 2 622 624
Disposal HE = 28) (28)
Depreciation il (81) (197) (278)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 151 949 1,100
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-ZE&E+-H=1+-H
Cost BAR 828 2,760 3,588
Accumulated depreciation SR 677) (1,811) (2,488)
Net book amount RESE 151 949 1,100
Year ended 31 December 2011 #HZ-F——F+=f
=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FRmFE 151 949 1,100
Additions nNE 29 4 33
Disposal HE (25) = (25)
Depreciation neE (41) (227) (268)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 114 726 840
At 31 December 2011 R-E——&+-A=1+—-H
Cost DN 812 2,764 3,576
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (698) (2,038) (2,736)
Net book amount REHE 114 726 840
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE
8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 8.

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

At 1 January 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount
Depreciation (Note 31)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount
Depreciation (Note 31)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

REMHE

REMEMRTE - REREFES
MTEAT:

B% 21,985
ZiME (4,390)
REFE 17,595
BE_Z-ZF+-_A=+-HLFE

FONREFE 17,595
#& (fEs1) (806)
FREmFE 16,789
R-Z-Z5+-A=+-H

AR 21,985
Z5E (5,196)
REFE 16,789
BE_Z——-F+-A=1—-HLEE

FNREFE 16,789
& (fEEst) (805)
FREmFE 15,984
R=B--£+=-A=1+-H

5% 21,985
ZENE (6,001)
REFE 15,984

For the year ended 31 December 2011, rental income arising

from the investment properties amounted to RMB 1.75 million

(2010: RMB 1.31 million) (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors assessed the fair value
of the investment properties to be approximately RMB 60.4
million based on the prices in the active market (2010: RMB

49.4 million).
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

At 1 January 2010

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31
December 2010

Opening net book amount

Additions

Amortisation (Note 31)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2010

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31
December 2011

Opening net book amount

Additions

Amortisation (Note 31)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2011

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

R-Z2-FF—-A—H
PR
Rt E N E

FREDRE

BE-E—ZEF
+ZA=+—HLEE
FYEREFE

=T

#3E (MeE31)
FRIREFE

R-ZE—ZEF+=-A=+-—H
BN
E5HEEMORE

AREVFHE

BE=F——F
+T=ZR=+—HLEE
FHEREFE

NE

o (MIE31)

FRIREFE

R-B——%+ZA=t—H
PR
Rt MORE

FREHE

S —F

BE_=

For the year ended 31 December 2011
—&+ZRA=+—HLFE

9. EFEE-4A5H

Software Goodwill Total
B e et
- 7,667 7,667
- (7,667) (7,667)

49 - 49
(13) = (13)
36 - 36
49 7,667 7,716
(13) (7,667) (7,680)
36 - 36
36 - 36
14 8,498 8,512
(18) = (18)
32 8,498 8,530
63 16,165 16,228
31) (7,667) (7,698)
32 8,498 8,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=+t—HILHFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MIBARIRERER —AAQFH
COMPANY
(@  Investments in subsidiaries @ MHBARE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Unlisted investments, at cost FE_ETIRE (R AN) 550,046 433,100
A —A=4+—
The subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 are as follows: R=% Ft=A=1—F8
MEATIT :
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
FRERES
£ HRALEE A EELRER BAlt  BREARERRE EERE  TEER
Gold Genesis Development British Virgin Islands Limited fiabity 100% US$ 1 US§50,000  Investment holding
Limited (‘Gold Genesis’) ("BWI") company (Directly held)
21 February 2008
Gold Genesis Development REBARREE BREMLA 100% E5 5000%T  REER
Limted ([Gold Genesis)) ~ ([RE4EREE ) (BB
s i
Good Lucky Enterprises BVI Limited liabiltty 100% US$ 1 US§50,000  Investment holding
Limited (‘Good Lucky”) 21 February 2008 company (Directly held)
Good Lucky Enterprises FERAREE BREFAT 100% EH 50000k &EER
Limited ([ Good Lucky) “ER-E-A-1-A (ERHR)
First Glory Services Limited BVI Limited fiabifty 100% US§2 US$50,000  Investment holding
(‘First Glory") 16 October 2008 company (Directly held)
Fist Glory Senices Limted ~~~ ZB#BRES BREMAA 100% 2T S0000ET  RERR
([ First Glory ) 2 R (E#HE)
Accordpower Investments BVI Limited liability 100% US$ 2 US$50,000  Investment holding
Limited (‘Accordpower’) 30 November 2004 company (Directly held)
Accordpower Investments ABLRREE BRELAA 100% 25T 500057 REER
Limited ([Accordpower]) ~ =ZEME+—A=+A (E%58)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R R K{ s

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Fullhero Investments
Limited (‘Fullhero”)

Fullhero Investments
Limited ([ Fulhero])

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Stegl
Group Gompany Limited
(Jinxi Limited)

MRS AR ERAT
([2mEe])

Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold
Rolled Shest Company
Limited (*Jinxi Jinlan’)

BlEEeRmLAR
BRAF
(i )

Origntal Fullhero Leasing Co.,
Ltd (‘Shenzhen Leasing’)

RAAERERRAA
([FYEE])

Hebei Jinxi Section Steel
Gompany Limited
(*Jinxi Section Steel’)

MEEERERRAA
([2E28))

Jinxi Hong Kong Trading
CGompany Limited
(‘HK Trading’)
RRARELOERAA
i)

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER S

BVI

3 May 2006
ABEARES
“ETR%RA=R

PRC
24 December 1999

HE
“MANE
+ZA=1mA

PRC
26 December 2003

B
- 3

tZA=+7A

PRC

23 September 2005
e
“EEREAAZTZR

PRC
30 May 2008

R
“EZ\FRA=1A

Hong Kong
27 October 2008

Bk
“EENEHA-HA

Legal status
EETRER
Limited liability

company
BREAAT

Joint stock company
with imited liability

RBRAEAA

Limited liability
company

BREFAR

Limited liability
company
BREAAT

Limited liability
company
BREAAT
Limited liability
company

BREFAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELES
A

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(BERHH)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

80.28%
(Indlrectly held)

80.28%
(RiRA)

100%
(Indlrectly held)
100%
(FEsE)

78.08%
(Indlrectly held)

78.08%
(RirA)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——F+-A=T—HILFE

10. MBARRERER - RDH (&)

(@) MBRRKRE(E)

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital  Principal activities
BETRERRA EERE  TEER
USS2 US850,000  Investment holding
2T 0000 RERR
RMB228,640,000 RMB228,640,000  Manufacture and sales

of iron and steel products

AEH
228,640,0007C

ARR
228,640,000

TERHERAED

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

US$55,180,000  US$55,150,000

55,150,000 55,150,005  4ERHETEER

US65,000,000  US865,000,000  Leasing and financialleasing

6500000057 6500000057 HERBEHE

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

RMB350,000,000  RMB350,000,000

ARE
350,000,007

AEE
350,000,007t

TERHERAED

HKS$38,770,501  HK$80,000,000  Import and export of goods

3877050135 80000000  EHOE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MBARRERER —AXAH (&)

COMPANY (continued)

(@  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ MWBRAEE(E)

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR

£ AR RS EEEREN Bt BREARERRE EERE  TEER

Suifenhe City Jinyin Trading PRC Limited liability 78.1% RVB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000  Import and export of
Co., Ltd. (*Jinyin Trading”) () 24 September 2008 company (Indlrectly held) goods and technology

GANmEREAERAR BREMAA 781% AR® ARE  EHOEMREE
([2RE21)0) 2T \ENAZTER (FiEHE) 10000,00072  10,000,0007

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Stesl PRC Limited liability 69.3% RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000  Manufacture and
Group Zhengda Iron 19 December 2008 company (Indirectly held) sales of steel products
and Steel Co., Ltd.

(‘Zhengda Iron and Stee’)

MEERAEEE TSR b EREEAT 69.3% NG AR®  EEREE
BRAT ZET)\E (FEHE) 500000007 50000000 HMEER
([EE)) TZAThE

Tangshan Fengrun PRC Limited liabilty 69.3% RMB100,000 RMB100,000  Purchase and sale of
Qu Tong Yuan Trading 22 May 2009 company (Indlrectly held) ferrous metal and coke
Gompany Limited
(Tong Yuan Trading’)

BUTEREREAE el EREEAT 69.3% NG AR¥  BEEZELE
BRAT ZETNE (FERE) 100,0007 1000007 RER
([eEel) EA=T=A

Hebei Jinxi Boyuan Real PRC Limited fiabifty 5856%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Development and
Estate Co., Ltd. 17 December 2009 company (Indirectly held) sales of real estate
(‘Boyuan Real Estate’) (i)

MtEERERE i BREAR 58.56% ARE N
REBRAA ZEThE (FERE) 1000000007 1000000007  BitE
([EEEsE]) TZATtA

Clear Precision Limited BVI Limited liabilty 100% US2 US850,000  Investment holding
(‘Clear Precision”) 22 July 2010 company (Directly held)

Clear Precision Limited ABGARES EREEAT 100% XL S0000%T  RERR
(TClear Precision ) “5-5F (BB

tAZt=H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Beijing Jinxi Investment
Holding Co., Lid.
(‘Beiing Jini Investment’)
TRERREBRARAR
(MEREERE])

Origntal Evertrust Finance
Leasing Co. Ltd.
(‘Oriental Evertrust’)

RAEERERERRAR
-vii:1)

Origntal Green Energy-Saving
Environmental Protection
Engineering Co., Ltd
(‘Oriental Green’)

RAGRERRRIE
ERAR(TRAGR])

Hebel Jinshun Energy-Saving
Technology Development
Co., Ltd (Jinshun
Energy-Saving’)

I RIRER R RIS
BRI (B )

Beijing Jinxi Boyuan Real
Estate Co., Ltd (‘Beijng
Real Estate”)

TrRERBRERX
ERAR ([ RRnE])

Place and date
of incorporation

EEAREVEE

PRC
26 August 2010

hE

“3-%%
NBZ17<H

PRC
27 September 2010

hE

“3-%%

NAZTtH

PRC
20 October 2010

hE

“3-%%

i

PRC
17 November 2010

i
“3-%%

t=AtLA

PRC
18 November 2010

hE
z

_I__

=
A

2
AR

Legal status

EETREH

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company

BREFAR

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREFAR

Limited liability
company

BREFAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Group
AREELRR
A

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(FEsE)
100%
(Indlrectly held)
100%
(FEsE)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(RiRA)

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=t—HLEE

10. MBARRERER - XD H (&)

(@) MIBRRKRE(#E)

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital  Principal activities

ERTRAREE TR EIERE

RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Investment holding

ARE ARE  RERK
100,000,000 100,000,0007¢

1S$200,000,000  US$200,000,000  Financial leasing and leasing

200,000,000 200000000 £HEEREE
S S

RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000  Environmental Protection
Engineering

ARE ARR  BERELE
50,000,000 50,000,007

RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Research and development on
recycling and energy-saving
technology and other
recycling busingss

N ARE  WEERRGHRE
100,000,0007c  100,000,0007 REMERES

RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Development and Sales
of real estate

AE# ARE  RERHEERLE
100,000,000 100,000,0007¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-Z——Ft-A=+—AILER

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

China Oriental Singapore
Pte. Ltd. (‘China Oriental
Singapore’)

China Oriental Singapore
Pte. Ltd. (] China Oriental
Singapore ])

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group
Dafang Heavy Industry Science
and Technology Go., Limited

(‘Jinxi Dafang”) (v
MEEEREEEAEL

HEARAT

(FEEAR M)

Jinxi International Trade Co., Ltd.
(“Jinxi International Tracle”) (i)

RREREFARAT
(TEmERES )i

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Yun Da

Trading Co., Ltd.
(*Yun Da Trading”) ()

EUmSREEEREARAA

(TEERE M

Heioei Gaofeidian Jinxing
Resource Development
Co., Ltd. (“Caofsician
Jinxing”) (V)

M ELARRARAY
ERAR(ERa=a))
v

Place and date
of incorporation

EEAREVEE

Singapore
29 November 2010

s
“3-%%

+-A=thA

PRC
27 November 2003

R

Legal status

HEERER

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

e

PRC
28 March 2011
i

“F—%=-1=A

PRC
1 June 2011

4
“F——&5pB-H

PRC
1 July 2011

hE
“F-—-%tf-H

Limited liability
company
BREAAT

Limited liability
company
BRELAT

Limited liability
company

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AREELRR
A

100%
(Indlrectly held)

100%
(REHE)

45.75%
(Indlrectly held)

45.75%
(E&H%)

93.7%
(Inclrectly held)
93.7%
(FEHE)

78.08%
(Indlrectly held)

78.08%
(REHA)

100%
(Directly held)

100%
(EEHA)

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

10. MEBRARRERER-FQR (&)

(@)

Issued

and fully

paid capital
BETRERRA

U35 10,000,000

10,000,000%7C

RMB 93,098,162

ARE
93,098,162 7
RMB 100,000,000

AE%
100,000,000 70

RMB 5,000,000
AEH
5,000,0007C

USD 5,100,000

5,100,000% 7

MEARIRE (&)

Authorised
capital

EERA

Not applicable

TER

RMB 93,008,162

ARE
93,098,16270
RMB 100,000,000

AR%
100,000,000

RMB 5,000,000
AEH
5,000,000

USD 34,000,000

34,000000% 7T

Principal activities

IERE

Trading of iron ore and
related products

HEARDLEBER

Manufacture and
sales of casting products
and equipment maintenance

FERHEREED
it
International trading

anEs

Purchase and sale of
steel products
HEREE

Motor vehicle scrap and
crush demolition solution

CEEL T
LSSENES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Transactions within the Group

U

(i)

(v)

On 1 February 2011, Jinxi Section Steel entered
into a share transfer agreement with Jinxi Limited.
Pursuant to the share transfer agreement, Jinxi
Section Steel acquired 100% equity interest in
Jinyin Trading at a consideration of RMB 10
million.

On 23 April 2011, Beijing Real Estate entered into
a share transfer agreement with Jinxi Limited.
Pursuant to the share transfer agreement, Beijing
Real Estate acquired 60% equity interest in
Boyuan Real Estate at a consideration of RMB 60
million.

Jinxi International Trade was incorporated on 23
March 2011 by Jinxi Limited and Jinxi Section
Steel. The paid-in capital of Jinxi International
Trade is RMB 100 million. Jinxi Limited and Jinxi
Section Steel hold 80% and 20% of its equity
interest respectively.

Yun Da Trading was incorporated on 1 June 2011
by Jinxi Section Steel solely. The paid-in capital of
Yun Da Trading is RMB 5 million.

Caofeidian Jinxing was incorporated on 7 July
2011 by the Company solely. The paid-in capital of
Caofeidian Jinxing is USD 5.1 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2011

=z

(S

10. MBARRERER - XD H (&)

@ MBRARKREE)

FREAXS

U)

(i)

(iv)

—T——%-fA—H-&
702 §ff) £ )22 PR 4 35 5T —
DIRDEZE = o BIEZ
R ER G - EAELH
PARE AR %1,000& 7T
EB100%EIEE HfEn ©

RZE——FHAZ+=
B b REthE SR P
BRI R E S o 1R
BREEZRGZ  tRE
o 2 AR B A KR 6,000
EER 0% BREHE
s o

y=griceil i S R ok b= itk i =
ELRPRAAN — T —— &
= A=+ =BFMmKz -
EFEERE SN EHRA
AAREA00ETT © 2
ik SO Teiskitk sl b =]
H 80% K 20% A% HE

BERERREAMN —
T——FA—HBEHF
MRS - EEEERER
BRAR/AREB00&TT ©

EeaEERN T ——F
T At BEHARAAEM
BRAZ o B EEENE
AR &B5108 =TT °

Annual Report 2011 —F——44EH

159



160

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTRENM)

10.

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Transactions outside the Group

(vi)

On 1 January 2011, the Company and Jinxi
Limited together acquired 51% equity interest
in Jinxi Dafang, originally named as “Tangshan
Dafang Foundry Co., Ltd.”, at a consideration of
RMB 64 million (Note 39).

On 1 December 2011, a third party investor
acquired 10% equity interest in Jinxi Dafang at
a consideration of RMB 14 million in the form of
capital injection to Jinxi Dafang.

As at 31 December 2011 and during the year then
ended, although the equity holdings of the Group
in Jinxi Dafang was below 51%, the Directors are
of the review that the Group had control over Jinxi
Dafang after considering the fact that majority of
the directors of Jinxi Dafang are appointed by the
Group by virtue of the article of association of Jinxi
Dafang.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——FT-A=T—HILEE

10. MEBRARRERER-FQR (&)

(@)

MEARIRE (&)

FRMEIEH

(vi)

R—F——%—A—8"
AN B B 8 35 DA AR(B
AR 6,400 8 7T R4
TRy (RIS [ ILK
HEERRAT ) HI51%
P (BfRE39) ©

RZE——F+=H—
H ZE=78E&
FEREAUREBEARE
1,400 8 JT W B 2 7 K 75
910 % AXAE o

RZZTE—-——F+ = H
=+—BAERBEZHLEF
B BEASEREARA
FHRRAE(EN51% » BEH
RE - EEIFEBAFH
RNEbD E =R AN EE K
BORF AT MBS EE 4
BIZE - AEEHEEAKX
T HETS PRI o



10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Transactions outside the Group (continued)

(vii)

Beijing Zhongye Jinxi Development Co., Ltd
(“Zhongye Jinxi “) was incorporated on 16 March
2011 by Beijing Real Estate and Zhongye Times
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhongye Times”). The paid-
in capital of Zhongye Jinxi is RMB 100 million.
Beijing Real Estate and Zhongye Times hold 51%
and 49% of its equity interest respectively.

On 11 November 2011, Beijing Real Estate
entered into an agreement with Zhongye Times.
Pursuant to the agreement, Zhongye Times agrees
to acquire 51% equity interest of Zhongye Jinxi
from Beijing Real Estate at a consideration of
RMB 61.1 million plus interests of the investments
(included loan) made by Beijing Real Estate to
Zhongye Jinxi. The considerations should be paid
off no later than 31 May 2012. It is agreed that from
the date of the agreement of 11 November 2011,
Beijing Real Estate conveyed to Zhongye Times
all the voting rights on the financial and operating
policies of Zhongye Jinxi. Therefore, from 11
November 2011 the Group does not have control
over Zhongye Jinxi and de-consolidated Zhongye
Jinxi.

For the year ended 31 December 2011

=z

(S

10. MBARRERER - XD H (&)

(@)

MBARIKRE (F)

FRENZR (E)

(vi)

ERFREAERBRA
Al ([#a2f]) Bt RE
HERFERREESR
AE[HFIRRR] R=ZF
——F = A+/NB MK
3o HREFAMHE MR
AAREA00ET - bR
B E & AR D Bl
B 51% & 49% % #E -

RZB——F+—A+—
B b REtEE TR
RET BB - RIEZ
e - PIARRREEUR
BARKEB1108 T2 N
R EHERFIEETER
BEB(BEMRED
B3 MF S EiE 2B
WERFAEFRIBEAS1%
Mgz - REBTERZ
T——_HFRA=+—8f
B BEE BT ——
F+—A+—B#HzEBH
# o b R EHE R PR
REZHIRRAENIT B
EBRMT AR 2R -
At B=F——F+—
B+—Hi  AEEYF
BRT B L
WABEFRIREAEHA
E.Eo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTRENM)

10.

11.

HE-Z——F+-_RA=1—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Loans to subsidiaries

Loans to subsidiaries form part of the Company’s net
investment in the PRC subsidiaries.

The loans to Jinxi Limited amounted to US$ 106.7 million
(RMB 672.3 million equivalent) are unsecured and have
a repayment term of 20 years, which bear interest at a
rate of 8% per annum from 1 July 2010. The Directors
have resolved that these loans will not be settled
upon maturity and regarded these loans as part of the
Company’s net investment in Jinxi Limited.

The loans to Jinxi Jinlan amounted to US$ 51 million
(RMB 321.3 million equivalent) are unsecured and have a
repayment term of 7 years, which bear interest at a rate
of 7% per annum from 16 November 2010.

The rest of these loans to subsidiaries amounted to RMB
3,637.3 million are unsecured, interest-free and with no
fixed terms of repayment.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP

10. MEBRARRERER-FQR (&)

MEARER

B AR ERERARBRH
BB R R A F A — &P ©

R TME R E R 1.067 X
(FBERARK6.72318 L) BE
R EFXHRE20F 2%
—ZTF+ A —BiRIRsbHEF
Kir B - BEFRE  25EH
REAEEIEEE  mSE
BARQREEFAMEERE
SFRER— D o

RS HIREMEFNAES,100
BET(HERARKEI213E
L) REEIE . EREAT
F BT —ZTF+—A+RX
HRIZ 7% MEFEGTE °

ZEHMBRAERBRBEAR
#36.373{E L REEM - R
BN S B TE & R

1. BEQATARE-TKEH

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-THF
At 1 January R—A—H 10,557 10,297
Acquisition of an associate (i) 1 e — 1 EgE = A ) (i) - 14,674
Share of profit of an associate (Note 40) JE (L — B = A Rla A (FisE 40) 2,140 191
Transfer to available-for-sale EEEAEHESEE ()
financial assets (i) - (14,605)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 12,697 10,557
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (continued)

The information of the unlisted associated company at 31

December 2011 is as follows:

Percentage of
Place and equity interest
date of attributable
Name incorporation  to the Group
MR IBER  AREES
£ =p:0 BEADHL B
Qianxi County Zhongxing ~ PRC 35%
Iron Mine Co., Ltd. 21 May 2002 (indirectly held)
(“Zhongxing Iron Mine”)
iR 3 thE 35% 170,450
ARAH —TTF (BERA)
(TP EEE ) A=A

Pursuant to a capital contribution agreement dated
10 March 2010, Jinxi Limited, Qianxi County Hui Yin
Trading Company Limited (“Hui Yin”) and the existing
shareholders of Qianxi County Longba Charging
Company Limited (“Longba Charging”) agreed to
reorganise Longba Charging into a joint venture
company by injecting new capital contribution of
approximately RMB 14.7 million and approximately RMB
2.9 million from Jinxi Limited and Hui Yin respectively,
and further capital contribution of RMB 9 million from
Longba Charging’s existing shareholders. After the
completion of capital contribution, Jinxi Limited, Hui Yin
and Longba Charging’s existing shareholders will own
45%, 9% and 46% of equity interest of Longba Charging
respectively.

Assets

170,450

11.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——F+-A=T—HILFE

BENRRE-AKE(E)

EELABERTR=F——F+= 7
=T AWERNT :

Liabilities Revenues Net profit
8 9N HRA
129,950 159,131 6,115
129,950 159,131 6,115

BERZE—TF=A+HF]
SR HE AR 5 R 7
# BEZRERIZERAA
(MER] REAZREBERS
RAR([BEFEL ] RERR
FAEKEFEHEEK —BE
gnaE - o Rl Bl A E T H i
KESRHEXARKEA,4708 7T
RAOAREE2008TT © AKEESH
ERBREERRE-—FHENA
R#9008 T~ & THK% -
RN - ER REBELSE
ERRER 5 B+ A 5E HIER Y
45% ~ 9% K 46% HIRZHE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

HE-_Z——&+-_BA=1—HItFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

On 26 September 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into
a cooperation agreement for the period of one year
with Mr. Du Chun, one of the shareholders of Longba
Charging. Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, Jinxi
Limited conveyed to Mr. Du Chun all the voting rights on
the financial and operating policies of Longba Charging
for a consideration of approximately RMB 3.9 million.

In September 2011, Jinxi Limited entered into a
supplementary agreement with Mr. Du Chun to extend
the Lease Period to September 2012.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group cannot exercise
any significant influence on this company and hence has
classified these companies as available-for-sale financial
assets of the Group.

From the date of capital contribution to 26 September
2010, the Group has recognised share of loss of Longba
Charging amounted to approximately RMB 0.07 million.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (continued) 11.

BENRRE-AKE(E)

RZZE—ZFNAZ+A8 -
R EEREENORREZ
—MELE L —FHEED
o BESIERZE  ZAEME
Mttt B EEREBEA O
BRCEBROMBIRERE -
REABHAREINET -

R-ZF——&nA 2EEH
HUHEEEET BB
% UBHESEEE T —
ENA -

EERR AEETEHAR
ATEREAEAFE  FAitE
S NGV RN SETRIE

BIERAMEE_T-TF
AZ+RA  AEECHERH
BENERHEBEEOARKTE

JG °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12. E@MIA(ZRER) -FEERER

AND COMPANY Al
The Group KEH
Assets  Available-
at fair value for-sale
Loans and through financial
receivables  profit or loss assets Total
BRASREE
;2R
ERR HEEA e
ELERY BRERNEE SREE w5t
Assets as per consolidated AHEESBRAITNEE
balance sheet
As at 31 December 2011 R-B-——-%+-A=1-H
Available-for-sale financial IR EESHEE (W 15)
assets (Note 15) - - 167,976 167,976
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) B E 5 Rk RiE (M 17) 4,226,839 - - 4226839
Deposits and other receivables RERHtEBIRR
(Note 18) (HzE18) 907,876 - - 907,876
Amounts due from related FE R BR R 7 7008 ([E 43(c)
parties (Note 43(c)) 65,831 - - 65,831
Loan receivables (Note 19) FEWE (M2 19) 320,000 - - 320,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) 2[R 4I4R 174544 (Fi3 20) 891,396 - - 891,396
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) H& K5 &SE (Hz20) 965,082 - - 965,082
Total st 1,377,024 - 167,976 7,545,000
As at 31 December 2010 R-Z-—ZFE+-F=1—H
Avallable-for-sale financial A ES AR (M 15)
assets (Note 1) - - 116,172 116,172
Trade and notes receivables KB ZERRER (M 17)
(Note 17) 3,524,441 = — 3,524,441
Deposits and other receivables %% REMEKEIR
(Note 18) (MizE18) 253,862 - - 253,862
Financial assets at fair value BOABEEEEZEHA
through profit or loss BRANCREE - 131 - 131
Amounts due from related FEU BRE  30B (Fi = 43(0)
parties (Note 43(c)) 999,590 - = 999,590
Loan receivable (Note 19) FEME Zr (Ft3E19) 20,000 - - 20,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SR HIRITEA (F5E20) 159,945 - - 159,945
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) B4 RIS ZEY (K20) 2223245 - - 2203245
Total M@=t 7,181,083 131 116,172 7,297,386
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BRBEERAN  FEEBEINARBTLREN) BE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12 ERIE(REH) - FEERED

166

AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

T (&)
REE (Z)
Financial

liabilities
measured at

amortised cost
BBERATEY
SRAME
Liabilities as per consolidated EHEERBERTNERE
balance sheet
As at 31 December 2011 R=B-——$+=ZA=t-H
Trade payables (Note 23) FE{3 8 5 BRk (FiE 23) 2,106,100
Other payables Hi P ERTL 368,433
Borrowings (Note 25) B (Mt 25) 7,513,384
Other long-term payables (Note 26) Hit R AT (FFE 26) 357,063
Amounts due to related parties (Note 43(c)) FE13 B85 8 (B 3F 43(c)) 118,451
Total @t 10,463,431
As at 31 December 2010 RZE—FF+-A=1—H
Trade payables (Note 23) R B S8R (Bt 23) 1,682,730
Other payables Hi R R 472,751
Borrowings (Note 25) B (M 25) 6,471,279
Other long-term payables (Note 26) Hip REER (i 26) 553,986
Amounts due to related parties (Note 43(c)) {5 B 7 3 0E (FTE 43(0)) 267,436
Total st 9,448,182
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12.

AND COMPANY (continued)

The Company

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T

Assets as per company balance sheet AT EEEERFIRERE

As at 31 December 2011
Available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)
Deposits and other receivables
(Note 18)
Restricted bank balances (Note 20)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20)

Total

R-Z——-f¥+ZA=1-H
HHESRERE (i 15)

BEREMEYRNR
(Hf&E18)

SERHR TR (5L 20)

BERAESEN (ME20)

At

ERMTA(RER) -FAEEARERA

For the year ended 31 December 2011
—&+ZRA=+—HLFE

B (&)
ZIN/NC]
Assets  Available-
at fair value for-sale
Loans and through financial
receivables  profit or loss assets Total
BRAREE
;2R
ERR HEEA e
EKER BRERNEE SREE st
- - 58,371 58,371
69,196 - - 69,196
113,296 - - 113,296
172,641 = = 172,641
355,133 - 58,371 413,504
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
PRAESEHIUARE T T RER)

(=B8N

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12.

AND COMPANY (continued)

The Company (continued)

Assets as per company balance shest
As at 31 December 2010
Available-for-sale

financial assets (Note 15)
Deposits and other receivables (Note 18)
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss
Restricted bank balances (Note 20)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20)

Total

Liabilities as per company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2011
Trade payables (Note 23)
Borrowings (Note 25)

Total

As at 31 December 2010
Trade payables (Note 23)
Borrowings (Note 25)

Total

TRMTA(RER) - FAKERER
B (%)

RRF (&)
Assets Available-
at fair value for-sale
Loans and through financial
receivables  profit or loss assets Total
EANREER
#FER
EXR HEFHTA AHHE
EWER BRERNEE SREE @t
RRBERBRAMTEE
RZZE-ZF+-A=1—H
At ESBEE (F1315)
- - 51,667 51,567
&e REMEKER (i 18) 47,127 - - 47,127
BAREEEEEZEEHA
BRRNeREE - 131 - 131
SR HIRITE R (3 20) 26,830 = - 26,330
Re LRSS EM (F320) 1,339,605 - - 1,339,605
S 1,413,562 131 51,667 1,465,260
Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost
REBHEHAE
ZEeREeE
AREESBERFTARE
RZEB——F+-A=1—H
FEf B 2 iR (Mt 23) 58,854
B (HiEE25) 6,338,549
fst 6,397,403
W-F-FF+-F=t+-H
B SER (f2s) 164,862
&k (M3E25) 5,544,030
5t 5,708,892
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRRFEBEN FRSEINARETIREN) HE-_T——F+_A=t—HIFE

CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets
and by reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates. The Group categorised the trade and notes
receivables and loan receivable as follows:

o Group 1 — Bank acceptance notes
o Group 2 — Trade receivables and loan receivable due

from customers with no defaults in the past

° Group 3 — Trade receivables and loan receivable due
from customers with some defaults in the past

Trade and notes receivables and loan receivable

Group 1 F—4
Group 2 k|
Group 3 E-H

The credit quality of ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’,
‘Deposits and other receivables’ and ‘Amounts due from
related parties’ of the Group is disclosed in Notes 15, 18 and
43(c) respectively.

13.

TRHEENFERR

HARZIHIO BRENEBEENE
BRI RESREESRR > A2E
BRI TR R 2 B RHETTRT
fl - AEE KR E SRR LREM
FEWE R DT -

s FR-RITANEER

s FRE-BUBEEBRIE
B P R B E 2 AR T S B

P
=N

s FZE-RBYEANSBHER
REHENEFPHEWE SRR

U E 5 SR R REM B E

2011 2010

—T——4F —TTF

3,830,658 3,447,559
716,181 96,882

4,546,839 3,544,441

AEE[AIEHESREE]  [1Re
NME U R SR | K [ e U B B 5 3K
B MEERAD BIRHE1S - 18 K%
43(c) #EE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 13. SRMEENEERR(E)

The Group categorises cash in banks as follows: REEGERITERD BT -
e Group 1 —Major international banks o  FH-TERRIRIT
e Group 2 - Listed banks in PRC o  FH-—E EMmiRIT
e Group 3 -Subsidiary of listed banks and other banks in o FH-PH EMRITHBH
PRC BN H M ERTT
The Directors considered the credit risks in respect of cash in BAREHESEEEFTRSAD
banks and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively HRTRPREH ARET  hES
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit rating REFHRSEMENIRTIRS LR
or is state-owned bank and large local banks in PRC. TEZEERBIRE
Cash in banks and bank deposits RITHE LRITIFH
Group Company
rEH b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——-F _T-TF B _T-TF
Group 1 F—458 273,104 512,944 170,898 512,911
Group 2 F-fF 1,519,823 1,670,514 115,034 683,514
Group 3 E=47 57,689 198,774 - 170,000

1,850,616 2,382,232 285,932 1,366,425
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14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT-GROUP

Properties under development comprise:

— Construction costs
— Land use rights

The properties under development are all located in the PRC.

14. BRPYE-FKH

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——F+-_A=1t—HILFE

2011 2010
=

BRERAYEBE
— KA 175,417 111,195
— 4 b R 193,440 135,505
368,857 246,700

BRAMEOURTE - HELHE

The related land use rights are on leases of 40 to 70 years. FRHETHHEAA 40 2704 -
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. AEHHESREE
The Group AREE
2011 2010
—T——% —ZE-TF
Unlisted equity interest (i) F_ET iR () 252,705 188,100
Additions (ii) NE (i) 45,000 64,605
Less: provision for impairment R ORER (188,100) (188,100)
Net FE 109,605 64,605
Listed equity interest (iii) TR (i) 51,567 96,148
Less: provision for impairment R ORERE = (36,128)
Add/(Less): fair value gains/(losses) moCR) « RAEE
transfer to/(from) st (B8 ) B
equity (Note 22) z/(8) = (ME22) 6,804 (8,453)
Net RE 58,371 51,567
Total #Et 167,976 116,172
Less: non-current portion of B AR ESREE
available-for-sale financial assets BB ER D (167,976) (116,172
Current portion of AN ESHEE
available-for-sale financial assets R ENER D - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T—F+-A=+t—HILFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

The Group (continued)

U

The Group’s unlisted equity interest represented an
investment amounted to RMB 188.1 million in a 51%
equity interest in Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Co., Ltd.
(“dinjin Mine”), an unlisted company in the PRC.

In December 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into
certain cooperation agreements (the “Cooperation
Agreements”) with a third-party shareholder of Jinjin
Mine. Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreements, from
the incorporation date of 5 August 2008 to 31 January
2011 (the “Lease Period”), Jinxi Limited conveyed to the
third-party shareholder of Jinjin Mine (the “Lessee”) all
the voting rights on the financial and operating policies of
Jinjin Mine.

In August 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a
supplementary agreement with the aforesaid third-party
shareholder of Jinjin Mine to extend the Lease Period to
30 September 2011.

The Lessee is exclusively entitled to the profit or loss and
net assets accumulated during the Lease Period in return
for paying a lease expense to Jinxi Limited. The Lessee
is also responsible for preserving and increasing the
value of the net assets of Jinjin Mine at the end of Lease
Period. The lease expenses are determined based on the
local iron powder market price and are to be adjusted
quarterly.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group is not able to
exercise any significant influence on Jinjin Mine during
the Lease Period and hence the investment in Jinjin Mine
was recognised as available-for-sale financial assets for
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

China Oriental Group Company Limited [ # iy 4 B 3% B A PR A 7

15. AHtHESRMEE ()

REE (&)

AEBRIELITRBIEREA
R#1.881 87T © AEUS—fE+F
BIELETRARBAZESREE
BRAB(EEEE] H51%
i o

R_ZZNF+=F 27
HEFEBENE=FTRR
RIETEERRTEER
#] - REAERR 8M
KRIZBE (BN NFNA R
ARE—F——F—A=1+—
AT HEEHM]) - ZAMEER
TREEERZE = 7R ([ %
BADBBEZSEENTB R
SRR E IR -

R-Z—ZFF)N\A - ZERE
HERZESBEOF=IRE
RIS NERBEEH
ME—Z——FNA=1+H-

AEAREENRABRE

Reta M BBELEERE -
1R AR M HER
MEH - ABATEEREE
HA ) 48 SR B AR 15 R IR £ 78
XNFEEEBE FHER
X RBE HE N IS ERE
EWIRFEETAR -

EERA AEBLTREEMR
EREESBETEEMNE
AEE At #E2E-_T——
FRZFE-ZTFEFT_HA=1—
HIEFEDERNZCEEN
RERHIEESRHEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 #& R R Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HLFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

15. AHESREE (&)

The Group (continued)

The unlisted equity interest offers return through the LMz BREERAR

lease income. As the investment does not have any
quoted market price in the active market, the range
of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant and
the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be
reasonably assessed, the Directors are of the opinion
that its fair values cannot be reliably measured.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Directors noted
that there were impairment indications on the cost of the
investment in Jinjin Mine as follows:

a. Most of the lease income under the Cooperation
Agreements was due but not received.

b.  The recoverability of the payment for mining rights,
which accounted for a significant part of Jinjin
Mine’s net assets, became very uncertain as the
licence of mining rights is unlikely to be obtained.

The available-for-sale financial assets were fully impaired
as the Directors believed that these impairment factors

HEH - HRZERENEE
MmZWB|EMTISZRE - 2R
BEAEMGINEENRERE
P8 - & IR A AY A] BE 1
ARBELNE HEFAR
HERARBEELASETE -

RZE——FR=ZFT—TF
+-A=+—H8 =& =3
ENRBRESTEENREK
REERE

a. AfFHHEETHNAZEHE
EWAEFHEDRK
Y o

b. WRBEENREEATKE
(EREBEFEENE
REBD) I AR] gE &
BRBEEFAE  MiFE
TEABARIE -

EERRRFRERZAT LR
KRR BAHEESE

would still exist in foreseeable future. BEEZERE °
In September 2011, Jinxi Limited entered into a RZZE——FNA EZAHE
cooperation agreement with a third-party, Hebei HE=FAILEREXSEER

Dong Industry Corporation (Group) Limited. (“Dong
Company”). Pursuant to this cooperation agreement,
from September 2011 to September 2012, Jinxi Limited
conveyed to Dong Company all the voting rights on the
financial and operating policies of Jinjin Mine.

RAF(ERARNHET—H
A{EE - BRI A RS
A-FE-——FNARE-T
——ENR AEBURTE
RATA W2 WENI B R
RO REIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
BREEEEI - MESEEUARBT TREMN) 82—

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

The Group (continued)

(i)

(i)

The addition of the Group’s unlisted equity interest for
the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to RMB
45 million represents further investment in Caofeidian
Port Company Limited. As at 31 December 2011,
the investment in Caofeidian Port Company Limited
amounts to RMB 95 million, representing 10% equity
holding.

As the investment does not have any quoted market
price in the active market, the range of reasonable fair
value estimate is so significant and the probabilities of the
various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed, the
Directors are of the opinion that its fair values cannot be
reliably measured. Therefore, this investment is stated at
cost less impairment, if any.

The Group’s listed equity interest represented an
investment in 600,000,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 4.67% shareholding, of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The fair value of the listed equity interest was determined
on the basis of its quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
—F+=A=+—BILFE

15. AHHESRMEE(F)

REE (&)

(i)

(i)

BE-_T——F+-A=+—
BIEFE  REBFEARALET
BrEE AR 45008 7T 15
BELmELEBEARHEARA
AME—FSRE - R=ZT——
F+=-—A=+—8 ' REWLM
HNARAGESR A TN
BHEEAROL008T  HH
10% AR °

HRZERENERTIS I E
FETSRE  AREEGE
HErE ERE ER - Mm%
HEr A se M EE S B IED
E MEERREAAEME
AT SEFE Al - 25K
BRKARBESR (10F)

AEBMH EMEZERE
600,000,000 A% & A% « {22 M
gERMREEBRAR (—EE
BERBMEXHMER AT ER
LETEIRT]) 4 4.67% ARHE o

tHEEAREBEIREER
REBENTISREETE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=t—HLEE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

The Company

Listed equity interest
Less: provision for impairment
Add/(Less): fair value gains/(losses)
transfer to/(from) equity

Net
Less: non-current portion of
available-for-sale financial assets

Current portion of available-for-sale
financial assets

For the year ended 31 December 2011

15. AIHHESREE (&)

ANA ]
2011 2010
T4 _—T-ZF
s T 51,567 96,148
W R E RS - (36,128)
moCR) « AABEKES
(BB EERE (8)#S 6,804 (8,453)
FE 58,371 51,567
W AR HEEREE
HIZERBNED (58,371) (51,567)
AEHESMEE
HRBNER D - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BREBEAN - ERBEANARBTTAEMN) BE-Z——4F+-A=+—HLFE
16. INVENTORIES - GROUP 16.
Raw materials and materials in-transit B R RS MR

Work-in-progress &
Finished goods R
As at 31 December 2011, inventories with a net book value
of RMB 61 million (2010: RMB 89 million) were pledged as
security for the Group’s notes payable and current borrowings
(Notes 23 and 25).
The cost of inventories recognised as expense amounted to
RMB 35,995 million (2010: RMB 28,081 million).
The Group recognised a loss of RMB 108 million (2010: nil)
(Note 31) for the year ended 31 December 2011, in respect
of the write-down of inventories to their net realisable values.
These amounts have been included in “cost of sales” in the
consolidated income statement.
17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 17.
The Group
Accounts receivable FEUBR SR
Less: impairment provision B FEER AR E B
for accounts receivable (Note 31) (Ff5ES31)
Accounts receivable-net FEURBR IR — 558
Notes receivable (a) FEUZELE (a)

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

FE-TKH
2011 2010
—2-——% CZT-TF
3,690,877 3,383,136
394,369 418,821
530,657 283,788
4,615,903 4,085,745

RN-_ZE——F+-_RA=+—H B4&
AEEEMNZERRBE R MK
GFEMREFEAAREKG 1008 T
(ZZT—ZF : AR¥8,90087T) (Kt
FE23 % 25) °

BEERAEAINGTEERARAEARK
3595 ET(ZE—ZFF: AR
280.81127T) °

AEBEMBFE QA Z2EFERE
E-T—F+-A=+—HLFE
ERNBER/ARK1.08ET(ZF
—ZF  T)(MFE31) - ZZEEER
BHFAERR [HEKA | AR

R E 5 RN R B S
A

2011 2010
—2——F —T-Tf
399,788 76,882
(3,607) -
396,181 76,882
3,830,658 3,447,559
4,226,839 3,524,441




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

As at 31 December 2011, the notes receivable were all
bank acceptance notes, of which approximately RMB
147 million (2010: RMB 55 million) were pledged as
security for issuing notes payable (Note 23).

As at 31 December 2011, notes receivable of RMB
14 million were pledged as security for the Group’s
borrowings (2010: nil) (Note 25).

The settlement of the notes receivables were guaranteed
by banks with maturity dates within six months and
the credit risks in respect of the notes receivables are
considered to be low.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of the

Group’s trade and notes receivables approximated their fair
value due to their short maturity.

The credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the sales of

products to customers is to deliver goods either upon receipt

in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with the

maturity dates within six months.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the ageing analysis of the
gross amount of trade and notes receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAMA
4-6 months 4% 61E A
7-12 months 721218 A

17. BWEZ RN

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——F+-A=T—HILFE

RE#E)

RNEEE (F)

@)

RZZ—F+=-_A=+—H -
RN BRI TR R IESE - B
e RRAENZERMERN
EREBRRBOARKE147ET
—E—TF: ARU55008
70) (BisE23) °

RZE—F+=ZH=+—8 -
AR®EA,40 BT RKERE
BASERERMELER(Z
T—FF : T)(ffFE25) o

FEW iRm0 B HI B /N E A LA
N RAERRITEREEER
BRARAR REIE -

R-F——FR-_F—FTF+-A
=t+—B BIHEE AKENE
W S ERERENREELIUAR
RfBME -

AEBRTHERHEEEERER B
T ARUER & B H B RS E A A
MERTTAL ERB REPRNEY ©

R_E——fR-F—FTF+_-A
=t—8 BRUREBESEIRFRENE

HBREC AATINT -
2011 2010
—g——-F —"ZT-TF
2,293,212 3,167,223
1,900,654 357,218
36,580 -
4,230,446 3,524,441
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, accounts receivable pledged by
letters of credit issued by the third parties was RMB 40 million.
(2010: nil).

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of RMB 345
million (2010: RMB 77 million) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers with no
recent history of default. The Directors considered that trade
receivables which are past due within three months are not
impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was
as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAM

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and notes
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AREE
uss$ ETT

The Company

Accounts receivable from third party FEUEE = BRER
Accounts receivable from subsidiaries FEUL T B A ] BR IR

178 China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

17.

FEE 5 IR R RE (&)
REE (&)

NR-—FBE——E+=-HA=+—08 " A%
= HAANEREERFNERES
BRRBHOARE 4008 T (ZE—F
FF)o

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H 2@
HEMREMNERE SRR BARK
345 BT (ZZE—FF : ARK 7,700
BIT) c RERBSIRZEKITEE
HREFGEHENBULRS - EERAE
#B BRI R AR = {BE A B FE NN R 5 BR SR
RBE - ZFREWE 5 RERRER D
Moy :

2011 2010
S
344,578 76,882

AEBERKE ZEALEENREE
TIA TN ERE DB

2011 2010
—2——f% C—T-TF

3,992,912 3,623,412
237,534 1,029

4,230,446 3,524,441

LN
2011 2010
2% CZT-TF
195,068 -

3,115,600 2,411,390

3,310,668 2,411,390
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

The Group

Non-current

Prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Receivables for operating lease (a)

Current
Prepayments for purchase of inventories
Deposits and other receivables (b)
Receivables for operating lease,

current portion (a)
Less: Impairment provision of

deposits and other receivables

FERE

BEVE  BEMRE
HTRN FRIA
LT E R RUGRIA (a)

RE
BEEFENFANTIR
BE RE A REUERK (b)
RETHEMRIFIR -
MENERD (a)
iR e R EA R
RN RERHE

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of the
Group’s deposits and other receivables approximated their fair

value.

Impairment provision of deposits and other receivable

represented a full provision of RMB 21 million for certain

advance payments for mining rights of iron ore. As at 31

December 2011, the Directors concluded that there was

significant uncertainty of obtaining the mining rights or

recovering the advance payments.

(@)  Pursuant to certain agreements entered into in 2011,

Jinxi Limited paid the consideration of approximately

RMB 228 million to obtain a 51% equity interest in each

of Tangshan Fei Cheng Kuang Ye Limited, Qianxi County
Xin Ye Machinery Casting Limited, Qianxi County Hong
Yuan Trading Limited, Qianxi County Fu Cheng Trading
Limited and Qianxi County Xin Cheng Trading Limited
(the “Five Companies”) and the mining rights of Qianxi

Gaojiadian Iron Mine (the “Gao Jia Dian Ming”).

18. FANFUR - RERHMERARK

AEE

2011 2010
25 "T-TF
436,818 264,663
102,829 -
539,647 264,663
1,076,465 665,415
907,876 253,862
32,617 -
(21,305) (21,305)
1,995,653 897,972
2,535,300 1,162,635

RZE——FR_FT—ZTFF+_H
=t+—H AEEZREFEMEWKE
RZEEEAUEAAEE -

2 I B th & W BR SR 2 R E B B 1E 7t
BENEEENS TENREHE
HBARK21008BTL - RZT——F
+=—A=+—H E=5FHEwEE
BB AE S B TR S AT TEE AT ER
B = o

@ WBE_ZT——FFUNETH
& ORAMEXANRKEOAR
% 2.28 {8 7T LAHRAS /& 1L FRAK B
FERRQA - BERIT AW
BEBRLA BOBRLEER
SERRF] - BOAKEKES
ERAGMEBEAZEKNESE
RAR(TAARE ) H51%
BEREARREHBE(SRE
BE |) B ERAERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

HE-Z——GF+-_RA=1—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

(continued)

In January 2011, Jinxi Limited entered into a cooperation
agreement with Mr. Wei, a third-party individual.
Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, from 1 March
2011 to 28 February 2017 (the “Grant Period”), Jinxi
Limited conveyed to Mr. Wei all the voting rights relating
to the financial and operating policies of the Five
Companies, Tangshan Jinxi Mining Company Limited
(“dinxi Mining”), a former subsidiary of Jinxi Limited, as
well as the mining rights of Gao Jia Dian Mine.

Mr. Wei is exclusively entitled to the profit and net assets
accumulated by the Five Companies, Jinxi Mining and
the mining rights of Gao Jia Dian Mine during the Grant
Period. As a return, Mr. Wei pays cash consideration
of RMB 33 million annually during the Grant Period and
a deposit of RMB 10 million, which will offset the last
payment in 2017.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group disposes its
equity interest of Five Companies and mining rights of
Gao Jia Dian Mine in return for a long-term receivable
from Mr. Wei, which is recognised at the present value
of total cash consideration amounted to approximately
RMB 179 million as at 31 December 2011. The
difference between the aforementioned payment and
the present value of the total cash consideration is
recognised as loss in “other (losses)/gains — net” in the
consolidated income statement.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

18. ANRE - BEREMERER
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REE (&)
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A EAMEARREARE
IR EEAR AR 2R
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EREERRREEENEE
R TR AL -

RETHE BEEBRE
HAKAR ZABEESR
I 801 ) £R AR 4 P R AR A0 04 K
RFEE-1ERBR  BRELAE
RETFTHHESFEHRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. R RIE - &R HEMEWRERER
RECEIVABLES (continued) (%)
The Group (continued) REE (4F)
(@  (continued) @ (&)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has received the
first payment of RMB 33 million and the deposit of RMB
10 million from Mr. Wei and has offset those against the
carrying value of receivable for operating lease.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into in July 2011,
Tangshan Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Limited (“Tangshan
Jinxi Group”) transferred 100% shares of Qianxi County
Jinxi Wan Tong Ductile Iron Pipes Co., Ltd. (“Jinxi
Wantong”) to Qianxi County Xin Dingda Commercial Co.,
Ltd. (“Qianxi Xin Dingda”), owned by a third-party (“Mr.
Zhang”). The transfer was completed by 29 July 2011,
and since then Jinxi Wantong is no longer the Group’s
related party.

As at 31 December 2011, the receivables from Jinxi
Wantong totalled RMB 486 million are secured by pledge
of the fixed assets of Jinxi Wantong amounted to RMB
1,072 million, bore interest at a rate of 6.56% per annum,
and repayable within one year.

R=®——F+=A=+-
A A E S RIRB
— S AR 8,800 8 7T R
AR 100087 - WE K
R AR AR I -

BE-_FT——FEHIZA—
Bz B EARESEES
RARI([EILEREE]) EE
BREGZEOEBRREZEAR
~E(EEE®]) 2B E
TREAGEREREERAA
(T&RE]) (BBIE=4 (&
EEIHER) ZEER_Z
——H+tA=-thBZ=EK" B8
BREEASBTHAAEE
RaEE 7 o

N=_T——F+=A=+—H
EREZAEEBHERELXAA
R¥4.861870 - ZEBENHZE
AEEnNEEEEARK10.72
BIRIERER  ZEEAEE
F6.56% T ER—FRNEE -

The Company ViN/NE]
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEFERNTENMNFIE 16,582 220
Deposits and other receivables %4 N EH b fE W AR FX 69,196 47,127
85,778 47,347
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES - GROUP 19. BEREFRF-—KEEH
2011 2010
=25 "ZT-TF
Non-Current IER B
Loan receivable (i) JEUCE TR (i) 300,000 =
Current B
Loan receivable (ii) JE U E 7K (ii) 20,000 20,000
Total Loan receivables EWERETE%E 320,000 20,000
()  The loan receivable of RMB 300 million is secured by a () ARESETHNEKEREHRETY
pledge of certain property, plant and equipment, with ¥ BB MEEIEERR - RERN X
interest at a rate of 12% per annum, and will be fully 12%:tERER—_E—NE+ A%
collected in July 2014. e o
(i)  The loan receivable of RMB 20 million is unsecured, (i) ARE2,0008THERERAEE
with interest at a rate of 12% per annum and will be fully o RFENEA2% T E RN —F
collected within one year. AZEUE o
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of R-FE——FRZZF-ZFF+-A
loan receivables approximated their fair value. =+—B BUEFRNREETOE
NAfEE -

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20. BeRBESEEYUARZIREIERIT

BANK BALANCES =
The Group REE
2011 2010
—g——F "ZT-TF
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 965,082 2,223,245
Restricted bank balances 2R HISRTTAERR 891,396 159,945
1,856,478 2,383,190
As at 31 December 2011, restricted bank balances were RZZE——F+-_B=+—H ' R
composed of the following items: FISRITAE R B 4E NP IR ¢
(@) Restricted bank balances amounted to approximately @ EARAEXRSEEEMNZEMmIE
RMB 164.5 million were pledged as security for issuing WS R4 RITaEe A AR
notes payable of the Group (2010: RMB 117.4 million) 1645BIL(ZZE—FF : AR
(Note 23). ¥ 1.174187) (FIzE23) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20.
BANK BALANCES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(b)  Restricted bank balances amounted to approximately
US$ 19.76 million (RMB 124.4 million equivalent) and
RMB 1.7 million were pledged as security for issuing
letters of credit (2010: US$ 4.2 million (RMB 27.6 million
equivalent)).

(c) Restricted bank balances amounted to approximately
RMB 600.8 million were pledged as security for current
borrowings of the Group (2010: RMB 14.9 million) (Note
25).

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following

currencies:

RMB AR
us$ eI
HK$ BIT

The Company

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
Restricted bank balances PR HIERTTAE SR

As at 31 December 2011, restricted bank balances amounted
to approximately US$ 18 million (RMB 113.3 million equivalent)
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit (2010:
US$ 4.1 million (RMB 26.8 million equivalent)).

RERBSE/YURZRHRT
e (E)

REE (&)

b) ERREEAZFMmMEMAZR
Bl SR 1T A4S R KV 701,976 B T
(HBERAR1.244187T) R A
REAT0BL(ZZ—ZF : £
L4208 T (FBER AR 2,760

e —

BIr)) °

(© CAXRKEREERMEMHE
HRHRITAERK AR K 6.008
BRL(ZZF—ZF: AR®K

e —

1,490 87T ) (HI5E 25) °

RBe RReFEMARZRHIRITHE
FREVFREETIA THIE BN

2011 2010
—E2——F —EF-FF

1,420,848 1,336,132
433,355 1,043,143
2,275 3,915

1,856,478 2,383,190

AR
2011 2010

—g——% —2-2F
172,641 1,339,605

113,296 26,830

285,937 1,366,435

R-ZE——F+=-_A=+—H 24
FEEREMERNZBEIRTE
BRAEITL1,800B T (HHERARE
1.133BIL)I(ZE—ZF : 04108
T (HHERARK2,68087T)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20.
BANK BALANCES (continued)

The Company (continued)

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following

RERRSEEWARZIRHEIRT
e (E)

AKRBE (&)

B LREFEMARZRHIRITAE
FREFREEGIA TG BN

currencies:
2011 2010
=25 —TZF
Us$ ETT 283,045 1,022,350
HK$ BT 2,265 3,904
RMB AR 627 340,181
285,937 1,366,435
21. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND 21. BARGE-FAEERAQF
COMPANY
Amount
Number
of shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
R EE
(FR) EER R EE st
At 1 January 2010 R-E-E§-HA—A 2,929,200 311,669 2,189,695 2,501,364
Employee share option scheme: B EBEAERTE
— issuance of shares (Note 22(c)) — a7 (HisE22(c)) 525 46 596 642
At 31 December 2010 R-E-FE+-A=1+—-H 2,929,725 311,715 2,190,291 2,502,006
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&E+-A=+—-H 2,929,725 311,715 2,190,291 2,502,006
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the total number of R_E——FR_ZE—ZFTF+ =

authorised ordinary shares is 5,000,000,000 shares with a par
value of HK$ 0.1 per share.

As at 31 December 2011, the number of issued and fully
paid ordinary shares is 2,929,725,000 shares (2010:
2,929,725,000 shares).

184 China Oriental Group Company Limited B H iy 4 F % B A PR A 7

B=+—HB ZFrETBRLHA
5,000,000,000 f& & IE EI{E 0.1 78 TT AY
f&f5m ©

RZE——F+_HA=+—8"
ERTRBREBERMNBRHOEKE
#2,929,725,000% ( = & — & 4 -
2,929,725,000 f%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP

Balance at 1 January 2010 WZE-ZE-F-AMLH
Profit appropriation aHHE
Employee share option scheme [EBERETE

- Value of employee service (Note 32)  —[E & FRIEHIELE (FiizE32)
Fair value losses on available-for- MEHESHEEN

sale financial assets (Note 15) MhEESE (R 15)

Balance at 31 December 2010 R-B-ZE+-A=+-AHER

Profit appropriation HHAE
Employes share option scheme [EEEREE

- Value of employee service (Note 32) ~ — BB R e(E(E (Fia2)
Fair value gains on available-for- ARESREE

sale financial assets (Note 15) B EENE (B 15)

Balance at 31 December 2011 RZB——E+ZA=1-AHEE

(@ Merger reserve

22, H{bEEE—AEE

Available-
for-sale
Merger ~ Capital ~ Statutory financial
reserve  surplus  reserve  Options assets Total
e
aftfE ARDE  ATHE  BRE  SREE st
(@) (o) Y
(699 19144 977,808 187,384 8453 1,192,190
- - 2140 - - 2,140
- - - 67552 - 67552
- - - - (8453 (8453
(699) 19,144 1,004,948 254936 - 1278429
- - 31792 - - 379
= = - 53262 - 53262
- - - - 6,804 6,804
(99) 19,144 1,036,740 308,198 6,804 1,370,287

The merger reserve of the Group represents the

difference between the nominal value of the shares of

the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.

@ AHFEE

AEBEHE SHERED BN
BRrEOOHEERREES
RAEBKEMERITHARRR
DE{ER)EHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Statutory reserve

(i)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
of the Group registered in the PRC, before
distributing the net profit of each year, these PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting any
prior year’s losses as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations to the statutory surplus
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to issue bonus shares. However, such
statutory surplus reserve fund must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the entity’s share capital
after such issuance.

Discretionary reserves

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’'s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ——FT-A=1T—HILEE

22, Hftiftte— A58 (&)

(b)

RTEREE

(i)

(ii)

EE BRI

BEREEHR R A EER
B MrE FHEA
AIMMBBER  §F DK
Fm AR - 5% 5 B S
NAIRERE SRR
EHEEFRERR - B
BEFEATEF m A
10%EETERARRFEE
BEERHBEZERAN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©

Employee share option scheme

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors and
employees on 30 June 2006 and 26 October 2007
(“Date of Grant”), in an aggregate of 24,200,000 shares
and 89,700,000 shares respectively. The options are
exercisable at any time during the period no later than
ten years from the Date of Grant at the exercise prices
of HK$ 1.76 and HK$ 5.24 per share respectively.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors and
employees on 24 February 2009, 11 May 2009 and
29 December 2009, in an aggregate of 21,200,000
shares, 6,600,000 shares and 148,780,000 shares
at an exercise price of HK$ 1.39 per share, HK$
1.50 per share and HK$ 2.84 per share respectively.
These options are exercisable during several periods.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors and
employees on 20 December 2010 and 24 December
2010, in an aggregate of 6,000,000 shares,and
47,100,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$ 3.00
per share and HK$ 3.182 per share respectively.
These options are exercisable during several periods.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

22, Hftif#fe—AKE (&)

(©)

& B Rt &l

EARRNBEZREZIER
BHEEEREBER-ZET
NENAZ+TER-_ZEZTLF
TAZTABUEREBEH]D
BEERTETHERE 2329
N & #£24,200,000% i% 5 &
89,700,000 i A% fn © & A 4 Al
IR B ER R 5T 1 B 4 B
MR T AT - 1TEESD
B AR 1.76 78 7T 12 5.24
ST o AN B A AR S BT
S EEREREEXIEER
To

KARNREZRGRMER
KKEEEREEBENZZ
NE—_A=-+HAB - ZFF N
FREAT-—HE=-ZZTAF
+—_A-—thBERFETE
f% # - ¥ & & 21,200,000
% A% 17 - 6,600,000 3% B% (5 &
148,780,000 g iz 17D + 1T{EE 5
B AER1.39%8 T - Bi%1.50
BLEER284B T % F
BERERNE T HME A T AT
{8 o ANEE B 37 & DA IR 5 B (B 5%
HEEERENEE TR -

BREARREZRGRIER
KNEEEREEENR T —
ZFEF+_A-_+HER=_ZF—F
F+_A-tHAERTET
FERRHE - % KA $£6,000,000 %
% {5 % 47,100,000 f% B 17 - 17
FED R ASZRI00EBTLRE
f%3.182 8T - % FHWIRENE
TEARIO A FLATTE - AEE
I DA & B8 B sk 4 B R AR e
HEESHEERE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - AESEAUARE TITRER)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©)

Employee share option scheme (continued)

All relevant directors and employees have accepted the
share options above.

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, share
options were granted to an employee on 14 January
2011 (“Scheme A”), in an aggregate of 800,000 shares
at the exercise prices of HK$ 3.20 per share. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the options in cash. The options are exercisable
during the following periods:

(i) up to 33% of the options on or after 14 January
2011;

(i) up to further 66% of the options on or after 14
January 2012;

(i)  all the remaining options on or after 14 January
2013;

and in each case, not later than 13 January 2021.

In January 2011, the employee has accepted the share
options.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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22, Hftiftte— A58 (&)

©

B B Rt 8l (/)
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AFERHE
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& 8% i & 2£ 800,000 AR A7 &Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 Bt & R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued) 22, HiifEE-AKE(E)

(©)

Employee share option scheme (continued)

As approved by the Company’s Special General
Meeting, share options were granted to a director on 27
April 2011 (“Scheme B”), in an aggregate of 9,800,000
shares at the exercise prices of HK$ 3.08 per share.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash. The options are
exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 33% of the options on or after 27 April 2011;

(i) up to further 66% of the options on or after 27 April

(©)

EERBEE S (')

BADNBIRHRIRERE &
B —HEFER_FT——
FOA-_+tHERTET
BRE(EB])  FREHK
9,800,000 i &5 + 1T E AT
A% 3.084 7T o A5 B 3 & LAIR
CHEONEEBERENEEX
HER M - BAREERT R AT &
IR T AT TE -
() RZZE—FNHA=+t
Hek 2 & 1T H&% 33% KJ
FERRIE -

iy MZE—=—FWA=++L

2012; Bk &1TE&KZ I
66% HHE AR HE
(i) all the remaining options on or after 27 April 2013; iy MZZE—=FEOA-—++
Az BITEMEER TR
A& HE

and in each case, not later than 27 March 2021.

In April 2011, the director has accepted the share
options.

The fair value of options granted during the year ended
31 December 2011 were determined by using the
Binomial valuation model, and the significant inputs into
the model were as follows:

REMMBRT  TEER-Z
——®=ZA=++H-

R-ZT——FWA ZEEFE
RARRERE -

REBEE-ZFT——F+=A
=+ HBLEFERHBEREDN
ARABENFEAZBANGEER
AMEE  REAZEXANE
Z28WT ¢

Scheme =2 A B
Share price at the grant date (HKS) B HEIRR D B (GBor) 3.20 3.08
Volatility R 54.968% 55.841%
Expected dividends paid out rate FERHIR B3R 3.34% 3.47%
Annual risk-free interest rate FE R R A 2.722% 2.730%
Fair value in HK$ (million) LA(B8)BTAEAML

AR EE 1.140 13.459
RMB equivalent (million) ARBEZE(EE) 0.966 11.273
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE_Z——F+-_A=T—HILEE

(c) Employee share option scheme (continued)

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of

expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily share prices of the Company and other
comparable companies over the last 411 weeks and 425
weeks respectively. See Note 32 for the total expense

recognised in the consolidated income statement for

share options granted to the directors, employees and

eligible persons.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

and their related weighted average exercise prices were

as follows:

At 1 January
Granted
Exercised
Lapsed

At 31 December

22, Hftiftte— A58 (&)

© (EEBRETEI(E)
RREFRERRAZERZE
FEt B/ IE - TIIRBARQ A
R E At P LR A BB A 411 &
BN 42582 e E B IR(E
BETBFEANMAEMS - 5F8
B EENAEBMALER
BB R E RN & HE AR R R A
A - F2HMEe2 -
ARITEBRESE KA
BAINETFHEITREENZEFWT
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-FF
Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of options price per of options
share in HK$ (thousands) share in HK$  (thousands)
BRERGH BRI GHEY
THTHEE BREZE THIRE BREZE
(Bx) (F12) (A7) (F1)
R—A—H 2.74 222,250 2.62 176,580
[SEsqun 3.09 10,600 3.16 53,100
BEATE = = 1.39 (525)
[ 2.82 (2,700) 2.80 (6,905)
R+=—A=+—H 2.76 230,150 2.74 222,250
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=tT—HLEE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued) 22, HitifFE-~&£E (&)
(c) Employee share option scheme (continued) ) (EEREREZIE)
Share options outstanding at 31 December 2011 and RZE——FR B —=FF
2010 have the following expiry date and exercise prices +—B=1+—"HEKRTENE
as follows: ARy fEm B B R A TE BT ¢

Number of options

Exercise price (thousands)
1TEE BREHE (T40)

Expiry date HKS$ per share 2011 2010

[E B H# BRET —E——F —E-FF

23 February 2019 —E-hE-_A=+=H 1.39 20,500 20,500

10 May 2019 —E-NFhRAT+H 1.50 6,100 6,600

28 December 2019 —E-AFt+-_A=F+N\H 2.84 141,650 142,050

16 May 2016 —E—RFERA+H 3.00 6,000 6,000

19 December 2020 —E-FEF+=-H+AH 3.18 45,300 47,100

13 January 2021 —E-_—F—F+=H 3.20 800 -

27 March 2021 —E-_—F=A=-++tH 3.08 9,800 -
230,150 222,250

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. EREZRR
The Group REE

2011 2010

25 ZT-TF

Accounts payable JEISBRFR 1,734,258 1,433,538
Notes payable (a) JES =4 (a) 371,842 249,192
2,106,100 1,682,730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BREEERAN  FEEBEIUARBTLREN) BE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@ Asat 31 December 2011, all notes payable represented
bank acceptance notes, of which RMB 147 million
(2010: RMB 45 million) were secured by certain notes
receivable (Note 17), RMB 195 million (2010: RMB 145
million) were secured by certain restricted bank balances
(Note 20), and RMB 30 million (2010: RMB 59 million)
were secured by certain inventories (Noted 16) and
certain restricted bank balances (Note 20).

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables was as follows:

23. ENESEX(E)

REE (&)

(@)

R—ZF—F+—-_A=+—8"
A ENRIEAIRITENIES -
HepBiE s TRRER (s
17) BIRIF AR 1.47 8 0(=
T—TF : ARKE4,50087T)H
RITAGIEE « LA TZRHE
1THEER (I 7E 20) AR IR AR HE
195BIT(ZE—ZF : AR
1451870 ) RISRITARLIES « DA
ERAETHEE(ME16)FET%
PR ISR T A5 R (FT3E 20) AHKIRAY
ARE3,0008EL(ZE—ZF
AR 5,900 87T ) R T I

o

I~

R_E——FR-_Z-—ZTF+_H
=+—H  ENESRERNRE DN

Within 3 months 3EAR
4-6 months 4Z=6MEA
7-9 months 7EIEA
10-12 months 10E 1218 A
Over 1 year 1A E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
us$

AR¥E

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

T -
2011 2010

—E-—F —ZT-ZF
1,783,488 1,171,324
245,285 447,400

17,620 33,400

10,465 5,893

49,242 24,713

2,106,100 1,682,730

REBEENESREROFEEETIAT

SIEHE AL -

2011 2010

S
1,982,992 1,487,662
123,108 195,168
2,106,100 1,682,730




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=tT—HLEE

23. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The Company

JE A5 FRIR

Accounts payable

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAA

The carrying amounts of the Company’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

US$ e

23.

ENES &R (E)
AT
2011 2010
—B——-F C—T-FF
58,854 164,862

R-BE——FR-F-—ZFF+_H
=t—8  BHEZERNKREDIT
mE

2011 2010
—g——% —2-2F
58,854 164,862

ARFEA B SEROEEEIAT
5 A -

2011 2010
S
58,854 164,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=+t—HILHFE

24. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND 24, ERER - BUREFREREMR

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES - GROUP HEBE-AXEE

2011 2010

—E2——F —EF-TF

Accruals JEIRE A 377,287 396,961

Advances from customers TEW R FFRIE 1,971,855 1,914,673

Value-added tax payable FESIE(ET 116,876 84,739

Other taxes payables HAbfESFIR 41,725 13,546

Other payables (a) H b FE(TBR 3R () 580,219 627,533

3,087,962 3,037,452

(@) The breakdown of other payables as at 31 December @ MRZE——FR_ZFT—FF
2011 and 2010 were as follows: +ZA=+—HMEMENEE
RAOLET -
2011 2010

—g—-& —3-%F

Pension payables and other FERTIRIR S R EAth

social welfare payables et 2R 55,048 57,785
Payables for purchase of property, BEWE  BEX

plant and equipment RARHYE T BRR 161,235 268,155
Customer deposits BEFES 186,677 175,116
Employee deposits BEZS 20,521 29,480
Salary payables ERFHE 67,741 37,679
Others HAith 88,997 59,318

580,219 627,533
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R R K{ s

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BRBEEAN  FEERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-_A=+—HLFE

25. BORROWINGS 25. &
The Group RE
2011 2010
—B——F —E-EF
Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings — RITER—
Secured (i) 2 () - 38,000
Unsecured AR 65,000 144,000
65,000 182,000
Other borrowings, unsecured (i) E b5 58— S (i) - 65,000
Senior Notes (iii) 18 55 =4 (i) 5,295,962 5,544,030
5,360,962 5,791,030
Current B
Bank borrowings — RITRER—
Secured (i) B (i) 651,134 128,261
Unsecured AR 3K 1,436,288 551,988
2,087,422 680,249
Other borrowings, unsecured (i) E b5 58— A (ii) 65,000 =
2,152,422 680,249
Total borrowings 4 ek 7,513,384 6,471,279

As at 31 December 2011, secured borrowings
amounted to RMB 38 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounted to RMB 651 million, were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 7) of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2011, secured borrowings
amounted to RMB 567 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 651 million, were secured by certain
restricted bank balances (Note 20) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2011, secured borrowings
amounted to RMB 19 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 651 million, were secured by certain
inventories (Note 16) of the Group.

W—_ZF—F+=-A=+—8"
EEMERRBEARKE.51ET
o HE ARKES3,8008 THE
EIREFARER B TYIZ « K
Bs M kA (7E 7) A -

RZTE——F+ZA=+—
H - EEfEREEARES.51
BrH - HR ARKES.67ETH
ERBERUASEENETX
MR w1 ERTTAEER (T 5E20) AR -

RZTE——F+=ZA=+—
H EEREREBEARE
6.51{ETH - Hi ARH 1,900
BTHERBERNUAEER
HTHE(KHE16) BEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 & R = Ki &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTRENM)

HE-Z——F+-_RA=1—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

U)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2011, secured borrowings
amounted to RMB 27 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 651 million, were secured by certain
restricted bank balances (Note 20) and notes receivable
(Note 17) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2010, secured borrowings
amounted to RMB 38 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounted to RMB 166 million, were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 7) of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2010, secured borrowings
amounted to RMB 9 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 166 million, were secured by certain
restricted bank balances (Note 20) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2010, secured borrowings
amounted to RMB 19 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 166 million, were secured by certain
inventories (Note 16) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2010, other than the secured
borrowings described above, current secured
borrowings amounted to RMB 100 million were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 7),
certain leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6) and
a guarantee by Foshan Jin Lan Aluminum Company
Limited (“Foshan Jin Lan”) pursuant to an agreement
dated 12 September 2008. In accordance with the
guarantee contract, Foshan Jin Lan granted a guarantee
in favour of Jinxi Jinlan for bank borrowing facilities
amounted to RMB 150 million.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

25.

(CEN

(%)

RE&EE (&)

(%)

R=ZZE——F+=-_R=+—
H BEEREFREEARE
6.51f87TH - Hif AR% 2,700
BTHERRERUTERD
T 2R &8R4 8% (Bt EE20)
R IEWSRIE (IFE17) B -

R-F—ZFT-_A=+—8"
BEHEAETAEARE1.66(E7T
B Hh ARKES,800& THIE
EREFTARNEENETYE -
RS sk tr (MIRE7) A8 o

RZZ-—BF+=A=+—
A BERERREARE.66
7T - Heh ARME900 BT
EEME R A RENE T E
BRAHI8R 17 A5 B4 (BT 520) A2

R=P-—BF+=A=+—
A EERERBEARS
1.6618TH - Hih AR 1,900
87T 0 B I RIS A AR B
T8 (3 16) B -

RZE—ZTF+=RAR=+—
H  BREXFIEBENCEERG
FON BERREBERARE
100 TAE TYE - BE K
= (7)) ETHEELHMK
T fEFARE (FisE6) AEM - I
BB 1L & B 4R R A PR A ([ 3
LWewm ) BREBRHA_ZTZ
NEANA+=—BzHE L AE
R BERERELH HLEH
AR50 THEITER
BERZEASH L EER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

(i)

(i)

Other unsecured borrowing represented a borrowing
from a local county government amounted to RMB 65
million which has no fixed term of repayment. Interest is
charged at the RMB bank deposit rate for 1 year fixed
deposit.

On 18 August 2010, the Group issued US$ 550 million
Senior Notes, which bears interest at 8% per annum
and payable semi-annually, to finance its potential
acquisitions and investments, capital expenditure
projects and working capital requirements. The principal
of these Senior Notes is wholly repayable on 18 August
2015.

On 17 November 2010, the Group issued US$ 300
million Senior Notes, which bears interest at 7% per
annum and payable semi-annually, to refinance its
outstanding short-term debts. The principal of these
Senior Notes is wholly repayable on 17 November 2017.

On 12 August 2010, Eastland International Trading
Limited (“Eastland”), a company incorporated in BVI and
is wholly owned by Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
subscribed for US$ 21 million of the Senior Notes
from the Initial Purchases through Credit Suisse Group
AG. Subsequently Eastland sold US$ 10 million of
the Senior Notes on 15 October 2010 and on 8 July
2011 transferred US$ 6.5 million of the Senior Notes to
Wellbeing Holdings Limited (“Wellbeing”), which Mr. Han
Jingyuan beneficially owned 63.15% of its issued capital.
As a result, as at 31 December 2011, Eastland held
US$ 4.5 million of the Senior Notes.

(i)

H b 48 54 2 5K 8 3 SR BUTT
MERARE 660087 » %F
fEREBREEEY - MEFX
BRTARE —FHEHRER
M RETE -

R-ZB—ZFFNA+TNEBE &
SEHITEE0EEXTTNELER
B LNFNE8% B RFEEF
BEEE UEHEBEENRE
EIE - BAXHIAERB REE
B2FEL  ZFEBERENA
SEAR-_ZE—AFEN\A+NA
EHEE -

NS

R-F—FF+—H++tH"
AREBEITI00EETHEL
BB UWEMNRT%HERE
FEERER  AEBHEN
FAREENERES - ZFE
EEBNAESEAR_T—LF
T—RAT+tRE2HEER-

RZZE—ZEFNA+=ZH"
Eastland International Trading
Limited ([Eastland| » 7 & B
HRRBESTEMA LI AR
AEERIFEREFNITER
WMREEZBEBRBNRA)E
38 Credit Suisse Group AG.fE
ENMBERRE21008ET
BERE BENR_Z—TF
TATHAHEE1,0008%ET
BEZEBERKR-_ZT—FtA
\NB#EZEESOEXTELER
T Wellbeing Holdings Limited
(TWellbeingl) (FBHuR =B
HH63.15% M%) - AL - ©
—T——&+=-ZHA=+—8"
Eastland 355 450 8= LB L E
% o
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25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Wellbeing acquired US$ 6.5 million of the Senior Notes
from Eastland on 11 July 2011 and further acquired
US$ 2 million and US$ 6 million of the Senior Notes on 22
September 2011 and 15 November 2011 respectively.
As a result, as at 31 December 2011, Wellbeing held
US$ 14.5 million of the Senior Notes.

On 22 September 2011 and 3 November 2011, Mr. Han
Jingyuan personally acquired US$ 2 million and US$ 5
million of the Senior Notes respectively. As a result, as at

31 December 2011, Mr. Han Jingyuan personally held

US$ 7 million of the Senior Notes.

Within 1 year 1R

Between 1 and 2 years 1ZE24F
Between 2 and 5 years 2E 54
Over 5 years 5% F

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEAN FESEANARETIREN) BE-_T——F+_A=1T—HIFE

25, B (&)

RE&EE (&)

WR-ZZE——FtA+—8"
Wellbeing # Eastland i A 650 &
ETEBEER - MR_T——
FAAZ+=ZBR=ZZT—F
+—A+HA - Wellbeing 5 3
B A 200 &% k6008 ET
BREE Bt RZF——
F+=-H=+—H ' Wellbeing
FE14508ETEERE

N_T——F A TZHRZ
T——F+—HF=H  BHRE
EAEEAZZ S RIFEA 2008
ETTRE00EETEERE - A
It R —F+ZA=1—
B @ BERCENEEAAZERE
BT700BETTEERE °

R-B——FR-Z2—ZFF+_H
=10 AKRENERIHMHRN

B

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings
and Senior Notes

BT R R E RS
2011 2010 2011 2010
—¥——% ~T-TF —T--F —2-2F
2,087,422 680,249 65,000 =
65,000 182,000 = 20,000
- - 3,421,795 3,623,745
- - 1,874,167 1,965,285
2,152,422 862,249 5,360,962 5,609,030
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=t—HLEE

25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25.

The Group (continued)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as

B (&)

REE ()

REERNERMZMT

follows:
2011 2010
5% —E-ZF
RMB HK$ Us$ RMB HKS Uss$
ARE BT EY ARE B £
Bank borrowings RITER 5.99-8.56% 2.18% 1.71-4.85% 4.86-12.00% - -
Other borrowings EfER 3.50% - - 2.25% - -
Senior Notes BERE - - 7.00-8.00% - - 7.00-8.00%

The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate their
fair values.

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current bank
borrowings, other borrowings and Senior Notes are as follows:

mEBERREEIUERAEE -

FEMBIRITHER - HERREBRR
ERREELRAABENAT

Carrying amounts Fair value

BREIE DNREE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB——F —E-EFF B ZT-FF
Bank borrowings HRITIER 65,000 182,000 57,719 179,568
Other borrowings E At &K - 65,000 - 59,721
Senior Notes BhEh 5,295,962 5,544,030 4,465,161 5,544,030

5,360,962 5,791,030 4,522,880 5,783,319

The fair values of current borrowings approximated their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The fair values of non-current bank borrowings and other
borrowings are based on discounted cash flow approach
using the prevailing market rates of interest available to the
Group for financial institution with substantially the same terms
and characteristics at the respective balance sheet dates. The
fair values of Senior Notes are based on quoted market price.

ABIRTEIN  RBERNLRA
BELOUNEEREE - JBRDRITE
RAEEMERNRABEERAKE
REFZBEBGARRFHBARERNS
BEBENRITHEMNRRRESREX
FHREE - BERENAABEERIE
mSRETIR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BRBEERAN  FEEBEINARBTLREN) BE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25. B (&)

The Group (continued) AEE ()
NZB——F+_A=+—08 &
ARE6751BILE251BLERZ
BREETI D BIAZE T RS TTaHE - F
BRED TIAANRKEETE ©

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounted to RMB 6,751 million and RMB 251
million are denominated in US$ and HK$ respectively, the
remaining are denominated in RMB.

R-—ZE—FFE+=-_H=+—H  E&
AR5 44 B LB R Z BREE T A
ETLETE R o HIAARES
(=

As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounted to RMB 5,544 million is denominated in
USS$, the remaining are denominated in RMB.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate NEBBITEIRENREH R K

changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: BREFEBRABMT -
2011 2010
=25 CZT-TF
6 months or less X ENENA 1,477,082 670,949
6-12 months 6= 1218 A 675,340 191,300
2,152,422 862,249
The Company NG
2011 2010
=25 CZT-TF
Non-current IER B
Senior Notes BERERE 5,295,962 5,544,030
Current RED
Bank borrowings — RITER—
Secured [E e 422,340 =
Unsecured R 620,247 -
1,042,587 -
Total borrowings A B 6,338,549 5,544,030

The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate their
fair values.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25. B (&)
The Company (continued) NATE] ()
The carrying amounts and fair value of the Senior Notes are as BEZBRNREERAABENT :
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair value
BRMEIE RAEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF —B——F _—T—TfF
Senior Notes BRERE 5,295,962 5,544,030 4,465,161 5,544,030

26.

The fair values of Senior Notes are based on quoted market BEAZBN QA BEREMISRET
price. iR o
As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s Senior Notes are RZZB——F+ZHA=+T—80 " &RQ
denominated in US$. RIMEB SR RIRAEITAE o
As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of the bank RZB——FF+ZA=+T—0 " A&
borrowings amounted to RMB 251million is denominated in AR 251 BILIRITIERZREE
HK$, the remaining are denominated in USS$. THLAB M ETE - EeREbn Ty AETTAT
(=K
OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP 26. HittRHIENR—FEE
2011 2010
—E——F —=—ZF
Non-current IERE
Finance lease obligations (i) A TH B (i) 115,007 344,836
Other payable H M pETER SR 18,510 -
133,517 344,836
Current RED
Finance lease obligations (i) R FE & AE () 223,546 209,150
Total other long-term payables Hib R HAE (T Fi4E %R 357,063 553,986
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTRENM)

HE-Z——F+-_RA=1—HLEFE

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

U)

In July 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into an asset sale and
leaseback agreement (the “Sale and Lease Agreement”)
with certain financial institutions. The sales proceeds of
the relevant property, plant and equipment were RMB
800 million. The lease term was 60 months and the lease
payments were adjusted annually and reset according to
the benchmark interest rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China (the “PBOC”). Jinxi Limited was entitled to
purchase the related asset at a cost of RMB 100 at the
end of the lease.

In August 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a guarantee
agreement with another financial institution. Pursuant
to the agreement, this financial institution granted a
guarantee of RMB 800 million in favour of Jinxi Limited
for the above finance lease arrangement.

As at 31 December 2011, total minimum lease payments
under the finance lease based on the PBOC interest rate
as at the balance sheet date and their present values
were as follows:

26. HttRHEAR—AEE(E)

) RZZFTENFLA EOEME
HEETEREBIILEEER
HE e ([HE RBERZ]D) -
HEYE BEARBZIEE
PSR/ ARKS.00fETT - 1
HANTEA HENKRESF
SETHEIRBTEARR
T(THPBEARRIT AR ZE
ENREHMRE - RERER
B REHEBRARAAR
A0 TTREERBAEE -

RZZFZNFNAR  ZOEME
B 55— R &R RERT L — 1R R
ek o MIBEZ ek » sx & B
Bl LR E R E 2 T
BHHEARMB.00ETTHER -

R=B——F+=A=+—
A B EARRTREEE
HEs ez BARE 2 RIEA
S HAERAREWT

Present Interest Total

value of expenses minimum

minimum relating to lease

lease payments future periods payments

REHE  BEARREE REHES

NRZAE ZRAEAX B

Within 1 year 1ER 223,546 37,697 261,243
Between 1 and 5 years 1&54F 115,007 7,327 122,334
338,553 45,024 383,577
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26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(continued)

(BABEPN - ESEINRARETTREM

U)

As at 31 December 2010, total minimum lease payments

under the finance lease based on PBOC interest rate as

at the balance sheet date and their present values were

as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

) BE_T—Ft+_HA=+—HIFE

26. HitRAIEAHR—A%EE(E)

(%)

X

—E—ZEF+-_A=+—
A RPBEARBITREEB
KB zmERE 2 &EMR
ENFRERERENT

Kl

=

Present Interest Total

value of expenses minimum

minimum relating to lease

lease payments future periods payments

RIEHE  BEARREPE REHE

NRZHRE ZFIBRHAX (NE At

1R 209,150 49,166 258,316
1854 344,836 31,705 376,541
553,986 80,871 634,857

The effective interest rate of the finance lease obligations
of the Group is 11.84% (2010: 9.12%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of the finance
lease obligations approximated RMB 367 million (2010:
RMB 595 million). The fair values were based on

discounted cash flow using average borrowing rates of
6.65% per annum (2010: 5.62%).

NEEGEHREREZBRSE
FRE11.84%( T —FF:
9.12%) °

RZE——F+_A=+—
H REMERAEZAAEE
WMARBIETRL(ZZT—F
F: AREES595EBIL) ° 2R
BETIRBIEF IS E RFEF X
6.65% MR 2R REFTE (=
T—TF :562%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

27. DEFERRED REVENUE - GROUP 27. EZEWA—FREKH
Deferred
government Operating
grant lease income Total
AU REMg
Ak A st
At 1 January 2010 RZZ—ZF—H—H 10,500 30,756 41,256
Addition NE 16,510 - 16,510
Credited to the consolidated NG EE S
income statement - (30,756) (30,756)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZEF+-_A=+—H 27,010 - 27,010
Addition NE 11,010 = 11,010
At 31 December 2011 R-_Z——&+_-_fA=+—H 38,020 - 38,020
28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 28. RIEFIEH —4AKH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset
amounts are as follows:

EERRBRAEERRSHEAR
HWIHZ BRBRBINITHE - UREIRT
PRS- 85 E2 R — 0 795 144 R A o FB R R £
BATFERY BB ZAERE
B - 178 B8 0 T RS R R N
HE - EERSHEERAGR K
i o HHSHWT

2011 2010
—ZT——f —E-TF
Deferred tax assets: FREFH T E =
— Deferred tax asset to be — &R 1218 A &4 E
recovered after more than 12 months AR i TE A 69,112 56,836
— Deferred tax asset to be — &R 12 @8 A Rk
recovered within 12 months KRR IEE B 161,662 75,312
230,774 132,148
Deferred tax liabilities: RIETIEAE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to — R 12{E ARk
be settled within 12 months SHREERIAA & (38,080) (30,130)
Deferred tax assets-net BIETRIREE —F 9 192,694 102,018
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. ELEFEH —ANEH(EF)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as FRIEFTISTLER B MARZE T :
follows:
2011 2010
—E2——F —TEF
At 1 January R—A—H 102,018 81,007
Credited to the consolidated RE G ERREER
income statement (Note 34 () (K17E34(a)) 97,833 21,011
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39) W BE—R B AR (:E39) (7,157) =
At 31 December nt+=—A=+—H 192,694 102,018
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under BERIBHAAEENEREERE
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that is By E—_T——FF+_A=+—H1it
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement FEFEBRKREISEE SR — BT E
for the year ended 31 December 2011. R EETHE -
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FRNELEREEERABECEAFA
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of fER— B E AR ER) HEE)
balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: R
Deferred tax assets: BIETRIREE ¢
Temporary
difference
arising from Impairment Unrealised
expense provision gains on
Tax losses recognition of assets inventories Total
HEEE  ERpEER B Fela ECh
At 1 January 2010 W_E-FF—f—f = 45,478 54,268 11,494 111,240
Creited/(Charged) to the RAFFIBERDE/ (k)
consolidated income statement - 26,223 - (5,315) 20,908
At 31 December 2010 RZE-TET-A=1-H - 71,701 54,268 6,179 132,148
Credited to the consolidated iU
income statement 7,578 10,406 80,642 - 98,626
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%T-A=1-H 7,678 82,107 134910 6,179 230,774
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Ot R R AR

(BrREEREN - IESEINARETLASBA) BE-T——F+A=T—HLFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. EEFFBH —AXKE®E(E)
The Directors are of opinion that the accumulated tax losses %%ﬂ
of RMB 113 million (2010: RMB 204 million) of a subsidiary are Br(=

unlikely to be utilised before the losses expired. No deferred tax

assets were recognised.

Deferred tax liabilities:

At 1 January 2010
Charged to the consolidated
income statement

At 31 December 2010
Credit/(Charged) to the
consolidated income statement

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39) Uik —FSKTB A & (F5E39)

At 31 December 2011

The amount of profits on which withholding tax liability has not
been recognised at 31 December 2011 is RMB 3,618,639,000

(2010: RMB 2,200,850,000).

 —HEfTE AR ARKE1.13
T—TE : AR¥2.041E7T)
K 2T IE BB R EEE R AT T AR

AIREWEA - WEAERELEHRAE

;‘% °
FETHTEEE
Fair value Capitalised
Gains interest Total
N EENE BARLFE &%
R-Z—ZF—F—H = (30,233) (30,233)
REBFIBRMER
- 103 103
R-Z—ZF+_-A=+—H = (30,130) (30,130)
RABFIBRZE(0%)
358 (1,151) (793)
(7,157) = (7,157)
R-_E——F+-_A=+—H (6,799) (31,281) (38,080)

3,618,639,000 7T (==&
2 200,850,000 7T) ©
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=t—HLEE

29. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET - GROUP 29. Hfth(E18) W - FE-F5H
2011 2010
—E2——F C—EZEF
Other (losses)/gains — net: Hth (E518),Was — F58 -
Sales of raw materials and by-products H & B R S E S 119,624 82,716
Government grants IEdiSR Gt 20,000 -
Impairment provision for property, W - BB K&
plant and equipment (Note 7, 40) BB (FisE7 - 40) (161,270) -
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEME  MENMEERN
plant and equipment (Note 40) Wz, (E518) (FizE40) 5,362 (4,358)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — B A RS 3,780 =
Loss on receivables for operating BT E e BR TR B 1R
lease (Note 18(a)) (fiz¥18(a)) (49,104) =
Charitable donation ARERK (10,200) (2,025)
Impairment provision for available- AHHESREE
for-sale financial asset (Note 15) BB (FEE15) - (36,128)
Foreign exchange loss (Note 35) P R8sk (B5E35) (11,188) (16,795)
Others Hith 2,552 1,999
Total At (80,444) 25,409
30. OTHER INCOME - GROUP 30. HMWA-—FEH
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
Rental income arising from WEYFFTES
investment properties (Note 8) mES WA (FiFES) 1,748 1,309
Income from other operating leases Hip& S E 2 WA 18,790 56,825
Others Hih 6,180 5,649
Total 55t 26,718 63,783
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

31. EXPENSES BY NATURE - GROUP

Employee benefit expense (Note 32)
Changes in inventories of finished

goods and work in progress
Raw materials used (Note 16)
Utilities
Amortisation of leasehold land

and land use rights (Note 6)
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment (Note 7)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9)
Depreciation of investment

properties (Note 8)
Operating lease expenses in

respect of land use rights
Impairment provision for

accounts receivable (Note 17)
Write-down of inventories to

net realisable value (Notes 16, 40)
Auditor’s remuneration

Audit services

Non-audit services

— Audit services arising from

issuance of Senior Notes

— Interim review

— Taxation services

Total remuneration
Rental fee
Others

Total

31.

BERFMAL (H:32)
BURK R I B R
WEEEE)
Fr R (KiEE16)
BEIR
HETH & i
{5 PR AR 8 (BisE6)
ME - BEREEITE
(PMFsE7)
| B (R 9)
BEMEITE (H:Es)

BRI b FE FRER
RETHEER
JRE Uk R SRR (B 1
(BtE17)
GFEEEREZNZEFE
(Mf5E16 ~ 40)
ZE A &
B IRTS
TR
—BITEEZERAS|E
B AR TS
— FR HAZR A
— B AR
B <& 4870
HeEm
HAtb

At

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

BMHESINRAX -FKHE

2011 2010
—2——% CZT-TF
782,087 592,253
(229,620) (2,860)
32,619,567 25,124,376
1,763,708 1,660,434
3,405 1,797
892,093 892,035
18 13

805 806

3,267 9,890
3,607 -
108,439 -
4,800 4,400

- 1,000

100 200

800 -

5,700 5,600
244,000 65,500
322,257 233,170
36,519,333 28,473,014
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP

BE-T——F+-_A=1—HLEE

32. BERAMAX-AKH

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) {2 E kA (B FEEZEE)

— Salaries and welfare
— Pension costs-defined

— Share options granted to

— & RAEA

—RARERAR—ERBHLK

contribution plans (a) KERINEETE ()

directors, eligible persons

and employees (Note 22) (Mg=E22)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that
are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the
relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.

—-RTEF  aBERAL
K g B R tE

2011 2010
—E2——F C—EZEF
615,679 444,297
113,146 80,404
53,262 67,552
782,087 592,253

BRE -—TBEHRGERARS

el

2N 52 B A R B A A B S A B
NAMEE2EBBEBNA
A s ER K B RE AT
goHEE——FR-_F—
TE+-_A=+—HLEE"
AEEREEFHSBTEI0%E
20% & ARZETEIEL T8
R - BT ERATIR ©

B DA £ B 5 P 45 5B B9 SR IRLSD -
AEBEYEAREBIRARAL
AT RKRE RiE T HAMERRR
BABEMBEL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——FT-A=T—HILEE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32. EERAEX—&ER(E)

(b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

b)) ZESKEAEREME

BHE_T——FR-_T-THF
T-AZ+T—RHLLEE &&=

The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010, on a named basis, are set

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

out as below: BN (A2 B2E) 85T ¢
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
share defined
options  contribution
Salaries granted plans
and BRIES RIERA -
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus RREN EBMRR Total
ESf? e HEREH #4 MEHE it &t
2011 2--f
r. Han Jingyuan (i) BRI 878 6,524 75 8,767 10 16,254
M. Zhu Jun x BRk 672 1,499 214 1,148 10 3,543
M. Liu Lei 3 &k 45 1,19 15 1,148 10 2,821
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TEREE 432 1,396 102 1,148 10 3,088
M. Zhu Heo x bEE 332 415 - 1,148 10 1,905
Mr. Muktesh Mukheriee Muktesh Mukherjee 725 332 249 - 1,197 10 1,788
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec & 332 - - 920 - 1,252
Mr. Jean-Paul Jean-Paul
Georges Schuler () Georges Schuler 724 ) 50 - - 51 - 101
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francls &N F%4 332 - - 1,013 - 1,345
Mr. Gao Qingju BRREE 332 - - 883 - 1,215
M. Yu Tung Ho G cyints 332 - - 883 - 1,215
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar i)~ Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 7% (i) 282 - - - - 282
4,758 11,279 406 18,306 60 34,809
2010 3%
Mr. Han Jingyuan BNEEL 546 5,167 1290 2,074 10 9,087
Mr. Zhu Jun % Bxf 420 1,342 355 M 10 3,008
Mr, Liu Lei g Zxk 260 1,092 293 M 10 2,596
Mr. Shen Xiaoling NERLE 360 1,154 334 M 10 2,719
Mr. Zhu Hao ® ERE 260 433 43 M 10 1,687
Mr. Muktesh Muknherjee Muktesh Mukheriee 724 260 433 87 1,133 10 1,923
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Onara Otradovec £ 260 - - 872 - 1,132
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler  Jean-Paul Georges Schuler /£ 260 = = 254 = 514
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis & XF&4 260 - 43 817 - 1120
Mr. Gao Qingju BRERE 260 - - 724 = 984
Mr. Yu Tung Ho RVETE 303 - - 724 - 1027
3,449 9,621 2,445 10,362 60 25,987
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(continued)

(i) Resigned on 24 February 2011.

(i)  Appointed on 24 February 2011.

(i) ~ Mr. Han Jingyuan is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the years ended 31 December

2011 and 2010. The emoluments of the independent

non-executive directors during the year are
approximately RMB 3.8 million (2010: RMB 3.1 million).

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of:

BEEAH
BE AR

Number of directors
Number of employees

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2010: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above.

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as
compensation for loss of office.

BE—T—Ft-A=t—HLEE

32. EERAMAX-F&EEH#E)

EENEREEEME (F)

R ——F A=+
BEHE ©

=
=

iy RZETE——F-_HA=+MH
HEZE -

(i) BEHUREENBANRE
FEHITE °

HEZT——FR=-ZT—ZF
+ZA=+—BLEERN-H
8 5 E ok R = BREE (1A A
& TR XN FHEILIEHT
EENMeN R ARKESI80E
T(ZZ—ZF : AR%3108
JL) °

hE&=FMAL

haGEERFMALERE :

2011 2010
—E2——F C—E2EF
4 4
1 1
5 5

AEERAEBAURSHEMA
TEROM(ZE—FF: @O
f)E= - EMeern EXmn
Hren 251 »

BE_FT——FR-_FT—FF
T_A=t—HLEEER" K
SEMEREANESHAMK
SEMA T NERNME  F
RMARRB IR INARR F]
P50 SR S E D RE B AR (E -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(BRBEERAN  FERFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32. EERAMEX-AKH(ZE)

() Five highest paid individuals (continued) ) hEESHMMALE)
The remuneration of the five highest paid individuals for BE_T——FhN_ZT—ZF
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 fell within +-_A=+T—HLFEARA R
the following bands: 7 % = 3 B A £ B Bl & 7 F- A
TEE -

Number of individuals
AE
2011 2010
—2——-% C—2-ZF

212

RMB 1 to RMB 1,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1
to HK$ 1,233,502)

RMB 1,000,001 to RMB 2,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1,233,503
to HK$ 2,467,004)

RMB 2,000,001 to RMB 3,000,000
(approximately HK$ 2,467,005
to HK$ 3,700,506)

RMB 3,000,001 to RMB 4,000,000
(approximately HK$ 3,700,507
to HK$ 4,934,008)

RMB 4,000,001 to RMB 5,000,000
(approximately HK$ 4,934,009
to HK$ 6,167,510)

RMB 5,000,001 to RMB 6,000,000
(approximately HK$ 6,167,511
to HK$ 7,401,011)

RMB 6,000,001 to RMB 7,000,000
(approximately HK$ 7,401,012
to HK$ 8,634,513)

RMB 7,000,001 to RMB 8,000,000
(approximately HK$ 8,634,514
to HK$ 9,868,015)

RMB 8,000,001 to RMB 9,000,000
(approximately HK$ 9,868,016
to HK$ 11,101,517)

RMB 9,000,001 to RMB 10,000,000
(approximately HK$ 11,101,518
to HK$ 12,335,019)

RMB 10,000,001 to RMB 15,000,000

(approximately HK$ 12,335,020
to HK$ 18,502,529)

AR¥EA TR
AR 1,000,000 7T
(#4917%87T5E1,233,502/87T)
AR#1,000,001 TEARE
2,000,000 (471,233,503
HBITE 2,467,004 78 7T)
AR 2,000,001 TEARE
3,000,000 T (472,467,005
P ITE 3,700,506 78 7T )
AR 3,000,001 TEARE
4,000,000t (473,700,507
B ITE 4,934,008 78 7T )
AR 4,000,001 TEARE
5,000,000 7T (474,934,009
BITE6,167,510787T)
AR 5,000,001 TEARE
6,000,000 7T (476,167,511
HBITE 7,401,011 78 7T)
AR 6,000,001 TEARE
7,000,000 7T (497,401,012
BT E 8,634,513 7T)
AR 7,000,001 TEARE
8,000,000 (478,634,514
B ITE 9,868,015 7T)
AR 8,000,001 TEARE
9,000,000 (479,868,016
EITE 11,101,517 7 7T)
AR#9,000,001 TEARE
10,000,000 7t (#711,101,518
HBITE 12,335,019 7T)
AE®10,000,001 TEARKE
15,000,000 7t (#912,335,020
HBITE 18,502,529787T)
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRBBERN  FTBEBINARBTLASEMN) HEZZ——F+-RA=+—HLFE

33. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS - GROUP 33. MW ARRA—ARER
2011 2010
—E2——-F C—E2EF
Interest expenses FEER
— borrowings — &% (509,702) (247,091)
— discount of notes receivable — RN (499) (7,886)
— finance lease liabilities —REHESRE (35,847) (52,881)
Net foreign exchange gains B KAV IE HF IR A
on borrowings (Note 35) (FftzE35) 319,780 97,624
Finance costs BFTER AN (226,268) (210,234)
Less: amounts capitalised B BBEREEEARNL
on qualifying assets (Note 7) e (MEE7) 35,468 14,579
Total finance costs (Note 40) B A 4258 (PF9=E40) (190,800) (195,655)
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIF R E A BULA 16,505 18,396
Interest from other receivables H th 8 Uk BR R EO F A 59,755 34,145
Income from loan receivables FEUE XA WA 20,638 4,508
Finance income (Note 40) B RS YR (BiisE 40) 96,898 57,049
Finance costs — net W FER AN — FEE (93,902) (138,6006)
34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP 34. FIEBiEBRH-&KEHE
(@ Income tax expense represents: @ FEHRERBRE:
2011 2010
—g—-5 -T-TF
Current income tax & HIFTER
- PRC enterprise — B EEFTEH
income tax (the “EIT”) (THhEPEMRSH]) 606,950 449,041
— Singapore profit tax — ¥ RS L 4,906 -
611,856 449,041
Deferred income tax (Note 28) FEIEFTSRL (IR 28) (97,833) (21,011)
514,023 428,030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

34.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(@)

Income tax expense represents: (continued)

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Bermuda income tax.

The subsidiaries directly held by the Company were
incorporated in BVI with limited liability under the
International Business Companies Act Chapter 291 and,
accordingly, are exempted from payment of BVI income
tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided based on the
statutory profit of subsidiaries incorporated or traded in
Hong Kong in accordance with the Hong Kong tax laws
and regulations, after adjustments on certain income and
expense items, which are not assessable or deductible
for profit tax purposes (2011 and 2010: nil).

China Oriental Singapore has been awarded the “Global
Trader Programme” (“GTP”) status for 2 years 9 months
with effect from 1 April 2011. Income from qualifying
transactions will be taxed at the concessionary corporate
tax rate of 10%, subject to China Oriental Singapore
meeting certain terms and conditions as stated in the
letter issued by International Enterprise Singapore.

The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit
of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance
with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments
on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——FT-A=T—HILEE

34. FIEBER-ZKE(E)

(@)

PSR ERERE : (&)

ARRBEBAERE-NN—F
NEDEE AR EAMKLSE
HReBRECERAR - WEHR
BNBREMRSH -

ARREEFENHEBERRIR
BEIREEARNAE 291 BEER
BHERRESEMKILAER
EARR] MERRANEEB
HR R ELSFTSH

FRENGSHDERETBEM
PSR B B R M B A B EEE
m A RIBEERBER KK
Bl RABETFERRET
BT AT 15 B Y M K2 B S TR
BRELBEHE (T ——F K=

T-ZF:F)o

PERSTHAMKEESE T
——FHA-BRBREMORF
NEAN ERRE S8 (TR
REZE ] RETFEERS
T A3 32 B 58 A0 35 B B 1 3 3
REZELOREAMIINET
RN - BERORSHZ
WA 1251 43 5 FF R TR R
10% °

£ ¥ TS B R E R E
£ A ST A0 B 2 M
R AR 18 R B B RS K 2 R IR
Bl RBEETAARH AT
o] 1585718 B &0 M A B 0B
B &5t -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(@)

Income tax expense represents: (continued)

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC are required to determine and
pay the EIT in accordance with the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC (the “New EIT Law”) as approved
by the National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007
and the Detailed Implementation Regulations of the
Corporate Income Tax Law (the “DIR”) as approved by
the State Council on 6 December 2007. In accordance
with the New EIT Law and DIR, the EIT rate applicable to
the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC will be 25% for
those with original applicable EIT rates higher than 25%,
or gradually increased to 25% in a 5-year period from
2008 to 2012 for those with original applicable EIT rates
lower than 25%. The preferential policy of exemption
or deduction shall be effective from 1 January 2008,
even if the subsidiaries were still in a cumulative tax loss
position.

Jinxi Jinlan was qualified as a foreign investment
production enterprise and was established in a coastal
economic development zone. Approved by local tax
authority on 14 December 2007, Jinxi Jinlan was entitled
to a two-year full exemption followed by a three-year
50% tax deduction, commencing from 1 January 2008.
The effective tax rate of Jinxi Jinlan for the year ended 31
December 2011 was 12.5% (2010: 12.5%).

Shenzhen Leasing was qualified as a service industry
enterprise and was established in a special economic
zone. Approved by local tax authority on 14 September
2008, Shenzhen Leasing was entitled to a one-year full
exemption followed by a two-year 50% tax deduction
effective from 1 January 2008. Accordingly, the effective
tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2011 was 24%
(2010: 11%).

34. FIEHER-AKE(E)

(@)

PERERBLE : (&)

B-ZETN\F—H—HE
£ AP B R0 AR 2 B9 B /B R B 28
ER-_ZFTLtF=A+ B2
Bl AR EHmILERN PR
JEE(FEEMRETE] &
—ETHF+ - ANBEER
HER B EEBEAE M A
(TEMmMAMA ) - sFEL AP
EAEH - KB BEMSH
ERE AR - 1A B
37 RO B A & 0 R S A A 1
EABEHMEZN25% + BIF
A 25% ¢ B A0 R e E A
EMSHREER25% + BITE
—EENEE_E—_FHNH
FHREA  BF LFAE25% -
BEHRAIBELEBRREEZ
TTENF—A—HBBEKR B
FZERBRARMDERRFTH
HEEMRR -

EHSEEAIEREEEN
TENER T REELEER
TR - KM FRBRR =
T +F+-At+mASEL
EReHMAE _TTENFE—A—
B ZEMFERBHRERE
B =FE0%HMIBER - REZE
—E——F+-_A=+—HIt
FE HBESIRER125%(=
T—F :12.5%) °

FHHREFAERBECENE
1 W RIS B RS o 48
MARBR-_ZEENENA
THAEY RINEEF =T
TENF—A—B THE—F
52 RE B R B 1B MF 50%
MBER - Al REE=T
——F+-_A=+—HBL*F
B HERBER24% (ZF—
T 1%) o

Annual Report 2011 —F——44EH

215



216

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BR=AE=AN

34.

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(@)

Income tax expense represents: (continued)

Other than above-mentioned entities, all other
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in PRC are

subject to the tax rate of 25% in year 2011 (2010: 25%)).

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

weighted average applicable tax rate of 24.27% (2010:

25.35%) to respective profits of the consolidated entities
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 as

follows:

Profit before taxation

Taxation calculated at
statutory tax rate
Effect of preferential tax
rate of subsidiaries
Tax losses for which no deferred
income tax asset was recognised
Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses
Effect of non-deductible expenses

25.35%) s E B iR AR K =
E5RIT ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
BB A A 1,931,812 1,613,481
BAER R ENIRIE
468,856 408,946
B AREBERERATE
(203) (5,507)
R ERIEIEFT S
BEMNHIEEE 18,294 17,070
1§ F SC B R RERR AR TE 5 18
(4,634) (8,286)
AR E AR 2 31,710 15,807
514,023 428,030

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——FT-A=T—HILEE

34. FIEBER-ZKE(E)

(@ FISHERELE: (&)

B At EREIN

AEBEMER

i 7 R B S A SZ A B B 1 )
R-B——FNBERR25% (=

E—FF : 25%) o

b) AEBEERBAE MR BERE

E-LET——FK=

T4

TZ A=t -RLFEEHE
B8 0 N X 5% B TS FR ) N
FIOBE24.27% (ZF—FF




35.

36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES)

The exchange differences credited/(charged) in the
consolidated income statement are included as follows:

Other (losses)/gains — net (Note 29)
(Pt5E29)

Finance costs — net (Note 33)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately RMB 236.83 million (2010: RMB 60.64 million).
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

B TSR A — F 78 (B 5E 33)

BE-F——F-A=t—AL&E

35. ENUE(EiE) BE

REFBRARER(KR) ZEX
ZRFFIMT

ity (B518),Weas —F 8

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
(11,188) (16,795)
319,780 97,624
308,592 80,829

36. ADFERDIFHEEREGRR

RARERFAERG N BETA
RARMIEHREAL AR 2.3683 18
T(ZZ—ZF : AR¥G,06487T) °

37. BRWE
HAR
EBREAWETIIRBAARERES
%

=
FRIENERAFABE BT E BN
g F Mt HE o

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Profit attributable to owners RABIESFEE B RN
of the Company 1,241,893 1,062,838
Weighted average number of BT mAR Y htE
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) FHE (TR 2,929,725 2,929,663
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)  &ixEARN Wz (FIRAREIT) 0.42 0.36
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

37. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue used in calculating
basic earnings per share (thousands)

37.

SRS (F)
Wi

BB BWRETERRAE AIHEDN
BELTBRRLRE  RIFFHERE
TEBEMIEFHREEE - AR
AEE—RARENEEC LR - B
Bt - pLEBREM S - RIRHRITEE
BREMMOREENERER B
ERARBE(EE /AR T
VEEME) A BANRNDEE - %A
EAF RN E A T ERRER
RITEMED BTN BB FHLL

Adjustments for options (thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares and potential ordinary shares

issued as the denominator in calculating
diluted earnings per share (thousands)

2011 2010
—8——F C—TEF
RABERFFEE G RT]
1,241,893 1,062,838
FARFTEFREAR K
FIE BT BAR hnE
T2 (FhR) 2,929,725 2,929,663
R (TR) 25,024 7,052
STE SRR ER
DENEEITEBER
KB E RNk
g (FR) 2,954,749 2,936,715
0.42 0.36

Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) &Nz (FIRARET)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

38. DIVIDENDS

Interim, paid (a)
Final, proposed (b)

(@)

R BIRMT (@)
KH - #HIK (b)

At a meeting held on 9 August 2011, the Board
proposed an interim dividend in respect of the
period ended 30 June 2011 of HK$ 292.97 million
(approximately RMB 241.35 million), representing HK$
0.1 per ordinary share.

At a meeting held on 18 March 2011, the Board
proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2010 of HK$ 313.48 million (approximately
RMB 266.75 million), representing HK$ 0.107 per
ordinary share.

At a meeting held on 23 March 2012, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2011.

BE—T——Ft-_A=t—HLLHFE

38. KRR

2011 2010
—B-—-5 —2-%F
241,351 -
- 266,750

RZZ——FN\NANBRTH
eRL EEREZREHZE
—E——FXAZTAHLEARRE
A EAR B 2.9297 B8 7T (KA
R#2.41351870) - AIEBRILA
B%0.187T »

M-ZE——F=ZA+/\B£E1T
NEzt EERERKEE
ET—ZFTF+_H=1+—H
LIEFE R E3.1348 B8 T
(MAREE266751ET)  BNE
f&%E3@0.107 3T o

R-EBE——F=F=-_+=HHE
THEZHLE BEERTEZR
BHE_Z—F+=-_A=+—
B IFFEIRMEAREES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In January 2011, the Group acquired a 51% interest in Jinxi
Dafang, a company that manufactures and sells casting
products and provides equipment maintenance, by capital
injection of approximately RMB 64 million. The acquisition is
expected to increase the Group’s product diversity and reduce
cost through economies of scale.

The goodwill of RMB 8 million arises from a number of factors.
Most significant amongst these is the premium attributable
to a pre-existing, well-positioned business operating in
a competitive market. Other important elements include
expected synergies through combining a highly skilled
workforce and obtaining economies of scale.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7)

Inventories TE
Receivables FEUBR TR
Payables FERTBRFR
Borrowings (EEN

Deferred tax liability (Note 28)
Total identifiable net assets

FEAE B R
EEIGER))

Non-controlling interest
Goodwill (Note 9)

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

RelAEEED
YERN TGRS

39.

IR B E (MiFE28)
AARIEEFERRT

EBEH

R-ZT——%—F A&EERBIE
WARMEGA0ETWBEERKHE
BEERIREREEENQRER
RITHI51% Bt o LW B EIRTERTA]
BN AEE N ERER L BBRE
B AR

AR 800 BTN EERSEREM
Ei - HRREENRERZR— A
FTIBEENEEFERER AT
EBRENEE EHEEREEE
BB BTN S8 H RS
PR O TR ER 3 3 o

BEAMECHADEFTENRME
R o

BB AR RI B E MAERN B ERE
R

Fair value

DAREE

86,011
76,727
81,191
51,080
(155,639)
(23,941)
(7,157)

108,272
(63,053)
8,498

63,717



39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39.

No acquisition-related costs were incurred in this acquisition.

BE-T——F+-_A=1—HLEE

EBEHt(E)

ZWB RSB ELEAMERRNE
R -

Outflow of cash to acquire business, U ER ZE TS RIIR &
net of cash acquired IR PTUL S IR & 558
— cash consideration —RERE 63,717
— cash and cash equivalents —BUREHRBARMNRS
of the subsidiary acquired FIREEEY (86,011)
Cash inflow on acquisition WIESETERIRE TR (22,294)

Since the business combination was consummated in January
2011, the acquired business contributed revenues of RMB 457
million and net profit of RMB 37 million to the Group for the
period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011.

HREBAHR_ZT——F— A%
R EHE-_ZT——F—F—HE=Z
—FF+ZA=+—HIHHE  BK
BHEBRATNEETMARK 457
TCEIRA R AR % 3,700 & T 1Y 3 5
) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40. EEEENES
(@)  Recongiliation of profit before taxation to cash generated @ BHRAENELEEHNES
from operations is as follows: MARFERLT -
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
Profit before income tax BrFTSBATR A 1,931,812 1,613,481
Adjustments for: A
Impairment provision for accounts MR TUR B R
receivable (Notes 17, 31) (BfzE17 ~ 31) 3,607 =
Depreciation (Notes 7, 31) & (FizE7 ~ 31) 892,093 892,035
Depreciation of investment WEMETE
properties (Notes 8, 31) (BfzEs ~ 31) 805 806
Amortisation of leasehold land TS L3 J i A
and land use rights (Notes 6, 31) i (fisEe - 31) 3,405 1,797
Amortisation of intangible ER A ERE (M9 -~ 31)
assets (Notes 9, 31) 18 13
Impairment provision for property, M - BB Rk
plant and equipment (Note 29) IRE R ( W% 29) 161,270 -
Write-down of inventories FEEERER
to net realisable value (Note 31) R ER %(l‘ﬁ? 31) 108,439 -
Share of profit of an associate (Note 11)  fE{5—RIBE& A T H (FisE11) (2,140) (191)
Gain/(loss) on disposal for property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment (Note 29) RfEF W/ (BE)(HEE29) (5,362) 4,358
Exchange loss (Note 29) e 5 &5 18 (Pt 29) 11,188 16,795
Finance income (Note 33) AU (BizE33) (96,898) (67,049)
Finance costs (Note 33) BRSPS (FI5E33) 190,800 195,655
Share-based payment (Note 32) VARRAR A EEHE 2 55K (P9 32) 53,262 67,552
Impairment provision for available- AHHESREE
for-sale financial assets (Note 15) RERAE (T 15) = 36,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——F+-A=T—HILFE

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 40. BEELHNRS(H)
(@  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated @ BHADEMNELEFHAIES

from operations is as follows: (continued)

Changes in working capital (excluding
the effects of acquisition and

exchange differences on consolidation):

Decrease in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Increase in inventories and
properties under development
(Increase)/decrease in
restricted bank balances
Increase in trade and notes
receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables and
other current assets
Increase in amount
due from related parties
Increase in trade payables, current
income tax liabilities, accruals,
advances from customers and
other current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue

Decrease in amount due to related parties

Cash generated from/
(used in) operation

Major non-cash transactions:

LEESEY (T EHEAH
WERERZROTE) :

0 BB B A RSB A
BRENLRAEND
FERERTWEEN

RRBIRITAEER (B0), B>

FWEZERARTE - BAFIA

& R B A YRR K
HitmEEEZ N

FE W R 73 IR N

ENEZER - 2HHAE
HafE BREM

BRWEP AR

e R EIE
BIER AL, ORi)
FE A~ B 77 SRIR0R
®E/ (BR)

BENRE

MARFREERLT : (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
endorsed bank acceptance notes to suppliers for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB 553 million (2010: approximately RMB
352 million).

2011 2010
—2—-F e
= 14
(679,563) (1,734,424)
(145,526) 8,041
(2,086,125) (3,212,043)

- (7,6006)

557,245 954,767
11,010 (14,246)
(1,116) (8,988)
908,224 (1,243,105)

FEIIRERS

HE—Eg——®+-_H=+—
HEFE AEEHEEY
¥ BEEXEBERAHEERES
RITERAEZHARKS53E
T(ZE—ZF : YARK 352
B7LT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREAIN - RS EAUARE T T RER)

40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

41.

(c) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount from sales and

deductions of property, plant HE KB A
and equipment (Note 7) BRTEHE (FEET7)
Impairment provision upon disposal & KRB B E

Disposal of a subsidiary

Gain/(Loss) on disposals of property,
plant and equipment (Note 29)

Non-cash assets received (i)

Cash proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment FAEFTRIRE

(i) Non-cash assets received mainly represented bank
acceptance notes received from deductions of
property, plant and equipment.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS - GROUP

Guarantee for bank BE=FRRIT

borrowings of a third party B B ER

As at 31 December 2011, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee for
bank borrowings in favour of a third party amounted to RMB 30
million (2010: RMB 30 million). The fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts are not significant.

The Directors are of the view that such obligation will not cause
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7

VE R I B

mE—fH B AR

HEME - BEK
Bl (E518) (HiEE29)

BUWIER S EE ()

HEWE - BEK

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——FT-A=T—HILEE

40.

41.

LEEELENRE ()

© RREREXRA HEWE.
R Es N s B PSSR 845

2011 2010
—EB——fF —TEF
12,393 145,351

- (7,879)

- (7,924)

5,362 (4,358)
(16,978) (123,398)
777 1,792

) KRENFEREEEETRER

Y% - BB KR AE R A WER
BRI TACHLIER o
BBEREN —FAEH
2011 2010
—E——F T -TF
30,000 30,000

R-ZT——F+_fF=+—H " 2f
i85 A% = ERTTIE R L AR
HARKSZ00ET(ZE—FF : A
R¥3,000&87T) - ZEWBERELD
HARBELTER -

Ik

E

EERRRAEB T EEREEMz
R °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—F+-_A=t—HLEE

42, COMMITMENTS - GROUP 42, FRIE-KREH
(@) Capital commitments @ EAEE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REEBHHREENERNHF
incurred is as follows: m
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
Purchase of property, EEME  BELXK
plant and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for —BRTAEREME 486,448 1,846,386
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B HE{E R T4 18,998 131,977
505,446 1,978,363
(b)  Operating lease commitments (o) KEHEEHAE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in BT HEHREHEE T
respect of land use rights, property, plant and equipment TH R WX BE &K
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as BERENSRARRKEEERSE
follows: HTHIT :
2011 2010
—B-—-5 —2-%F
No later than one year 1FER 308,360 184,549
Later than one year and no 1FLALE - 5FUR
later than five years 33,346 53,176
Later than five years 59k 162,053 170,383
503,759 408,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BEHLRS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, iM— A B EEE NIEH S —7
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise W B —HIESIE S KL ERRRE
significant influence over the other party in making financial and BEATED  BIABET o WESE
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related THRES] - AR AR o

if they are subject to common control.

(@)  For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the @ BHE_Z——FEK_ZT—FF

Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group:

Name

=5

ArcelorMittal Holdings AG (formerly
named Mittal Steel Holdings AG)
(“AM Holdings AG”)

ArcelorMittal Holdings AG
(A ## AMittal Steel Holdings AG)
(TAM Holdings AG )

Tangshan Jinxi Group

JENIb=isE SE ]

Arcelor Mittal Sourcing SA
(“AM Sourcing”)

Arcelor Mittal Sourcing SA
(TAM Sourcing )

Foshan Jin Lan

A

Foshan Jin Lan Group Co., Ltd. (“Jin
Lan Group”)

HILEHEEERAA]
([&mMEE])

Foshan Jin Lan Import and Export
Co., Ltd. (“Jin Lan Import and
Export”)

HILSEEL D ERAA
(TemELO])

TZA=+t—BLFER &
RRUATRBAIRAL/ARE
[ 1 A B

Relationship with the Group
BASEABF

Substantial shareholder of the Company

ARBEWEERR

Shareholder of Jinxi Limited and its legal representative is Mr.
Guo Feizhi, one of the key executives of Jinxi Limited
EPEMBEARR - FDEERKRIRE EERER
M FBITHRABRZ —

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder of AM
Holdings AG
F1 AM Holdings AG #)/Rl — S HE BRI SR 12 41

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

R D BRIR

Controlled by Mr. Zhou WEeijie, a director of Jinxi Jinlan

RS WE R AR TS

Controlled by the family members of Mr. Zhou WEeijie, a director
of Jinxi Jinlan

BER SR ESERAETEN KBRS
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the (a)
directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group: (continued)

Name

=

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals
Product Co., Ltd. (“Jin Lan
Nonferrous Metals”)

BlLeWAEeeBRMBRAR
(EHREesE))

Zhongxing Iron Mine

B 5

Hui Yin
MEIR

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Jinxi

Fenggang Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.

(“Jinxi Fenggang”)
JE LI T i [ 3R 7 S 8
BRAF (HRAELH )

Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village
Wang Zhihong Iron Ore Mill
(“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”)

BPIRE AT T RALE
B ([BrEER )

43. BHAERZ (&)

BE_ZT kT TF
+tZA=t—RLFER" &
ERRUTRBERATRBEE
SRR T - (A7)

Relationship with the Group
BEAEEHERE

Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

BlLeMnME AT

Jinxi Limited’s associated company

e i) /N

Substantial shareholder of Jinxi Section Steel
TRV ERR R

[ts chairman of the board is Mr. Han Li, the legal representative
of Jinxi Limited and the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan (before 10
June 2011)

HEERFFER/EAMBAVEERR LBYR LN T T2
hEE(RZE——FA+HA

Its chairman of the board is Mr. Shen Xiaoling, the director of
the Company (Since 10 June 2011)

HEZRIEA/RRREFLBERAE (BT —F K AT
Hi#e)

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real
Estate

HIEEFMENE F T EA T AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the (a)
directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group: (continued)

Name

=5

Luxembourg Steel (Sichuan)
Company Limited (“Lu Steel”)

50 (P9)11) S m A PR A A
(TE#])

Jinxi Wantong

REER

Beijing Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment”)
ERREEEREEREGRAA
(ITREEERE D

Hebei Province Jing Yuan Education
Foundation (“Jing Yuan
Foundation”)

A EHEHEES ([FERES])

Mr. Han Jingyuan
BHUREE

Mr. Zhou Weijie
g GEE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling

BRI A

Mr. Wang Zhihong
FHELALE

Mr. Li Hejun
FRERLE

43. BEHAERZ (&)

HE_ZT——FR-_Z—FTF
+ZA=+—HLEFEARN" &

RELNTRAAIRATAASE
BRI - (&)

Relationship with the Group
BEASEABF

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder of AM
Holdings AG

i AM Holdings AG Y [B] — S 4842 A% % 5428 )

Its former legal representative is Mr. Shen Xiaoling, the director
of the Company (ceased to be Group’s related party since 29
July 2011)

HADEERERAARRRESLBRR EE (AT ——F A
—ThRBTIBRANEERY)

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real
Estate

HEEFMENES S TS

Its legal representative is Mr. Han Jingyuan, a director of the
Company

ARBEFFWERERLEERR

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
RAREEZRERFREERTE

Director of Jinxi Jinlan

ERCHNES

Director, Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company
ARRIER  BEKERERVHEE

A director of Boyuan Real Estate

BEFHENES

Substantial shareholder of Jinxi Dafang

RAATHERERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRRAEEBEIN FASEANARE T TRER)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, during the years ended 31

December 2011 and 2010, the Directors were of

the view that the following significant related party

transactions were carried out in the normal course of

business of the Group:

(i) Sales

(1) Sales of goods

— Jinxi Fenggang

—Jin Lan Group

— Lu Steel

— Jinxi Wantong

—Jin Lan Import
and Export

(I Sales of utilities
— Jin Lan Nonferrous

Metals
— Foshan Jin Lan

(ii) Purchase of raw materials

— Zhongxing Iron Mine
— Qianxi Iron Ore Mill
— Jinxi Fenggang

() HEEEYD

—R7I L
—2WEE
— &
—REER
—SHRELD

— LS

— R EER
— BIEER
— PR

(b)

BHE-_Z——&+-A=1—HItFE

43. BHAERZ (&)

BREAGHHBREFERE
G B E——ER T —
A BEERABATHERMS

HRBDRAKER R R+
AT -
() &=
2011 2010
—2-——5 —F-TF
116,255 151,532
20,763 14,849
6,954 -
6,777 62,629
2,532 50,527
153,281 279,537
8,848 7,759
- 781
8,848 8,540
(i) MEFEHH
2011 2010
—B-—-5 —2-%F
84,656 70,015
75,795 74,546
29,843 1,340
190,294 145,901
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T—F+-A=t—HILHFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010, the Directors were of
the view that the following significant related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group: (continued)

(iii) Financing

o Transaction with Hui Yin

Hui Yin provided a loan to Jinxi Section
Steel, amounted to RMB 170 million for the
year ended 31 December 2008. The loan
is unsecured and interest-free and was fully
paid during 2011.

° Transaction with Jing Yuan Foundation

For the year ended 31 December 2008, Jing
Yuan Foundation provided an entrustment
loan to Jinxi Limited through a financial
institution, amounted to RMB 3.3 million. The
loan was unsecured, bore interest at a rate
of 12% per annum and repayable within one
year. The loan was fully paid during 2011.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 6 81 ¥ R & Ki =

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010, the Directors were of
the view that the following significant related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group: (continued)

(iv) Key management compensation

Key management includes executive and non-
executive directors. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

BE-T——F+-_A=1—HLEE

43. BHAERZ (&)

(b)

Salaries and other short-term 4 & H fih 55 HA(E B 12 7

employee benefits
Post-employment benefits BEER 1242 A

Share-based payments LARSHAD 72 B R ) = A

BREAGHHBREFERE
G B E——ER T —
A BEERABATHERMS

ARGTIRAEEBEERBF
#T (B

(iv) RBEEARMS

TREBABBREATR
FRITEE - EERY
e ENREREEA

BRBSIT :
2011 2010
—g——% —2-2F
17,129 18,674
60 60
15,650 11,853
32,839 30,587
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 & i 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BR=AE=AN

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

HE-Z——F+-_RA=1—HLEFE

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributable to the aforementioned related party

transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and

dividends appropriation during the years:

Amounts due from related parties
Non-trade balances
- Jinxi Fenggang (i)
- Mr Li Hejun
- Tangshan Jinxi Group (Note 18)
- Jinxi Wantong

Amounts due to related parties

Non-Current

Non-trade balances

Borrowing from related parties
— Li Hejun (i)

Current

Non-trade balances

Borrowing from related parties

- Jingtang Guangzhi Investment (iii)

— Foshan Jin Lan (iv)
— Hui Yin (Note 43(b)(iii))
- Wangzhihong (ii)

Deposit from a related party
- Mr. Shen Xiaoling (v)

Others
- Foshan Jin Lan
- Mr. Han Jingyuan

Trade balances
Trade payables
- Zhongxing Iron Mine
- Jinxi Fenggang
- Lu Steel
- Qianxi Iron Ore Mill

U BB 75 7R
EESHES
—ZFEH ()
—FEELE
—EILEEER (HF18)
—ERER

FE 1+ BREg 75 7R

JEmE

EEFHES

B R ER
— BB (i)

e

FE S 4

B D R AR
—REETIRA (i)
—BILEE (v)
—JESR (P =E 43(0)(ii)
— AT S A il

KB REBTMEE
— LB L (v)

Hfty
—frLEH
—BEREL

Bk
ARl
—RERER
— RS
— &5
—BEEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

43.

RBAXS (&)
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R_F——FR-_F—FF
+=A=+—A EFRAU
TR A 4 TSR LR A
25 REAEEE LR
B R AR AR 8 ST
B

2011 2010
—2—-—-F —ZTZ%F
65,114 95,000
717 =

- 893,245

- 11,345
65,831 999,590
17,304 =
49,177 =
37,404 37,404
- 170,000

- 46,554
86,581 253,958
- 10,000

383 383

- 4
383 387
256 1,632
452 1,038
2,208 -
11,267 421
14,183 3,091
118,451 267,436
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BRBEERAN  FEREANARETTREM)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributable to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and
dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to an agreement entered into in August
2011, Beijing Jinxi Investment provided an
entrusted loan to Jinxi Fenggang, amounted to
RMB 65 million. The loan was unsecured, bears
interest at an 8% per annum and was repayable
within one year. As at 31 December 2011, the
principal of loans and interests amounted to RMB
0.11 million have not been received.

In May 2011, Mr. Li Hejun provided a loan to Jinxi
Dafang, amounted to approximately RMB 17
million. The loan was unsecured, interest-free and
has a repayable term of 30 years.

Pursuant to certain agreements, Jinxi Limited and
Wang Zhihong lent certain loans to Boyuan Real
Estate on a proportional basis according to their
respective shareholdings percentage in Boyuan
Real Estate. These loans are unsecured, bore
interest at a rate of 5.31% per annum and are
repayable within one year.

Pursuant to certain agreements, Wang Zhihong
transferred the rights of the unpaid borrowings to
Jingtang Guangzhi Investment. These loans are
unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 7.09% per
annum and are repayable by 23 April 2012.

43. BHAERZ (&)

()

RZEBE-——FR_ZE-—FTF
TZA=+—HB EFERAMN
T RARE S &SRR TR R
X5 REAEEEXNHRK
BREBEBRFEANKREDEM
EE (&)

) BEZFT——FNATL
B — AW - AEFOETIR
BrRALHREHERE
R 2B ARKE,500
Bt - nERREER
LA F R 8% 5t B R AR
—FREE - N_F——
F+ZA=+—HB EX
e MARE 11 BITHH
BAIARULER

iy M-_ZT——FHA =&
B AERERAS RS
HAREA 70 THE
Mo ZERBEERT - &
BRE=TFHENRHA -

(i) RIEHE T RS
MESOEERBS AR
BFEBEEHMENRG L
PIEFEEREHESTE
o ZEERAEER
25.31% FHEFHE KA
R—FRNEE -

BEE TiHE - TEAL
A B8 R OR ASTfE KR B A
TREEERE %Z
ERABEER  REAR
E7.09% 5 B RARE
——EA=+=HFE
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & {3 Bf #& 3 3% i 5+

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREREIBAIN - AESEAUARE T RER)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributable to the aforementioned related party

transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and

dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

(iv)

Pursuant to certain agreements entered into in
January 2006, the payables owing to Foshan Jin
Lan amounted to RMB 55 million was unsecured,
interest-free and had a repayable term of 5 years.
Part of the loan amounted to RMB 18 million was
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2009.
As at 31 December 2011, the rest of the loan has
not been repaid.

Pursuant to a cooperation agreement entered into
between Mr. Shen Xiaoling and the Group in June
2008, the payable to Mr. Shen Xiaoling amounted
to RMB 10 million represented a deposit for the
cooperation agreement, which was unsecured,
interest-free and fully repaid during the year ended
31 December 2011.

China Oriental Group Company Limited [ # iy 4 B 3% B A PR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3t Bf #& 3 & Ffi 5+

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2011

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—F+-_A=tT—HLEE

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As announced by the Company on 7 March 2012, Jinxi
Limited entered into an equity transfer agreement with Hui Yin.
Pursuant to this agreement, Jinxi Limited has conditionally
agreed to acquire 20% equity interest in the Jinxi Section Steel
from Hui Yin. Upon completion of the acquisition, Jinxi Limited
will increase its equity interests in Jinxi Section from 80% to
100% and Jinxi Section will become a wholly owned subsidiary
of Jinxi Limited.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board on 23 March 2012.
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45.

RERREHE

AATNRZE——F=A+B A
22 7 o ) B G SRIE PR IR B iR 1 o
BEUt - R TRHHER = R mE SR
BHEBE AR 20% IR
U SER 1% + R PR iR i e R PR AL 4R
9 B 25 R 80% 3 1= 100% K 2
FERERA B R TR RS 2 B A B

A -

HERE

BEERR T —F=A-+=8#
ERE TSR -

Annual Report 2011 —F——44EH

235



236

Five-year Financial Information & & & # & %l

A summary of the consolidated income statement and of the AEEEZA L EMREENESHFER
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the FEHEE BERIFZEHIEEDEEZE
Group for the last five financial years is as set out below: FIEAR

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —T-TF _TTNF —ZETN\F _TTLHF
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)  (RMB’000)  (RMB’'000)  (RMB’000)

(ARBTFR) (ARBTT) (ARETRT) (ARETT) (AR¥ETT)

Revenue WA 38,596,633 30,135,718 20,589,138 19,388,183 13,498,555
Profit before income tax BRFASHIADAEM 1,981,812 1,613,481 1,313,734 113,601 1,450,354
Income tax expense FrigtiE A (514,023) (428,030) (341,293 (70,643) (256,617)
Profit for the year FERF 1,417,789 1,185,451 972,441 42,958 1,198,737
Profit attributable to : EAEFER
Owners of NN

the Company BEaEE 1,241,893 1,062,838 884,323 44,032 1,159,657
Non-controlling interests  3F# Hll 1A+ 175,896 122,613 88,118 (1,074) 34,080

1,417,789 1,185,451 972,441 42 958 1,198,737

Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests EHEE - BEMEIEESIMEER

Total assets
Total liabilities
Non-controlling interests

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H
Audited
REX
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—E——F —2-TF —TBNE —BEN\F —DBLH
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)
(ARBTFT) (ARSTR) (ARBTFT) (ARETFT) (ARSF)

AR 22,929,993 20,742,095 15,189,137 14,136,057 10,162,120
maE (13,418,643) (12,222,321) (7,728,387) (7,646,117) (3,466,016)
FEPEHIE R R (647,730)  (450,012)  (291,992)  (224,711)  (147,414)

8,863,620 8,069,762 7,168,758 6,265,229 6,548,690

China Oriental Group Company Limited 3y 4 B B A R A 7
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